
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of City Council Work Session, Executive Session, Urban Renewal Agency 
 & Regular City Council Meeting  

 

 
The City Council of the City of Newport will hold a work session and executive session on Tuesday, 
September 3, 2013, at 12:00 P.M., followed by an Urban Renewal Agency meeting and regular City 
Council meeting at 6:00 P.M. The work session and executive session will be held in Conference Room 
A at City Hall, and the Urban Renewal Agency and City Council meeting will be held in the Council 
Chambers, City Hall, located at 169 S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A copy of the 
agenda follows. 
 
The meeting locations are accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 
hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder 541.574.0613. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION AND EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 Tuesday, September 3, 2013 – 12:00 P.M. 
Conference Room A 

 
I. Lincoln Community Trust Agreement 

II. Additional Work Session Items Not Listed on the Agenda (for this and future work sessions) 
III. Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(a) Regarding City Manager Recruitment 

 
 

 

 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, September 3, 2013 – 6:00 P.M. 

Council Chamber 
 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to 
the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the City Council Chamber. 
Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the Public Comment 
section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter 
is discussed by the City Council. 
 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 

II. Public Comment 



 

 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item 
not listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a 
maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 

 
III. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a 
single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and 
considered separately on request. 

 
A. Approval of minutes from the Urban Renewal Agency Meeting of July 15, 2013 (Hawker) 

 
IV. Discussion Items and Presentations 

Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of 
potential future action items. 
 

A. Consideration of Resolution No. 3646 - South Beach Urban Renewal District Minor 
Amendment No. Ten 

 
V. Adjournment. 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, September 3, 2013  

 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to 
the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the City Council Chamber. 
Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the Public Comment 
section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter 
is discussed by the City Council.  
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

II. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 

III. Additions/Deletions and Approval of Agenda 
 

IV. Public Comment 
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item 
not listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a 
maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to other. 
 

V. Consent Calendar 
The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single 
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered 
separately on request. 
 

A. Approval of City Council Minutes from the Work Session and Regular Meeting of August 
19, 2013 (Hawker) 

B. OLCC Application – Agate Beach Market (Miranda)  
 



 

 

VI. Officer’s Reports 
A. Mayor’s Report  
B. City Manager’s Report 

1. Project Management Report 
 

VII. Discussion Items and Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of 
potential future action items. 

 
A. Hatfield Marine Science Center Update with New Director 

 
VIII. Public Hearings – 7:00 P.M. 

 
A. Public Hearing and Consideration of Ordinance No. 2059-Amending the Newport Zoning 

Code Relating to Manufactured Dwelling Parks and Recreational Vehicles (Tokos) 
 

IX. Action Items 
Citizens will be provided an opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. (Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances.) 

 
A. Consideration of FAA Grant Offer AIP Project Number 3-41-0040-022-2013 (Roman) 
B. Recommendation from Destination Newport Committee for Potential Approval of Award 

for CBS Outdoor Billboard (Smith) 
C. Recommendation from Destination Newport Committee for Potential Approval of Award 

for KEZI Television Commercial Campaign (Smith) 
D. Consideration and Potential Approval of CoastCom Dark Fiber and Conduit Lease 

Agreement (Gross) 
E. Consideration and Potential Approval of HDR Agreement for Engineer of Record Dam 

Consultant (Gross) 
F. Consideration and Potential Approval of Lincoln Community Trust Agreement (Tokos) 
G. Consideration and Potential Approval of Extension of Charter Franchise Agreement 

(Hawker) 
 

X. Council Reports and Comments 
 

XI. Public Comment (Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
 

XII. Adjournment 
 

 
 
  



 



July 15, 2013 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Newport met on the above date in the 
Council Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Beemer, Allen, Roumagoux, 
Saelens, and Busby were present. Swanson and Sawyer were excused. 
 Staff present was Interim City Manager Smith, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Assistant Fire Chief Murphy, Police Chief Miranda, Parks 
and Recreation Director Protiva, and Assistant Finance Director Brown. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following item: 
 
 A. Approval of minutes from the meeting of June 17, 2013. 
 
 MOTION was made by Saelens, seconded by Allen, to approve the consent calendar 
with the change to the minutes as noted by Allen. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
 South Beach Urban Renewal District – Minor Amendment No. Ten. Tokos made a 
PowerPoint presentation noting that the issue before the Agency is a review and 
discussion of draft changes to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan that incorporate 
decisions made during the fiscal year 2013/2014 budgeting process, and an update to the 
revenue and debt service tables since the Agency is entering its second project borrowing 
phase. Tokos reported that the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan was adopted in 1983 
and there have been nine amendments. He stated that there are two capital projects 
budgeted for FY2013/2014, both of which contribute to providing access to property 
purchased by OMSI. The first project relates to the construction of SW 30th Street between 
SW Brant and SW Abalone in the amount of $150,000. The second project is an extension 
of SW Abalone to SW 35th Street/Anchor Way, in the amount of $272,894. Tokos noted 
that this is a portion of the $850,000 that the Plan identifies for this project, and that 
approximately half the project funds are URA funds. The other half will come from 
Investors Twelve at OMSI and other adjoining property owners. 
 Tokos noted that the extension of SW Abalone to SW 35th Street/Anchor Way is 
currently listed as a Phase 3 project, and must be moved to Phase 2 in order for the URA 
to be able to expend the funds this year. He added that the URA has a grant proposal 
before ODOT for the construction of a new intersection at SE 35th Street and Highway 
101, relocation of the signal from SE 32nd Street to SE 35th Street, widening of Ferry Slip 
Road from Ash Street to SE 32nd Street, and the closure of the Highway 101/Ferry Slip 
approach. He stated that bicycle and pedestrian improvements are also included as part 
of this project, and that the total cost is slightly more than $2.6 million, with $1.534 million 
coming from URA funds. 



 Tokos stated that a project extending sewer south to the airport can be shifted to 
Phase 3. He added that funding for the construction of a multi-use path along W Abalone 
from Marine Science Drive to the Abalone extension can be reduced from $325,000 to 
$125,000, since it will likely be constructed as part of the FEMA-funded Safe Haven Hill 
enhancements. He noted that these changes offset the projects added to Phase 2, so that 
the total project cost for this phase is in line with estimated revenues. 
 Tokos stated that for Phase 3, funding for sidewalk work along SW Abalone Street 
between the Abalone Street extension and Highway 101 can be deleted, as a sidewalk 
along the north side of the street will be constructed as part of the Safe Haven Hill project. 
He added that sidewalk on the south side of the road can be deferred until the commercial 
property develops. 
 Tokos explained the difference between minor and major amendments, noting that a 
minor amendment can be accomplished by resolution. Allen suggested that an interim 
Finance Director might have experience in urban renewal issues. Tokos noted that he 
would consult with bond counsel to ensure that the tables are correct. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:17 P.M. 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ______________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Richard Beemer, Chair 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 Agenda Item # IV.A.  
 Meeting Date September 3, 2013  
 

CITY COUNCIL/URBAN RENEWAL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

City of Newport, Oregon 
 
 

Issue/Agenda Title Consideration of Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report   
 
Prepared By: Derrick Tokos Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    
 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL AND URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY:  Consideration of a resolution 
amending the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan to adjust the timing for contributions toward the improvement of SW 
Abalone Street, US 101 and 35th Street, and SE Ferry Slip Road to align with private/public funding partnerships.  The 
financial element of the Plan is also being updated to include actual tax increment collections for the 4-years since 
Substantial Amendment 5 extended the life of the district, and to revise the estimated annual tax increment growth rate 
from 7.1% to a more conservative 3.0%. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Council and Agency adopt the amendments. 
 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move that the City Council and Urban Renewal Agency adopt Resolution 3646, a 
resolution adopting Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  The City of Newport adopted a South Beach Urban Renewal 
Plan and Report (“Plan”), dated September 12, 1983, by Ordinance No. 1341, and Lincoln County did subsequently 
approve the Plan by Resolution 83-26-9.  Nine amendments to the Plan have been previously adopted with the most 
recent being completed in September of 2012. 
 

In March of 2013 the Newport Urban Renewal Agency, City of Newport and Oregon Museum of Science and Industry 
(OMSI) entered into a nonbinding Memorandum of Understanding that outlines how the parties will work together to 
fund and construct road infrastructure needed to support the development of OMSI’s new Outdoor Science Camp in 
South Beach.   SW Abalone Street will serve as the primary access to the OMSI facility until such time as a new 
signalized intersection at SW 35th Street and US 101 is constructed.  This will require that the street be extended from 
its present location opposite SW 29th Street, south to SW Anchor Way.  The project is currently programmed for Phase 
3 of the Plan and it is necessary that it be moved to Phase 2 so that construction can be funded in 2014/2015.  The 
Plan calls for the Agency to contribute roughly 50% of the project costs ($850,000).  OMSI will also contribute funds as 
specified in the MOU. 
 
The City of Newport and Newport Urban Renewal Agency have put together a funding package to construct a new 
signalized intersection at US 101 and 35th Street.  This work will tie together with the extension of SW Abalone Street.  
A portion of the funding will come from the State of Oregon, and the project is being evaluated for inclusion on the 
2015-2018 State Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP).  Should the project be approved for the STIP, then the 
Agency will be responsible for providing $1.54 million in matching funds.  This requires that $390,000 be shifted from 
Phase 1 to Phase 2 so that funding is available should the State schedule the project for construction in 2016.  The 
project scope includes removal of the signal at SW 32nd Street, widening of Ferry Slip Road, closure of the Ferry Slip 
and US 101 intersection, and sidewalk/path construction.  An additional $125,000 has been added to the right-of-way 
acquisition budget to ensure sufficient funds are available to purchase land needed for these improvements. 
 
Shifting additional projects to Phase 2, requires that corresponding adjustments be made to ensure that the total 
contribution of urban renewal funds to Phase 2 and Phase 3 projects is consistent with anticipated borrowing limits.  To 



Page 2 of 2 

that end, a project calling for the construction of a gravity sewer line along US 101 to the airport has been moved from 
Phase 2 to Phase 3.  This $1,000,000 project is unlikely to be needed within the Phase 2 construction window.  Phase 2 
funding has been eliminated for the construction of a multi-use path along the west side of SW Abalone Street, between 
Marine Science Drive and where SW Abalone is to be extended.  This is because the project has been funded through a 
FEMA grant to improve access to the Safe Haven Hill tsunami evacuation assembly area.  Funding for sidewalk 
improvements along the south side of SW Abalone, between the extension and US 101, has been eliminated as a Phase 
3 project because the improvements will not be needed until the adjoining commercial site develops.  At that time the 
city can reasonably require the developer to construct the sidewalk as part of their frontage improvements. 
 
Considering that Phase 1 is now complete, it is appropriate that the financial component of the Plan, Part V, be 
updated.  This Amendment updates tax increment revenue estimates to reflect actual collections for the 4 years since 
Major Amendment Five extended the life of the district to 2027.  It further revises the annual revenue growth rate from 
7.1% to 3.0% and incorporates borrowing for Phase 1 projects and refunding of pre-existing and Phase 1 debt into the 
debt service schedule.  The changes establish that the Agency can achieve its Phase 2 and Phase 3 project objectives 
under a more conservative revenue forecast. 
 
Consistent with ORS 457.085, the Plan and Report must specifically identify projects and provide a financial analysis 
with sufficient information to determine the Plan’s feasibility before urban renewal funds can be expended. The 
proposed amendments address these requirements, but do not alter the major assumptions, purposes and objectives 
underlying the Plan. They, therefore, are properly characterized and adopted as minor plan amendments under Agency 
Resolution No. 91-4, the 3rd amendment to the Plan, Plan Section VIII. 
 
OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None.  The changes are consistent with direction provided during 
the budgeting process, a Memorandum of Understanding between the City, Agency, and the Oregon Museum of 
Science and Industry, and a grant proposal that the City has submitted to Oregon Department of Transportation. 
 

CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  This amendment is consistent with the Council goal to maintain and implement 
economic development strategies. 
 

ATTACHMENT LIST:   

 Proposed Resolution 

 Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report 

 MOU between the City of Newport, Newport Urban Renewal Agency, and OMSI, dated March of 2013 

 Summary of City proposal for state funding to construct the 35th Street and US 101 intersection and related 
improvements 

 

FISCAL NOTES:   Funding adjustments to projects are allocated such that the totals by phase do not exceed revenue 
projections. 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 3646 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A TENTH AMENDMENT TO THE 

SOUTH BEACH URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND REPORT 

 

FINDINGS: 
 

1. City of Newport adopted a South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report (“Plan”), dated 

September 12, 1983, by Ordinance No. 1341, and Lincoln County did subsequently approve 

the Plan by Resolution 83-26-9.  Nine amendments to the Plan have been previously adopted 

with the most recent being dated September 2012. 
 

2. In March of 2013 the Newport Urban Renewal Agency, City of Newport and Oregon Museum 

of Science and Industry (OMSI) entered into a nonbinding Memorandum of Understanding 

that outlines how the parties will work together to fund and construct road infrastructure 

needed to support the development of OMSI’s new Outdoor Science Camp in South Beach. 

 

3. SW Abalone Street will serve as the primary access to the OMSI facility until such time as a 

new signalized intersection at SW 35th Street and US 101 is constructed.  This will require 

that the street be extended from its present location opposite SW 29th Street, south to SW 

Anchor Way.  The project is currently programmed for Phase 3 of the Plan and it is necessary 

that it be moved to Phase 2 so that construction can be funded in 2014/2015.  The Plan calls 

for the Agency to contribute roughly 50% of the project costs ($850,000).  OMSI will also 

contribute funds as specified in the MOU. 

 

4. The City of Newport and Newport Urban Renewal Agency have put together a funding 

package to construct a new signalized intersection at US 101 and SW 35th Street.  This work 

will tie together with the extension of SW Abalone Street.  A portion of the funding will come 

from the State of Oregon, and the project is being evaluated for inclusion on the 2015-2018 

State Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP).  Should the project be approved for the STIP, 

then the Agency will be responsible for providing $1.54 million in matching funds.  This 

requires that $390,000 be shifted from Phase 1 to Phase 2 so that funding is available should 

the State schedule the project for construction in 2016.  The project scope includes removal of 

the signal at SW 32nd Street, widening of Ferry Slip Road, closure of the Ferry Slip and US 

101 intersection, and sidewalk/path construction.  An additional $125,000 has been added to 

the right-of-way acquisition budget to ensure sufficient funds are available to purchase land 

needed for these improvements. 

 

5. Shifting additional projects to Phase 2, requires that corresponding adjustments be made to 

ensure that the total contribution of urban renewal funds to Phase 2 and Phase 3 projects is 

consistent with anticipated borrowing limits.  To that end, a project calling for the construction 

of a gravity sewer line along US 101 to the airport has been moved from Phase 2 to Phase 3.  

This $1,000,000 project is unlikely to be needed within the Phase 2 construction window.  

Phase 2 funding has been eliminated for the construction of a multi-use path along the west 

side of SW Abalone Street, between Marine Science Drive and where SW Abalone is to be 

extended.  This is because the project has been funded through a FEMA grant to improve 

access to the Safe Haven Hill tsunami evacuation assembly area.  Funding for sidewalk 



 

 

improvements along the south side of SW Abalone, between the extension and US 101, has 

been eliminated as a Phase 3 project because the improvements will not be needed until the 

adjoining commercial site develops.  At that time the city can reasonably require the developer 

to construct the sidewalk as part of their frontage improvements. 

 

6. This minor amendment adjusts the timing for when urban renewal funds will be available for 

the SW Abalone Street and STIP projects.  It does not change the scope or nature of the projects 

from what was vetted with the public and adopted in the Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement 

Plan, completed August of 2012, and Newport Transportation System Plan update, completed 

November 2012. 

 

7. Considering that Phase 1 is now complete, it is appropriate that the financial component of the 

Plan, Part V, be updated.  This Amendment updates tax increment revenue estimates to reflect 

actual collections for the 4 years since Major Amendment Five extended the life of the district 

to 2027.  It further revises the annual revenue growth rate from 7.1% to 3.0% and incorporates 

borrowing for Phase 1 projects and refunding of pre-existing and Phase 1 debt into the debt 

service schedule.  The changes establish that the Agency can achieve its Phase 2 and Phase 3 

project objectives under a more conservative revenue forecast. 
 

8. Consistent with ORS 457.085, the Plan and Report must specifically identify projects and 

provide a financial analysis with sufficient information to determine the Plan’s feasibility 

before urban renewal funds can be expended. The proposed amendments address these 

requirements, but do not alter the major assumptions, purposes and objectives underlying the 

Plan. They, therefore, are properly characterized and adopted as minor plan amendments 

under Agency Resolution No. 91-4, the 3rd amendment to the Plan, Plan Section VIII.  
 

9. Changes to the Plan are outlined in detail in this Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach 

Urban Renewal Plan and Report, and are consistent with the requirements for minor 

amendments set forth in Chapter 457 of the Oregon Revised Statutes and the third amendment 

to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report, dated September 11, 1991, by Ordinance 

91-4, which contains the provisions for amending the Plan.  While minor amendments, as 

opposed to Substantial Amendments, are not required to be recorded, a copy of this Minor 

Amendment should nonetheless be filed with the Lincoln County Clerk to maintain a clear 

record of the amendments to the Plan.  Copies of this Minor Amendment should also be 

provided to taxing entities within the district. 
 

10. The Newport City Council and Urban Renewal Agency considered Minor Amendment Ten to 

the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report at a public meeting on September 3, 2013 

and voted to approve the Tenth Amendment. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report is hereby 

adopted as attached in Exhibit A. 
 

Section 2.  The Executive Director of the Newport Urban Renewal Agency is hereby directed to 

record Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report with the 



 

 

Lincoln County Clerk and shall distribute a copy of the adopted document to the governing bodies 

of the taxing entities within the district. 
 

Section 3.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon passage. 
 

Adopted by the Newport City Council and the Newport City Council acting as the Newport 

Urban Renewal Agency on ________________, 2013. 

 

Signed on _________________, 2013. 
 

 

________________________________ 

Sandra Roumagoux 

Mayor 
 

 

________________________________ 

Richard Beemer 

Chair, Newport Urban Renewal Agency 

 

 

ATTEST:          

 

__________________________  

City Recorder        



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
MINOR AMENDMENT TEN TO THE SOUTH BEACH URBAN 

RENEWAL PLAN AND REPORT 
 

Exhibit A, City of Newport Resolution No. 3646 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

August, 2013 
 
. 
 
 
 

An Update of the Sixth Amendment 
Prepared by Consultants: 

 
 

The Benkendorf Associates Corp. Johnson Reid, LLC 
909 SW St. Clair, Suite 9 319 SW Washington, Suite 1020 
Portland, Oregon 97205 Portland, Oregon 97204 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     1                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

MINOR AMENDMENT IX  URBAN RENEWAL PLAN & REPORT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENTS. 2 

 

II. URBAN RENEWAL REPORT MINOR AMENDMENT X 4 

 

III. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PROJECTS TO BE UNDERTAKEN WITH THE 

AMENDMENT AND THE EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA 5 

 

IV. PROJECT COSTS AND TIMING 6 

  A.  PROJECTS PHASES 6 

  B.  PROJECTS AND COST ESTIMATES 7 

  C. ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE 10 

 

V. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AMENDMENT 11 

  A.  ANTICIPATED TAX INCREMENT FUNDS 11 

  B.  ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED UNDER ORS 457 12 

  C.  ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEPTEDNESS WILL BE RETIRED 14 

  D.  PROJECT REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 14 

  E.  STATEMENT OF FISCAL IMPACT ON OTHER JURISDICTIONS UNDER ORS  

   457.420-457.440 14 

  F.  IMPACTS ON TAXPAYERS 17 

 

APPENDIX   

 NOAA MARINE OPERATIONS CENTER TAX REVENUE IMPORTS 18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     2                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

I. URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 

The South Beach Urban Renewal Plan was adopted in 1983. Since its adoption, 
the Urban Renewal Agency has executed five minor (Amendments 3, 6, 7, 8, and 
9) and four substantial amendments (1, 2, 4 and 5). The purpose and date of 
adoption for each amendment is noted below.  
 
Amendment I  Newport Urban Renewal Agency  April 8, 1987 
   Lincoln County Commission  Feb 25, 1987 
 
Provides a project outline for: 

 Site acquisition of the public viewing aquarium, 
 Land acquisition for Highway 101 access roads.   
 Site acquisition and construction of the Wastewater Treatment 
      Plant 
 Airport frontage road improvements, and  
 Site acquisition and construction of an Exhibition Building.  

 
Amendment II Newport Urban Renewal Agency  October 14, 1987  

Lincoln County Commission      September 16, 1987 
 
Deletes two land areas from the District:  

 South Beach State Park/South Jetty area (411.16 acres)  
 Newport Airport and a portion of forested land north of the airport. (565.14 

acres)  
 Total area removed from the Urban Renewal District: 976.30 acres  

 
Amendment III (Minor) Newport Urban Renewal Agency  

September 11, 1991 
   
Proposes to finance the Plan through tax increment financing and that no bonded 
indebtedness shall be issued after December 31 2010. Defines Substantial 
Amendment as equivalent to a Major Amendment and defines Minor Amendments. 
 
Amendment IV Newport Urban Renewal Agency  May 13, 1998 

Lincoln County Commission         April 29, 1998 
 
Established a maximum level of indebtedness in the amount of $38,750,000 and 
selected Option “One” for the method to collect ad valorem property taxes 
 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     3                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

Amendment V Newport Urban Renewal Agency   February 2, 2009 
   Lincoln County Commission          January 14, 2009 
 

The purpose of Substantial Amendment V was to reduce or eliminate the blighted 
conditions in the district and extend the effective period of the plan from 2010 to 
2020. The blighted conditions in the district include: 
 

 Sub-Standard street improvements, rights of way and traffic signalization 
and management.  

 Incomplete pedestrian/bicycle circulation systems and Tsunami evacuation 
routes.  

 Inadequate water storage capacity and distribution lines.  
 Under sized or absent sanitary sewer collection service lines. 
 Incomplete winter storm water management systems 
 Inadequate neighborhood recreation facilities and open space.  

 

New projects were identified based on more recent planning and engineering 
plans. A new revenue forecast, revenue bond strategy and phased implementation 
program was prepared.   
 

Amendment VI (Minor) Newport Urban Renewal Agency May 3, 2010 
   
Revised the phasing and financing of the projects in Substantial Amendment 5 to 
improve ingress and egress to the new NOAA Pacific Marine Operations Center 
and adjacent existing attractions.  The amendment also included revisions to the 
tax increment revenue forecast, as well as a new schedule of existing debt service 
obligation resulting from refinancing said debt. 
 

Amendment VII (Minor) Newport Urban Renewal Agency Nov. 1, 2010 
 
Amendment VII identified the acquisition of a natural coastal gully and foredune 
area adjacent to South Beach State Park as a specific Neighborhood Park/Open 
Space Site acquisition project.  The property is roughly 2.5 acre in size and 
includes portions of Blocks 7, 8, 10, 11 and 15 of the Waggoner’s Addition to South 
Beach subdivision. 
 

Amendment VIII (Minor) Newport Urban Renewal Agency Oct. 17, 2011 
 

Shifted $200,000 in funding for tsunami evacuation route improvements from 
Phase 2 to Phase 1 and identifies Safe Haven Hill as a specific project.  To avoid 
impacting revenue estimates for each Phase, $200,000 of funds programmed for 
right-of-way acquisition was shifted from Phase 1 to Phase 2. 
 

Amendment IX (Minor) Newport Urban Renewal Agency Sept. 17, 2012 
 

Incorporated Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement Plan Tier 1 and Tier 2 priority 
projects into Phases 2 and 3.  Updated descriptions and cost estimates for 
intersection improvements at US 101 and 32nd Street, US 101 and 35th Street, US 
101 and 40th Street, and US 101 and 50th Street, along with shared use 
path/sidewalk improvements to Ferry Slip Road to align with adopted amendments 
to the Newport Transportation System Plan.  Shifted a portion of planned sidewalk 
work for SW Abalone from Phase 3 to Phase 2. 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     4                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

II. URBAN RENEWAL REPORT MINOR AMENDMENT X 

 

In March of 2013 the Newport Urban Renewal Agency, City of Newport and 
Oregon Museum of Science and Industry (OMSI) entered into a nonbinding 
Memorandum of Understanding that outlines how the parties will work together to 
fund and construct road infrastructure needed to support the development of a new 
Outdoor Science Camp in South Beach.  One of the roads, SW Abalone Street, 
will serve as the primary access to the facility until such time as a new signalized 
intersection at SW 35th and US 101 is constructed.  Construction of SW Abalone 
from SW 29th to SW Anchor Way, the segment needed to access the OMSI 
property, is programmed for Phase 3 of the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan.  
This amendment moves the project to Phase 2 so that construction can be funded 
in 2014/2015.  The Plan calls for the Agency to contribute roughly 50% of the 
project costs ($850,000).  OMSI will also contribute funds as specified in the MOU. 
 

The City of Newport and Newport Urban Renewal Agency have put together a 
funding package to construct a new signalized intersection at US 101 and SW 35th 
Street.  This work will tie together with the extension of SW Abalone Street.  A 
portion of the funding will come from the State of Oregon, and the project is 
currently being evaluated for inclusion on the 2015-2018 State Transportation 
Improvement Plan (STIP).  Should the project be approved for the STIP, then the 
Agency will be responsible for providing $1.54 million in matching funds.  This 
requires that $390,000 be shifted from Phase 1 to Phase 2 so that funding is 
available should the State schedule the project for construction in 2016.  The 
project scope includes removal of the signal at SW 32ND Street, widening of Ferry 
Slip Road, closure of the Ferry Slip and US 101 intersection, and sidewalk/path 
construction.  An additional $125,000 has been added to the right-of-way 
acquisition budget to ensure sufficient funds are available to purchase land needed 
for these improvements. 
 

A project to construct a gravity sewer line along US 101 to the airport has been 
moved from Phase 2 to Phase 3.  It is unlikely that the project will be needed within 
the Phase 2 construction window.  Phase 2 funding has been eliminated for the 
construction of a multi-use path along the west side of SW Abalone Street, 
between Marine Science Drive and where SW Abalone is to be extended.  This is 
because the project has been funded through a FEMA grant to improve access to 
the Safe Haven Hill tsunami evacuation assembly area.  Funding for sidewalk 
improvements along the south side of SW Abalone, between the extension and 
US 101, has been eliminated as a Phase 3 project because the improvements will 
not be needed until the adjoining commercial site develops.  At that time the city 
can reasonably require the developer to construct the sidewalk as part of their  
frontage improvements.  In sum, these changes balance the Phase 2 and Phase 
3 project lists so that they are consistent with anticipated borrowing limits. 
 

Details of the above described projects are contained in the Coho/Brant 
Infrastructure Refinement Plan completed August of 2012. That plan was funded 
by the Agency and included substantial public engagement to identify the nature 
and scope of the needed improvements. 
 

Minor Amendment X revises the financial component of the Plan (Part V) to reflect 
actual collections for the first 4 years and to depict a more conservative 3.0% tax 
increment growth rate.  Final figures for Phase 1 borrowing and refunding are 
included in Table V-2 and the debt service schedule has been updated. 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     5                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

III. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PROJECTS TO BE UNDERTAKEN WITH  

THE AMENDMENT AND THE EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA 

The physical and economic conditions described in the original Environmental 
Assessment and the Supplemental Report have improved within the past twenty-
five (25) years. However, many areas remain deficient relative to vehicular and 
pedestrian circulation, utility services, storm water management, and public 
recreation and open space.  
 
The amendments address these deficiencies by aligning Phase 2 funding with road 
infrastructure projects where the Agency has willing financial partners thus 
leveraging limited resources.  In extending SW Abalone Street, the Agency, in 
partnership with OMSI, is facilitating the construction of an Outdoor Science Camp 
that will revitalize an underdeveloped area and add to the growing marine research 
and education/industrial presence in the community.  Construction of the SW 35th 
Street and US 101 intersection and the relocation of the signal from SW 32nd Street 
and US 101 to SW 35th Street will improve traffic flow on US 101 enhancing access 
to area businesses.  This partnership with the State will also complete the street 
and bike/pedestrian network in this portion of South Beach creating opportunities 
for privately owned parcels to develop or redevelop in a manner that enhances the 
overall tax base. 
 
Updates to Part V of the Plan provide policymakers more accurate information with 
which to gauge the financial health of the urban renewal district.  Also, taking a 
more conservative approach to estimating anticipated tax increment revenues 
makes it more likely that the Agency will be able to adhere to the project borrowing 
schedule outlined in the Plan. 

 

 

 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     6                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

IV.  PROJECT COSTS AND TIMING 

A. PROJECT PHASES 

The projects proposed to implement the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan are 
organized into three phases consistent with Substantial Amendment 5.  Minor 
Amendments 6, 7, 8, and 9 refined the listed projects and made adjustments to the 
timing of the work.  Minor Amendment X makes further refinements and 
adjustments, as follows: 
 
1. Phase 1 – 2009/12 

 
Funding for street improvements along SE 35th Street and Ferry Slip Road, in the 
amount of $390,000, was shifted from Phase 1 to Phase 2 where the larger portion 
of the funding for that project is located.  Costs for the Highway 101, 40th to 50th 
Street sewer line project were reduced by $123,000 to reflect actual expenditures. 
 
2. Phase 2 – 2013/16 

 
Funding for construction of 35th Street and US 101 intersection improvements, 
relocation of the 32nd Street signal to 35th Street, and the widening of Ferry Slip 
Road is increased from $1,000,000 to $1,390,000 to reflect a consolidation of the 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 projects.  Funding for the extension of a shared use path 
along the west side of SW Abalone, between Marine Science Drive and the 
Abalone extension is eliminated because that project is being funded through a 
FEMA grant.  Funds for Phase 2 right-of-way acquisition have been increased from 
$250,000 to $375,000.  Construction of SW Abalone Street from SW 29th Street to 
Anchor Way is a project that has been shifted from Phase 3 to Phase 2, with the 
Urban Renewal contribution remaining unchanged at $850,000.  Planned 
extension of a gravity sewer line south to the airport, at $1,000,000 has been 
moved to Phase 3. 
 
3. Phase 3 – 2017/20 

 
Funding for the extension of a shared use path on the south side of SW Abalone 
Street from the Abalone extension east to US 101 has been eliminated as that is 
an improvement that would be developer funded when the adjoining commercial 
site is improved.  Construction of SW Abalone Street from SW 29th Street to Anchor 
Way is moved to Phase 2 and the US 101 gravity sewer line extension to the airport 
has been moved into this phase, from Phase 2. 

 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     7                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

B. PROJECTS AND COST ESTIMATES 

      1.  Phase 1 – 2009/12 

 
        PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY                        Cost Estimate    URA Portion 

     Streets 
Ash St. Design & Construct  425,000* 425,000* 
Coho/Brant Area – Plan and Design 70,000* 70,000* 
Coho/Brant Area – Construct 850,000 550,000 
SE 35th & Ferry Slip Road 
(Shifted to Phase 2) 

464,000 0 

Marine Science Drive 2,304,000 1,138,000 
Realign Rogue and 25th 448,000 448,000 
Pacific Way Improvements 251,000 251,000 

 
Sidewalks 

OSU Dr. to Marine Sc. Dr. 70,000 0 
OSU Dr. (Abalone to Ferry Slip) 67,500 67,500 

 
Acquisition 

TSP Projects - right of way 300,000 150,000 
 
                                                            UTILITIES 
     Water 

Hwy 101 – 40th to 50t 320,000* 320,000* 
Sanitary Sewer line-same ROW 600,000 477,000 

 
                                                            PUBLIC AMENITIES 

Neighborhood Park/Open Space Site 
Acquisition (OPRD Grant $150,000) 

275,000 125,000 

Purchase of 2.5 acre coastal gully 
& foredune site adjacent to  South 
Beach State Park 

225,000 225,000 

 
                                                            ACQUISITION/DEVELOPMENT                                   0         0 
                                                            COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS        0         0 
 

        SPECIAL PROJECT IDEAS 
Wetland Planning/Mitigation Bank 200,000 200,000 
Trails – easement acquisitions 100,000 100,000 
South Jetty Trail 317,000 317,000 

Tsunami Evacuation Route 557,000 200,000 

Improvements for Safe Haven Hill   
 

        Total:                      $7,028,500      $4,248,500 
 
                                                            Revenue Estimate (7.1% growth)                     $4,774,000 

 
 

* These projects were budgeted at the time of Substantial Amendment No. 5 and have never been included in the 
revenue estimates. 
 
Note:  Figures in bold are revisions proposed with this amendment. Projects shown in strikeout have been 
completed.  Urban renewal funds for projects depicted in italics have been budgeted for expenditure.  It is unlikely 
that any other listed Phase 1 projects will be funded. 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     8                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

2.  Phase 2 – 2013/16 

 

        PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY         Cost Estimate           UR Portion  
     Streets 

35th St. – 101 to Ferry Slip Road 2,167,000 1,390,000 

Commercial Street Prototype, relocate 
32nd Street Signal, widen Ferry Slip 
(Coho/Brant Projects #10 and #11) 
(Includes Phase 1 and Phase 2 funds) 

  

Anchor Way 35th to 40th 0 0 
   

Sidewalks 
Ferry Slip Rd - 29th to Marine Science 
Dr. (Shared use path and Sidewalk, SB 
Peninsula Refinement Plan) 

104,000 104,000 

SW Abalone – Marine Science Dr. to 
Abalone extension 
(Coho/Brant Project #13A) 

325,000 0 

 

Acquisition/Development 
TSP Projects - right of way 450,000 375,000 

 

Existing Street/ROW improvements 
including: paving, storm water, 
pedestrian/bicycle paths and landscaping: 

  

SW Abalone St – SW 29th to Anchor 
Way (Coho/Brant Project #8 (Moved 
from Phase 3)) 

1,773,000 850,000 

SW 27th – SW Brant to SW Abalone 
(Coho/Brant Project #2A) 

145,000 145,000 

SW 30th – SW Brant to SW Abalone 
(Coho/Brant Project #5) 

311,000 150,000 

SW Brant – SW 27th to SW 30th 
(Coho Brant Project #7) 

707,000 707,000 

SE Ferry Slip Rd – 32nd to Ash 144,000 144,000 
Match for LIDs formed to implement Tier 
2 and Tier 3 Coho/Brant improvements 

150,000 150,000 

SW Abalone & SW 35th St. Stormwater 
Improvements (Coho/Brant Project #18) 

84,000 42,000 

SW 26th St. and SW Brant St. 
Stormwater Improvements (Coho/Brant 
Project #17) 

84,000 84,000 

 

                                                           UTILITIES 
Sewer 

SW 26th Street Sanitary Lift Station 
Upgrade (Coho/Brant Project #16) 

110,000 110,000 

Utility Lines 
Bury existing/new lines underground 300,000 300,000 

 

                                                           PUBLIC AMENITIES 
Neighborhood Park Development 350,000 0 
Neighborhood Park/Open Space/Trail 200,000 200,000 
Acquisition or Development   

 

                                                           ACQUISITION/DEVELOPMENT  
Strategic Site Acquisition for Re-Use 250,000 100,000 
Site Prep for Re-Use 100,000 100,000 
Strategic Site Acquisition for Economic 500,000 300,000 
Development, Community Facilities   
and Affordable Housing   

 

                                                            SPECIAL PROJECT IDEAS  
Wetland Mitigation Bank 100,000 100,000 

 

            Total:                                         $8,354,000           $5,351,000 
 

        Revenue Estimate (3.0% growth)              $5,370,000 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     9                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

3.  Phase 3 – 2017/20 

 
       PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY           Cost Estimate           UR Portion 

     Streets 
40th and 101 Signal and Intersection 
Improvements (Moved from Phase II) 

$2,624,000 $1,000,000 

50th and 101 Intersection Improvements 1,970,000 400,000 
 

Sidewalks    
Abalone St. – Abalone extension to US 
101 (Coho/Brant Project #13B) 

165,000 0 

35th St. – Ferry Slip to estuary turn) 400,000 400,000 
 

Acquisition/Development 250,000 0 
 

Existing Street/ROW improvements including:  
paving, storm water, pedestrian/bicycle  
paths and landscaping 

Match for LIDs formed to implement Tier 2 
and Tier 3 Coho/Brant improvements 

200,000 200,000 

  

       UTILITIES 
     Water 

12” Bay Under-crossing Pipeline 995,000 795,000 
King Ridge Reservoir (15% of Cost) 196,200 0 

 

Sewer 
101 Gravity line south to Airport 
(Moved from Phase 2) 

1,000,000 1,000,000 

Henderson Creek Piping 280,000 280,000 
Henderson Creek Lift Station 323,000 323,200 

 

Storm 
Project 5a – Redirect Drainage 1,480,000 1,480,000 

 

Utility Lines 
Bury existing/new lines underground 200,000 200,000 

 

      PUBLIC AMENITIES        
Street Tree and Open Space Planting 100,000 100,000 
Street Furniture 50,000 50,000 

 

Gateway to South Beach 700,000 100,000 
Neighborhood Park/Open Space 200,000 200,000 
Acquisition   

 

                                                          COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS 
Fund Storefront Facade Loan/Grant 
Program 

100,000 100,000 

 

      SPECIAL PROJECT IDEAS 
Trails – Acquire and Develop 100,000 100,000 

Coastal Gully Open Space 
Improvements 
(Coho/Brant Project #19) 

200,000 200,000 

SW Coho St, SW 29th St to Jetty Way 
(Coho/Brant Project #12) 

100,000 100,000 

Tsunami Evacuation Route   
Improvements 200,000 200,000 
Wetland Mitigation Bank 100,000 100,000 

 
       Total:          $12,706,200            $7,328,200 

 
       Revenue Estimate (3.0% growth)                         $7,360,000 

 
       Grand Total for Phases 1 through 3 Projects                                            $16,927,700 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     10                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

C. ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE 

The projects planned to be accomplished within the next ten years are expected 
to be awarded no later than December 31, 2020 and completed in a timely manner. 
The projects are divided in to three phases. The agency may adjust the design and 
construction of specific projects depending on the needs of the community and the 
urban renewal district as a whole.  
 
 Phase 1 2009-2012 
 Phase 2 2013-2016 
 Phase 3 2017-2020 
 
The three phases will enable the agency to plan and implement the financial plan 
in Section V.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     11                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

V.  FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AMENDMENT 

A. ANTICIPATED TAX INCREMENT FUNDS 

As stated in Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 457 (ORS 457), tax increment funds 

are anticipated from growth in assessed value within the Area over the course of 

the Plan. Growth in assessed value is projected to occur through appreciation in 

property values (“appreciation percentage”), limited to no more than three percent 

annually, and through changes in property that add value that are “excepted” from 

the three percent limit. Such “exception value” results from factors such as 

subdivision or rezoning of land and from construction of improvements.  
 

Table V-1 shows projections of growth in tax increment funds (i.e. expected tax 

increment revenue). The projections are based on reasonable expectations of 

near-term future development and utilize conservative assumptions about 

residential and commercial development that is likely to occur in the South Beach 

Urban Renewal District.  Projections in Substantial Amendment 5 assumed 

average annual growth of 7.1%, with a temporary 75% reduction due to the 

slowdown in residential development.  With the 10th Minor Amendment, a 3.0% 

average growth rate is assumed through 2027 with actual figures being used 

through fiscal year 2012-2013.  The projections also assume a tax collection rate 

of 94.2%. 
 

Table V-1: 

Urban Renewal Area Tax Increment Revenue Estimates 
 

 
Year 

SB-URD Annual 
Revenue 

SB-URD Cumulative 
Revenue 

 2009-10 $1,782,653 $1,782,653 

 2010-11 $1,848,185 $3,630,838 

 2011-12 $1,808,906 $5,439,744 

 2012-13 $1,891,500 $7,331,244 

 2013-14 $1,948,245 $9,279,489 

 2014-15 $2,006,692 $11,286,181 

 2015-16 $2,066,893 $13,353,074 

 2016-17 $2,128,900 $15,481,974 

 2017-18 $2,192,767 $17,674,741 

 2018-19 $2,258,550 $19,933,291 

 2019-20 $2,326,307 $22,259,598 

 2020-21 $2,396,096 $24,655,694 

 2021-22 $2,467,979 $27,123,673 

 2022-23 $2,542,018 $29,665,691 

 2023-24 $2,618,279 $32,283,970 

 2024-25 $2,696,827 $34,980,797 

 2025-26 $2,777,732 $37,758,529 

 2026-27 $2,861,064 $40,619,593 

 SOURCE: Lincoln County Assessor's Office and City of Newport 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     12                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

 

Unlike many urban renewal districts in Oregon, the SB-URD geographically spans 

six distinct property tax codes rather than one. For instance, the vast majority of 

assessed value in the District is within City of Newport jurisdiction (85%), but that 

portion only represents two of the six tax codes and combinations of local public 

service providers. Therefore, there are six different Measure 50 SB-URD tax code 

rates and six different projected assessed values.  The tax increment projections 

are based on the combined value of the property tax codes and applicable tax 

rates for each affected taxing jurisdiction. 

 

B. ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED UNDER ORS 457 

The total expected tax increment revenue that is not committed to previous 

incurred debt, through 2027, is $26,721,011.  This revenue will be used to repay 

indebtedness incurred to finance Phase 2 and Phase 3 projects in this Plan 

Amendment.  Table V-2 below shows the expected increment revenue and debt 

service schedule. Since Phase 1 is complete its debt service has been added to 

the existing debt service column.  That is, columns “B” and “D” from the prior 

version of this table have been merged.  Fiscal years 2014-15 and 2019-20, when 

the District is scheduled to incur debt for Phase 2 and Phase 3 projects, are 

highlighted. 

 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     13                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

Table V-2: 

Projected Revenues, Debt Service and Other Expenditures 

  (A) (B & D) (E) (F) (G) (H) (I) 

  

URA 
Incremental 
Revenue 3% 

Total Existing 
Debt Service 

Remaining 
Uncommitted 

Revenue 
Phase II               

Debt Service 

Remaining 
Uncommitted 

Revenue 
Phase III               

Debt Service 

Remaining 
Uncommitted 

Revenue 

2010-11 $1,848,185  $1,314,972  ($480,394)  ($480,394)  ($480,394) 

2011-12 $1,808,906  $1,339,603  ($108,106)  ($108,106)  ($108,106) 

2012-13 $1,891,500  $1,332,148  $296,039   $296,039   $296,039  

2013-14 $1,948,245  $1,376,405  $921,331   $921,331   $921,331  

2014-15 $2,006,692  $1,215,078  $1,588,657  $729,700  $321,892   $321,892  

2015-16 $2,066,893  $1,221,148  $2,262,910  $729,700  $1,049,851   $1,049,851  

2016-17 $2,128,900  $1,270,243  $2,909,491  $729,700  $1,750,139   $1,750,139  

2017-18 $2,192,767  $1,243,638  $3,559,315  $729,700  $2,453,669   $2,453,669  

2018-19 $2,258,550  $1,097,800  $4,923,319  $729,700  $3,871,380   $3,871,380  

2019-20 $2,326,307  $763,550  $6,569,626  $729,700  $5,571,393  $1,249,993  $3,585,391  

2020-21 $2,396,096  $545,075  $8,217,073  $729,700  $7,272,547  $1,249,993  $5,360,146  

2021-22 $2,467,979  $609,675  $9,972,659  $729,700  $9,081,839  $1,249,993  $7,243,039  

2022-23 $2,542,018  $569,250  $12,367,240  $729,700  $11,530,127  $1,249,993  $9,764,928  

2023-24 $2,618,279    $14,833,659  $729,700  $14,103,959  $1,249,993  $12,412,361  

2024-25 $2,696,827    $17,374,070   $17,374,070  $1,249,993  $15,756,073  

2025-26 $2,777,732    $19,990,694   $19,990,694  $1,249,993  $18,446,297  

2026-27 $2,861,064    $22,685,816    $22,685,816  $1,249,993  $21,215,021  

 Term of Loan (Years)     10        

 Total Amount Borrowed     $5,370,656    $7,360,087    
 

Individual columns of financial projections in Table V-2 are labeled and described as 

follows: 

(A)  Annual Tax increment estimated to be collected by South Beach URA. Years 2010-11 
and 2011-12 are actual tax increment received; Year 2012-13 is budgeted tax 
increment; Balance of years are increased at the conservative rate of 3% per year. 

(B & D)  Current Existing Debt Service, including Phase I Debt Service * 

(E)  Revenue remaining after existing debt service obligation and reserve is met. ** 

(F)  New annual debt service to adequately fund projects identified in Phase II of South 
Beach URA Plan document, schedule to begin in FY 2014-15 

(G)  Revenue remaining after existing debt service obligation and reserve is met, Phase II 
debt service obligation and reserve requirements are met 

(H)  New annual debt service to adequately fund projects identified in Phase III of South 
Beach URA Plan document, schedule to begin in FY 2019-20 

(I)  Revenue remaining after existing debt service obligation and reserve is met, Phase II  
and Phase III debt service obligation and reserve requirements are met 

*  Phase I borrowing original plan to borrow $4.773,611, the SB URA actually only borrowed $2.1 
Million and refunded existing debt to a lower rate a savings of $558,561 over the life of the debt.  
Also the SB Construction Fund had a beginning Fund balance FY 2010-11 of $2,177,128, this is 
prior to the $2.1 Mil borrowing  

**  SB URA Debt Fund beginning Fund Balance for FY 2010-11 was $743,331, as well as the loan 
reserves amount, there was never a negative fund balance. 

 

Based on projections in Table V-2, revenues are expected to be sufficient to enable 

retirement of planned debt as early as FY 2023-24. To the extent that additional 

debt is taken on by the District in later years for circumstances currently unseen, 

substantial unobligated revenues expressed in Column (I) of Table V-2 would be 

reduced accordingly and retirement of all debt would be delayed to no later than 

FY 2026-27. 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     14                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

C. ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEBTEDNESS WILL BE RETIRED 

 

Table V-2 shows the anticipated schedule debt payment for existing debt and the 

Plan Amendment.  All debts are scheduled to be retired by year 2027, though 

anticipated incremental revenues would be sufficient to retire all planned debt as 

early as fiscal year 2023-2024. 

 

D. PROJECTED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

 

Table V-2 shows the annual anticipated revenues and expenditures for the Plan 

Amendment. The revenues result from tax increment revenue that is not already 

committed to financing existing debt.  The total debt service for existing debt is 

$13,898,582.  Expenditures are based on potential debt schedules to finance the 

projects described in Phases 2 and 3 of Section IV of this Plan Amendment.  The 

total project costs and the Plan’s share of those costs are also shown in Section 

V.  For conservative revenue estimates, in addition to incremental tax revenues 

the District is assumed to realize 3% annual return on uncommitted revenues 

carried forward to the subsequent fiscal year. 

 

E. STATEMENT OF FISCAL IMPACT ON OTHER JURISDICTIONS UNDER ORS 

457.420-457.440 

 

The use of tax increment financing creates a fiscal impact on the taxing districts 

(e.g. the City, the County, the Community College) that levy taxes within the Area. 

This impact consists of those districts foregoing the taxes that would have been 

levied on the increase in assessed value within the Area while tax increment 

financing is in effect.  

 

In order to project these impacts, it is necessary to estimate the growth in assessed 

value that would have occurred without the Plan. The Plan’s projects are 

anticipated to create assessed value growth that would not occur but for the Plan. 

Therefore the taxes that are foregone are those resulting from projected 

development without the public improvements developed under the Plan. It should 

be noted that revenue estimates in Tables V-1 and V-2 are lower than projections 

in Table V-3 due to realized property tax collection loss at approximately 6%.  

 

Table V-3 shows the revenues foregone by the affected taxing districts, through 

2027. The revenues foregone by the taxing districts equal their permanent tax 

rates times the projected incremental assessed value, plus the tax rates 

associated with general obligation bonds approved by voters before October 2001 

times the bonding district’s incremental assessed value. Note that the property tax 

revenues foregone by the Lincoln County School District do not result in revenue 



 

Minor Amendment Ten to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                     15                                 An Update of the Sixth Amendment Prepared 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                      by Benkendorf Associates Corp. May, 2010 

 

losses to the School District because of the system of state funding of K-12 

education. The impacts are shown to illustrate what they would be if the school 

funding system is materially changed and property tax revenues become directly 

relevant.  With Minor Amendment X, Table V-3 was amended to reflect a more 

conservative 3.0% annual increase in increment revenue. 

 

The tax increment revenues terminate after 2027, and the additional revenues that 

are available to these taxing districts are projected to repay the districts for 

revenues foregone during the Plan. 

 
 



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                                16                                                                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   May, 2010 

 

 

Table V-3: 

Projected Property Tax Revenues Foregone 

Taxing Districts 

   City of Newport   Lincoln County School   Lincoln County  
 Newport 

RFPD  

 Pacific 
Community 

Hospital  

 Lincoln 
Cnty 

Library  

 Oregon Coast 
Community 

College  
 Lincoln Cnty 

Transportation  

 Lincoln 
Cnty 

Extension  

 Linn-
Benton- 

Lincoln ESD  
 Port of       
Newport  

 Water 
- Seal     
Rock    

  Permanent      Permanent    Permanent    Permanent   Permanent  
 

Permanent   Permanent   Permanent   Permanent   Permanent  
 

Permanent  

 
Permane

nt    

   Rate   GO Bond   GO Bond   Rate   GO Bond   Rate   GO Bond   Rate   Rate   Rate   Rate   Rate   Rate   Rate   Rate   Rate    

Fiscal 
Year 5.5938 0.4348 0.9240 4.9092 0.7894 2.8202 0.0377 0.9108 0.3625 0.2465 0.1757 0.0974 0.0451 0.3049 0.0609 0.0126 

Total Tax 
Revenue 

2009-10 $557,970 $43,318 $92,163 $548,701 $88,241 $315,173 $4,278 $10,874 $40,466 $3,031 $19,609 $10,874 $4,991 $34,049 $6,774 $2,139 $1,782,653 

2010-11 $579,776 $45,096 $95,736 $570,165 $91,670 $327,498 $0 $11,459 $42,139 $3,142 $20,330 $11,274 $5,175 $35,485 $7,023 $2,218 $1,848,185 

2011-12 $567,454 $44,137 $93,701 $558,048 $89,722 $320,538 $0 $11,215 $41,243 $3,075 $19,898 $11,034 $5,065 $34,731 $6,874 $2,171 $1,808,906 

2012-13 $640,651 $0 $105,735 $629,491 $0 $361,655 $0 $13,619 $46,531 $3,594 $22,509 $12,484 $5,864 $39,154 $7,755 $2,459 $1,891,500 

2013-14 $659,871 $0 $108,907 $648,376 $0 $372,504 $0 $14,027 $47,927 $3,702 $23,184 $12,858 $6,040 $40,329 $7,988 $2,533 $1,948,245 

2014-15 $679,667 $0 $112,174 $667,827 $0 $383,680 $0 $14,448 $49,365 $3,813 $23,880 $13,244 $6,221 $41,539 $8,227 $2,609 $2,006,692 

2015-16 $700,057 $0 $115,539 $687,862 $0 $395,190 $0 $14,882 $50,846 $3,927 $24,596 $13,641 $6,407 $42,785 $8,474 $2,687 $2,066,893 

2016-17 $721,058 $0 $119,006 $708,498 $0 $407,046 $0 $15,328 $52,371 $4,045 $25,334 $14,051 $6,600 $44,068 $8,728 $2,768 $2,128,900 

2017-18 $742,690 $0 $122,576 $729,753 $0 $419,257 $0 $15,788 $53,942 $4,166 $26,094 $14,472 $6,798 $45,390 $8,990 $2,851 $2,192,767 

2018-19 $764,971 $0 $126,253 $751,645 $0 $431,835 $0 $16,262 $55,560 $4,291 $26,877 $14,906 $7,002 $46,752 $9,260 $2,936 $2,258,550 

2019-20 $834,446 $0 $0 $819,093 $0 $470,612 $0 $18,843 $60,484 $5,118 $29,311 $16,284 $7,444 $50,946 $10,236 $3,489 $2,326,307 

2020-21 $859,480 $0 $0 $843,665 $0 $484,730 $0 $19,408 $62,298 $5,271 $30,191 $16,773 $7,668 $52,475 $10,543 $3,594 $2,396,096 

2021-22 $885,264 $0 $0 $868,975 $0 $499,272 $0 $19,991 $64,167 $5,430 $31,097 $17,276 $7,898 $54,049 $10,859 $3,702 $2,467,979 

2022-23 $911,822 $0 $0 $895,045 $0 $514,250 $0 $20,590 $66,092 $5,592 $32,029 $17,794 $8,134 $55,670 $11,185 $3,813 $2,542,018 

2023-24 $939,177 $0 $0 $921,896 $0 $529,678 $0 $21,208 $68,075 $5,760 $32,990 $18,328 $8,378 $57,340 $11,520 $3,927 $2,618,279 

2024-25 $967,352 $0 $0 $949,553 $0 $545,568 $0 $21,844 $70,118 $5,933 $33,980 $18,878 $8,630 $59,061 $11,866 $4,045 $2,696,827 

2025-26 $996,372 $0 $0 $978,039 $0 $561,935 $0 $22,500 $72,221 $6,111 $34,999 $19,444 $8,889 $60,832 $12,222 $4,167 $2,777,732 

2026-27 
$1,026,26

4 $0 $0 
$1,007,38

1 $0 $578,793 $0 $23,175 $74,388 $6,294 $36,049 $20,027 $9,155 $62,657 $12,589 $4,292 $2,861,064 
                  

 



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                        17                                                   The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                          May, 2010 

F. IMPACTS ON TAXPAYERS 

 

This amendment to the phasing and financing of projects in Substantial 

Amendment 5, and subsequent amendments will not change the SB-URD’s impact 

on taxpayers.  General obligation bonds approved by voters before October 2001 

are subject to the division of tax.  There are five such general obligation bonds in 

the SB-URD.  They are all scheduled to retire by 2019, prior to the previously 

scheduled sunset of the SB-URD.  These bonds will continue to be subject to the 

division of tax, regardless of any extension to the SB-URD plan.  

 

Any general obligation bonds approved after October 2001 are not subject to the 

division of tax. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                        18                                                   The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                          May, 2010 

 APPENDIX 

NOAA MARINE OPERATIONS CENTER TAX REVENUE IMPACTS 



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                        19                                                   The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                          May, 2010 

 NOAA MARINE OPERATIONS CENTER TAX REVENUE IMPACTS 

The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) recently 
reconfirmed its decision to award the Port of Newport, Oregon its long-term lease 
decision for its Pacific Marine Operations Center (MOC). In response to this 
decision, the potential property tax revenue implications of this decision to 
Newport's South Beach Urban Renewal Area were evaluated.   

METHODOLOGY & LIMITATIONS 

 

This analysis quantifies the tax revenue impacts for specific jurisdictions resulting 
from economic activity generated by NOAA's decision to relocate its Pacific MOC 
to Newport. At this time, little information is available regarding anticipated 
spending by the facility for on-going operations, repairs, etc. As such, we relied on 
secondary sources where possible, using our best estimate of historical operations 
activity in the Seattle area, the former home of the Pacific MOC.  
 
Finally, in light of present uncertainty, where specific measures were not available, 
we established defensibly conservative estimates designed to err on a lower level 
estimate.     

FINDINGS 

 

ESTIMATING PRIVATE MOC SPENDING LOCALLY 
 
It was assumed that NOAA's Pacific MOC will spend roughly $80 million annually 
on various operations, repair/maintenance activity, and various federal contracts 
related to these activities annually. This assumption was based on a July 2009 
editorial in the Seattle Times co-authored by representatives from the Port of 
Seattle, Seattle City 
Council, the University of 
Washington, and a major 
NOAA MOC contractor in 
Seattle.1 The editorial 
declared annual direct 
and indirect economic 
activity related to NOAA’s 
MOC at roughly $180 
million annually. This 
figure was evaluated in 
light of other available 
information about other 
NOAA investments in the 
Seattle area to arrive at a more conservative estimate of $80 million in direct 
activity, specifically in Newport.  
 

                                                 
1 "NOAA Should Keep its Marine Operations on Lake Union." The Seattle Times July 30, 2009. Editorial Contributors included 

Jean Godden, Seattle City Council; Bill Bryant, Port of Seattle Commissioner, Steve Welch, CEO of Pacific Shipyards; and 
Mark Emmert, President of the University of Washington. 

Total Estimated Direct Spending 1/: $80,000,000

Private Share 2/: 33%

Spending to Private Firms: $26,400,000

Newport's Capture of Private Spending 2/: 50%

Spending to Private Firms in Newport: $13,200,000

1/

2/ Conservative assumptions made by Johnson Reid, LLC

BASELINE MOC SPENDING ASSUMPTIONS

 Based on editorial in the Seattle Times, July 2009. Contributors included Jean Godden, 

Seattle City Council; Bill Bryant, Port of Seattle Commissioner, Steve Welch, CEO of Pacific 

Shipyards; and Mark Emmert, President of the University of Washington.

TABLE 1: BASELINE CONTRACT SPENDING 

LOCALLY 



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                        20                                                   The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                          May, 2010 

To estimate the private development impacts of this spending, we assumed that 
one-third of spending activity took the form of private contracts. This assumption 
is considered conservative based on our professional opinion.   

 
Finally, we assumed that the Newport economy could capture half of the private 
contract spending of the Pacific MOC. This assumes that the remaining half of the 
activity would leak to other communities such as Portland, Astoria, or remain in 
Seattle. This process results in an approximation of $13.2 million in annual contract 
spending estimated to be captured in the Newport economy. 
 

TRANSLATING CONTRACT SPENDING INTO JOBS 

 
Estimates of direct and secondary (indirect/induced) job impacts were developed 
by utilizing impact multipliers from IMPLAN2 (IMpacts for PLANing) economic 
impact analysis model. Developed by the Forest Service to assist in land and 
resource management planning, IMPLAN is an economic impact model designed 
for analyzing the effects of industry activity upon all other industries in an economic 
area.  
 
Utilizing this methodology, we estimate a total of 100 private, permanent jobs 
resulting from NOAA spending in Newport, at least 63 of which would be direct 
employment due to federal contract awards for the local private sector.  
 

                                                 
2 Minnesota IMPLAN Group (MIG), Inc., Stillwater, Minnesota 



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                        21                                                   The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                          May, 2010 

TABLE 2: JOB IMPACTS OF CONTRACT SPENDING 

 
 
 

CALCULATING THE SHARE OF JOBS CAPTURED BY SOUTH BEACH 

 

The industries identified in Table 2 into general land use types are based on the 
typical space utilization of each industry. This translates into roughly 66 industrial 
jobs, 25 commercial jobs, and 9 office jobs. Secondly, we apply a 20% capture 
factor for the South Beach district which translates into an estimate of 
approximately 20 jobs supported in the district.  
 

TABLE 3: SOUTH BEACH CAPTURE OF JOB IMPACTS BY LAND USE TYPE 

 
 

 

Direct Private Contract Spending 1/: $13,200,000 Multiplier

Direct Jobs 2/: 63.4   4.8 jobs/$1 million

Indirect & Induced 2/: 37.0   2.8 jobs/$1 million

Contract. Jobs: 100.3

Direct: Jobs

NOAA Contractors (Ship repair, research, etc.) 63.4

Indirect/Induced 2/:

Food services and drinking places: 4.0

Real estate establishments: 2.6

Wholesale trade businesses: 2.6

Employment services: 1.3

 Accounting, tax preparation, bookkeeping, and payroll services: 1.3

Offices of physicians, dentists, and other health practitioners: 1.3

Private hospitals: 1.3

Civic, social, professional, and similar organizations: 1.3

Retail Stores - Food and beverage: 1.3

Other Retail/Commercial Services: 19.8

1/ From Table 1

2/ Jobs Multipliers generated buy IMPLAN.

Jobs By Industry Type

Contract Spending, Jobs, and Multipliers

Space Total Newport South Beach

Type Jobs Impacts 1/ Jobs Impacts 2/

Industrial 66.0 13.2

Commercial 25.1 5.0

Office 9.2 1.8

TOTAL: 100.3 20.1

1/ From Table 2

2/ Assumes a conservative 20% capture rate for South Beach, Johnson Reid, LLC



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                        22                                                   The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                          May, 2010 

CONVERSION OF JOBS TO DEVELOPED SPACE 

 

We then multiplied the number of estimated jobs captured in the South Beach 
District by a typical square footage per job by land use type. These assumptions 
are based on the U.S. Department of Energy's Commercial Building Energy 
Consumption Survey. This process yields an estimate of roughly 25,200 private, 
developed square feet supported by NOAA contract spending in South Beach.    
 

TABLE 4: PRIVATE EMPLOYMENT IMPACT DEVELOPMENT IN THE SOUTH BEACH 

 

CONVERSION OF NEW DEVELOPMENT TO MARKET VALUE & TAXABLE 

ASSESSED VALUE 

 

In Table 5, the supportable space was translated into land by standard Floor Area 
Ratios (FAR) by land use type, yielding an estimate of 2.0 improved acres. 
Secondly, we apply per acre development costs by land use type to each 
land/space estimate to calculate replacement cost of improvements. This analysis 
conservatively assumes market value is equal to replacement cost.  

 
 

TABLE 5: ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE GENERATED BY NOAA'S CONTRACT SPENDING 

LOCALLY 

 
 

We then applied the Lincoln County 2009-10 Changed Property Ratio (CPR) by 
land use type, which revealed an estimated increase in taxable assessed value of 
$2.85 million. Therefore, $13.2 million in locally captured economic activity 
resulting from NOAA Pacific MOC decision is expected to translate into an 
increase of $2.85 million in new, taxable assessed value in the South Beach Urban 
Renewal District.   

Space South Beach Est. Sq. Ft. Est. Development

Type Jobs Impacts 1/ per Job 2/ Impacts (Sq. Ft.)

Industrial 13.2 1,510 19,932

Commercial 5.0 883 4,429

Office 1.8 468 865

TOTAL: 20.1                             N/A 25,226                        

1/ From Table 3

2/ Calculated as a weighted average across industries based on Newport's existing distribution. Derived 

from The U.S. Department of Energy's Commercial Building Energy Consumption Survey. (2003)

Per Acre Est. Market

Space Type

NOAA 

Impact 

Assumed 

F.A.R 2/

Improved 

Acres

Improvement 

Cost 3/

Replacement 

Value

2009-10 

CPR 4/

Taxable 

Assessed 

Industrial 19,932 0.30 1.53 $1,511,500 $2,305,419 1 $2,305,419

Commercial 4,429 0.25 0.41 $1,971,000 $801,636 0.58 $464,949

Office 865 0.35 0.06 $2,361,500 $133,961 0.58 $77,698

TOTAL: 25,226          N/A 2.0             N/A $3,241,016 N/A 2,848,065       

1/ From Table 4

2/ Assumes a typical, low-rise development profile with 4 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of space.

3/ RS Means Construction Cost Estimator

4/ Changed Property Ratio: The adjustment made from new improvement market value to taxable assessed value under Measure 50.

SOURCE: Lincoln County Assessor's Office and Johnson Reid, LLC



 

Minor Amendment Six to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                        23                                                   The Benkendorf Associates Corp. 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency                                                                                                                                                          May, 2010 

 

CONTRIBUTION TO SOUTH BEACH URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT GROWTH 

 
The estimated $2.85 million in new, taxable assessed value as a result of NOAA 
facility-induced economic growth will directly contribute to the South Beach Urban 
Renewal District total, taxable assessed value and by extension, annual 
incremental tax revenue. The increase in assessed property value is equivalent to 
2.9% of existing District value in 2009. 
 
For purposes of conservative District revenue forecasting, we assumed the new, 
taxable assessed value would be constructed and enter the tax rolls in equal 
increments over a four year period. Therefore, in fiscal years 2011-12 through 
2014-15, the District is assumed to grow by $712,000 annually due solely to NOAA 
facility impact growth. Detailed projections of District property tax revenue growth 
are found in Table V-1 of the plan amendment report. 
 

 

 



March 4, 2013 

Memorandum of Understanding 

among 

City of Newport, Oregon ("City"), 

Newport Urban Renewal Agency ("Agency") 

and 

Oregon Museum of Science and Indus ("OMSI") 

Recitals 

A. The City and Agency have established an overall infrastructure plan for the South Beach area, as 

depicted in the Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement Plan, dated August 2012 (the "Plan"). All 

Parties desire to work collaboratively to implement the Plan in a coordinated and equitable 

fashion in order to further neighborhood improvement goals. Except where the context 

otherwise indicates, when used herein the term "Parties" means City, Agency, and OMSI. 

B. As OMSI contemplates development of its South Beach property as a world-class educational 

center and begins the fundraising process, OMSI requires a degree of certainty as to the cost 
and timing of infrastructure improvements in the area. 

C. In order to implement the Plan, the City and Agency require certain right-of-way and easement 
dedications from OMSI for SW 30 th  Street and SW Abalone Street. 

D. Internal to the OMSI property, there are currently unutilized rights-of-way that may interfere 

with the logical and/or efficient use of the property. City, Agency, and OMSI desire that these 
rights-of-way be vacated in order to allow OMSI development to proceed. 

E. Agency has identified funding for certain projects in the South Beach area, including for SW 

Abalone, SW 30 th , a multi-use pathway along SW Abalone, and improvement of the Coastal Gully 
area on the northern portion of the OMSI property. 

F. The Funding Plan for SW Abalone and SW 30 th  relies on a combination of Agency (urban 
renewal) funding and private property owner funding. Cost sharing between private property 

owners should be equitable, based on the proportionate share of street frontage for each 

project, which may involve creation of an LID, as addressed within this MOU. 

G. The Coastal Gully areas on and adjacent to the OMSI property represent sensitive and treasured 

resources. The Parties intend to see these areas enjoy permanent protection with limited public 
access. 

H. Similar to SW Abalone and SW 30 th , fully implementing the projects identified in the Plan will 

require the financial participation of property owners in the area, including OMSI. The parties 

Page 1 of 5 



share the goal of determining the appropriate timing for these improve 

distribution of those costs among benefitted owners. 
ents and an equi 

Project costs referenced herein are derived from conservative estimates included in the Plan 

and represent OMSI's proportional share of the planned improvements to SW Abalone and S 
30th . The figures assume roughly $1,000 per lineal foot to construct a half-street improvement, 
as opposed to the $1,400 per lineal foot assumed in the Plan for full build-out of these streets. 

Property Dedications Abalone Extension and SW 

a. Agency shall pursue the subdivision or partitioning of property owned by OMSI and the City, 

as depicted in Exhibit A, for the purpose of establishing a final alignment for the extension of 
SW Abalone Street and SW 30 th  Street. Such application may include adjoining property 
owned by Investors XII, LLC and Richard 	dba Toby Murry Motors) provided they are 

ng to participate in the platting eff 

b. OMSI and the City will collaborate to determine the best design approach for incorporat ng 

a shared-use pathway on the west side of SW Abalone and south side of SW 30 th  Street. 
OMS! will provide easements, as needed, to accommodate the pathway(s). 

c. Agency will incorporate into the subdivision or partition plat easements for the pathway(s), 

or any other services needed to facilitate development of the OMSI property, provided such 
information is available at the time the plat is prepared. 

City will initiate vacation proceedings as part of the platting process for the existing platted 

rights-of-way within the boundary of the OMSI property, including portions of SW Coho 
Street, SW Brant Street, SW 31 st  Street, SW 32nd  Street, SW 33rd  Street and 18-feet of 
residual road right-of-way that may exist along the south line of the OMSI property as 

shown on the plat of Waggoner's Addition to South Beach, as shown on the attached 

Exhibits A and B. Where needed, as determined by the City in its sole discretion, easements 

will be retained to accommodate existing and future utilities. 

e. OMSI agrees to dedicate a right-of-way for SW 30 th  Street and the extension of SW Abalone 
Street. The right-of-way width for the extension of SW Abalone Street and SW 30 th  Street 
shall be in substantial conformity with the recommended width depicted in the Plan, as 
illustrated on Exhibit D. 

f. In keeping with the timeline in 4.a., OMSI and Agency shall work together in good faith to 

determine the contribution value of the rights-of-way and easements to be dedicated by 

OMSI for the purposes of accommodating parks and transportation improvements in the 

area. In determining what credit, if any, OMSI should receive for these dedications, the 

parties will consider such elements as previous right-of-way dedications, rights-of-way to be 

vacated, Agency costs to subdivide or plat the property, and the December 2011 purchase 

price of the OMSI property. The parties may utilize an independent appraiser, paid for by 
the Agency, to assist in the determination of value. 

Page 2 of 5 



g. Based on the outcome of the valuation described in 1.f above, Agency shall, at its sole 

discretion, either compensate OMS! for the value, if any, of the right-of-way and easement 
dedications, or accept the value of the dedications as offsetting OMSI's required financial 
contributions to the SW Abalone and SW 30th  projects as a benefitted property owner, per 
3.c., below. 

h. Agency shall incur all costs attributed to the subdivision or partition process, including 
surveying, plat preparation, appraisal fees and permit and recording fees. 

2. 	Coastal Gully Preservation 

a. OMS! and the City will collaborate on a program to preserve, in perpetuity, environmentally 

sensitive Coastal Gully areas on their respective properties, as generally depicted on Exhibit 
C, through the use of Lincoln County's Conservation Easement program or similar 

mechanism. The precise area to be included in the conservation easement will be mutually 
agreed by OMSI and the City. The goal of both Parties is for these areas to be managed in a 

manner that allows them to be used as part of OMSI's environmental education curriculum 

while providing for low impact public access to the areas as envisioned in the Plan. 

b. OMSI and the City recognize that this collaboration may result in their respective land 

ownership and rights-of-way within the Coastal Gully area being consolidated into a single 

lot or parcel through the platting process and that it may be necessary to put in place 
conservation easements over the affected areas. 

c. To the extent that OMSI has any Parks System Development Charge liabilities stemming 
from any permanent residential uses that may be developed on the site, it is anticipated by 
the parties that these charges may be offset by the value of the Coastal Gully areas that are 

permanently preserved by Conservation Easements or other similar means. Such offset is 

permissible because the City's Parks Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) calls for the acquisition 

and development of trails in South Beach, the Coho/Brant Infrastructure Refinement Plan 
envisions such trails at this location, and the System Development Charge methodology 

allows credits for qualifying public improvements or dedications for projects listed in the 

CIP. The value of these Coastal Gully areas will be established as part of the Conservation 
Easement process through the Lincoln Land Legacy Program. OMSI and the City will 

collaborate to define the conditions of public access to the Coastal Gully area taking into 
consideration the intended use of the OMSI property. 

3. th  Cost Responsibilities - SW 30 Street and SW Abalone Extension Projects 

a. SW 30th  Street, SW Brant to SW Abalone - OMSI's financial contribution shall be limited to 
52.4% of the total project costs or $165,000, whichever is less. 

b. SW Abalone Street Extension, SW 29 th  to SW 35th  - OMSI's financial contribution shall be 
limited to 18.8% of the total project costs or $335,000, whichever is less. 

c. To the extent that OMSI is due any payment or financial consideration for the value of the 
rights-of-way and/or easements to be dedicated for the SW 30 th  and SW Abalone projects as 

Page 3 of 5 



described in 1.f above, such payment or consideration may, at Agency's discretion, be 
applied as a credit against OMSI's financial contributions as defined in 3.a and 3.b above. 

	

At OMSI's request, City will initiate a Local Improvement Di c 	D") formation p ocess 
for the SW 30th  Street and/or the SW Abalone Extension project. The LID may be a single 
owner (e.g., OMSI only) LID or, at City's discretion, may include abutting owners who receive 

benefit from the projects. Should an LID be formed, City may require that SW Abalone 

Street be constructed to its full planned dimensions as described in the Plan. The City shall  
allow OMSI, at i s request, to finance its LID assessment for a period of up to 30 years 
through an install ent payment agreement per ORS 223.210 and 223215, and NMC 
12.05.055. 

ng SW 30th 
 Street and SW Abalone Extension Projects 

a. The Parties agree to work collaboratively to develop a Project Schedule for the phased 
development of the OMSI property and related infrastructure improvements in the area 

The schedule will define the specific dates for infrastructure project delivery such that OMSI 

site preparation and construction activities may proceed by July 1, 2014 in order to achieve 
a camp opening by April 1, 2016. 

Consistent with the Project Schedule developed under 4.a above, he City and/or Agency 
will either: 

	

Provide the necessary funding, in combination with 	SI's financial 
contributions, such that OMSI's Phase I development may proceed and open; o 

Revise the scope of required infrastructure such that OMSI's Phase I 

development may proceed and OMSI does not exceed the total amount of 
*nancial participation as described in 3.a and 3.b above. 

Safe Haven Hill Tsunami Evacuation Route Enhance ents 

City has constructed interim improvements that enhance access to the designated tsunami  
evacuation area immediately northeast of the OMSI property, known as Safe Haven Hill. 

City is committed to maintaining those improvements, which consist of a gravel access path 
and cleared assembly area at the top of the hill. 

b. City has further applied for and received preliminary approval from the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA) to further enhance the assembly area with a paved shared-use 
path, sidewalks, trails, stairs and a disaster supply shed. City will construct the 

enhancements once FEMA obligates matching funds for the work. 

c. OMSI acknowledges that these enhancements are important to the success of its 

educational center, will continue to support implementation of the improvements, and will 

install wayfinding signage and provide informational materials to its guests so that they 
understand the purpose for, and route to, the evacuation assembly area. 

Page 4 of 5 



Delivery Schedule 

a. The Parties will work in good faith to complete their respective responsibilities under this 

MOA in time to allow OMSI site preparation and construction activities to proceed on 
OMSI's property by July 1, 2014. 

7. 	Non-Binding MOU 

a. It is the intent of the Parties to work together in good faith to implement the terms of this 
MOU such that development on the OMSI property may proceed and the infrastructure 

projects in the area are delivered in an efficient and equitable manner. However, this 

agreement is non-binding on the Parties and represents only the intent of the Parties with 

respect to the subjects herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Memorandum on the dates show 
hereunder, 

City of Newport by Newport Urban Renewal Agency by 

Signature:'7  

Printed Name/Title: 

Sandra Roumagoux, Mayor 

169 SW Coast Hwy 

Newport, Oregon 97365 

Date: 

  

Date: 

    

Oregon Museum of Science and Industry by 

Signature:  / 1, 	
1 

Printed Name/Title: 

Nancy Stueber, President and CEO 

1945 SE Water Ave 

Portland Oregon 97214 

Date: f  

Printed Name/Title: 

Richard Beemer, Chair 

169 SW Coast Hwy 

Newport, Oregon 97365 

Page 5 of 5 



Boundary of
OMSI Property

City Lots

Memorandum of Understanding
Between the City of Newport,
Newport Urban Renewal Agency,
and Oregon Museum of Science
and Industry

Exhibit A



E
x
h
i
b
i
t

B
M
e
m
o
r
a
n
d
u
m

o
f

U
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g

B
e
t
w
e
e
n

t
h
e

C
i
t
y

o
f
N
e
w
p
o
r
t
,

N
e
w
p
o
r
t

U
r
b
a
n

R
e
n
e
w
a
l

A
g
e
n
c
y
,

a
n
d

O
r
e
g
o
n

M
u
s
e
u
m

o
f

S
c
i
e
n
c
e

a
n
d

I
n
d
u
s
t
r
y

d.tokos
Text Box

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Memorandum of UnderstandingBetween the City of Newport,Newport Urban Renewal Agency,and Oregon Museum of Scienceand Industry

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B



PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

 36   |   AUGUST 2012   |   COHO/BRANT INFRASTRUCTURE REFINEMENT PLAN

Map 3-2.  Coastal Gully Open Space Concept Plan

d.tokos
Text Box

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Exhibit C

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Memorandum of UnderstandingBetween the City of Newport,Newport Urban Renewal Agency,and Oregon Museum of Scienceand Industry



PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

COHO/BRANT INFRASTRUCTURE REFINEMENT PLAN   |   AUGUST 2012   |   45

Map 3-8.  Illustrative Plan

d.tokos
Text Box

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Exhibit D

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Memorandum of UnderstandingBetween the City of Newport,Newport Urban Renewal Agency,and Oregon Museum of Scienceand Industry

d.tokos
Typewritten Text



City of 

Newport
US 101

SE 32ND/SE 35TH ST

IMPROVEMENTS

2015-2018 STIP

ENHANCE PROJECT



Project 

Components

Construct signalized intersection at US 

101 and SE 35th Street

Eliminate signal and channelize US 

101 and SE 32nd St intersection

Close SE Ferry Slip Road and US 101 

Intersection

 Install bike and pedestrian facilities 

along US 101 between Yaquina Bay 

Bridge and SE 35th Street

Widen SE Ferry Slip Road from SE Ash 

St north to SE 32nd St to provide 

north/south alternative to US 101 for 

vehicles, bicyclists and pedestrians



Project Overview Map



Intersection Details 

and Budget

Total Cost:

$2,609,500

Requested Funds:

$1,075,500 (41%)

Local Match:

$1,534,000 (59%)



Key Project 

Strengths
 Enhances US 101 mobility/traffic flow

o Improves signal distance from incline 
onto the Yaquina Bay Bridge

o Adds acceleration/deceleration lanes 
at intersections

o Removes a severely angled, confusing 
approach onto US 101 at Ferry Slip Rd

o Provides bike/ped. mobility options 
along US 101 where none now exist

o Creates viable alternative to US 101 for 
local traffic via upgrades to Ferry Slip Rd

 Timely 

o Responds to rapid growth in the South 
Beach area (e.g. NOAA, OMSI)

o Implements recent TSP Amendments to 
justify a new alternate mobility standard

o Leverages strong local urban renewal 
match that will sunset if not acted upon

 Facilitates economic development

 Is a complete solution for South Beach



Local Contacts

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director

City of Newport

541.574.0626

d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

Timothy Gross, P.E.

Public Works Director

City Engineer

City of Newport

541.574.3369

t.gross@newportoregon.gov

mailto:d.tokos@newportoregon.gov
mailto:t.gross@newportoregon.gov


August 19, 2013 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
 
Councilors present: Beemer, Busby, Saelens, Roumagoux, Swanson, Allen, and Sawyer 
(Sawyer participated by telephone.) 

 
Staff present: Smith, Hawker, Gazewood, and Protiva. Gross and Tokos also participated 
during the legal assessment discussion. 
 
Media present: Dave Morgan from News Lincoln County and Larry Coonrod from the 
Newport News-Times. 
 
Roumagoux called the meeting to order and roll was taken. 
 
1. Roumagoux asked that membership in OCZMA be added to the agenda. 
2. Roumagoux complimented Smith on his work as Interim City Manager. 
3. Gazewood distributed and reviewed a report on the budget and financial status. The 
 review included: 
 A. Interest earnings on investments, as of July 23, 2013, had not been credited to the 

 respective funds for the entire fiscal year. 
 B. The auditor will begin field work for the FY2012/2013 on September 23. 
 C. The goal is to have completed monthly records within approximately ten days 

 following the close of each month. 
 D. Although this review pertains to specific budget and financial related documents, 

 Gazewood plans to review the entire budget. 
 E. The budget resolution and adopted budget are not in balance with each other. 
 F. Gazewood will check with the Department of Revenue regarding several issues 

 discovered during this limited review, including reserves for future capital. 
 G. Gazewood noted that the adopting resolution shows an appropriated transfer from 

 the General Fund to the Airport Fund of $774,279, while the budget document 
 shows only $736,092 as budgeted revenue. 

 H. The General Fund is three dollars off the unappropriated fund balance. 
 I. Contingency accounts are authorized by fund rather than by department within a 

 fund. 
 J. Debt service funds cannot contain a general operating contingency because a debt 

 service fund is a non-operating fund. The resolution and adopted budget both 
 contain contingencies that are not allowed by Oregon Budget Law. 

 K. The Airport Fund contains another discrepancy as the appropriation resolution 
 shows $29,000 appropriated from the Transient Room Tax Fund for transfer to the 
 Airport Fund, and the budget document shows a $29,000 transfer amount from the 
 Transient Room Tax Fund, but only $25,000 is reflected as a transfer revenue 
 source in the Airport Fund within the operations unit. 



 L. The appropriation resolution appropriates $206,071, in the Water Fund, for transfer 
 to the debt service fund, but the budget document shows only $64,484 allocated 
 for transfer to two debt service funds. The remaining $141,587 is allocated to the 
 Street Fund. 

 M. The Public Works Fund appropriation resolution appropriates by categories of 
 expense while the budget document details the budgeted funds by departmental 
 activity. 

 N. The auditors noted that on page 57 of the June 30, 2012 Financial Report, the 
 adopted budget appropriations in the resolution did not match the adopted 
 numbers in the city’s budget. 

 Gazewood noted that based on these issues, he does not feel comfortable with the 
remainder of the budget document not being reviewed, and added that he plans to 
review the entire budget for potential problem areas. 

 
 Gazewood reviewed some of his activities over the past few weeks. 
4. A discussion ensued regarding Coast Guard passes to the Recreation Center. 

Swanson reported that she had interviewed many individuals regarding the passes for 
the Coast Guard use of the Recreation Center, and she reviewed the findings and 
recommendations. It was noted that there is a breakdown in communication between 
the city and the Coast Guard. Smith noted that he had coffee with the commanding 
officer earlier this morning, and that the commanding officer thought that was a good 
start to improving communications. Previous arrangements for the Coast Guard’s use 
of the Recreation Center were discussed. Beemer asked for a figure on the cost for 
Coast Guard and families to use the swimming pool and Recreation Center by Friday. 
Protiva noted that this is difficult, but that he would develop something. A discussion 
ensued regarding inconsistent direction to the Recreation Department staff. Smith 
noted that the National Guard does have a gym, and this is one military group that is 
not communicating with another military group. It was agreed to discuss this issue at 
a later date. 

5. A discussion ensued regarding the vacant Airport Director position. Smith reported 
that as a stop gap measure, he is considering placing Melissa Roman in that position 
on an interim basis. Smith noted that Roman has managed major projects and will be 
managing the airport projects into the next year. He added that the city needs a point 
person that the Airport Committee can interact with, and who can interface with other 
airport directors and governmental and professional organizations. Smith noted that 
relationships are raw, and it would be good to get someone into the position who does 
not have a history. Smith added that this would be the second interim director position 
that he is asking Council to appoint. Beemer noted that there are no airport projects 
this year. Busby asked about the impact to Public Works with Roman at the airport. 
Smith reported that Gross believes that Roman can manage other projects and the 
airport. Smith noted that Roman has goals to draft minimum standards and update the 
airport business plan. Smith reported that the airport is under the jurisdiction of the 
City Manager at present, but that Roman would work on administrative issues and 
establishing a relationship with the Airport Committee. Smith noted that the major 
question is whether Council thinks a permanent Airport Director needs to be hired, and 
if so, where the funding would come from. 

 



 It was noted that the previous City Manager had given Durham and Vanderbeck salary 
adjustments to manage parts of the airport operations, and that no downward 
adjustments would be made at this time. Busby noted that he could not support the 
salaries remaining the same if there was an interim Airport Director. Smith added that 
it would look like retribution, and that it was recommended by CIS and LGPI that the 
salary not be adjusted. Busby suggested that there needs to be an independent look 
at airport staffing before placing Roman in the position. Allen asked Smith whether he 
has heard that the ability to move forward with airport projects depends on the city 
having an Airport Director. Smith noted that an Airport Director is a recommendation 
from the FAA, but it is not a requirement. Smith added that the airport needs to have 
adopted minimum standards. Allen asked why, with two airport managers in place, 
there is a need for another layer of bureaucracy to adopt minimum standards. Allen 
noted that Roman is currently not in a management position, and asked whether 
associated issues had been resolved. Allen asked whether the Airport Director 
position is necessary to develop grant assurances and minimum standards. Allen 
asked why Roman needs to be in a supervisory position, and whether she can still 
engage without being placed in a supervisory role. Smith noted that airport 
relationships have been scarred. Saelens suggested hiring a mediator to work with 
the Airport Committee and staff. Dave Morgan stated that there is a lack of a chain of 
command. Smith stated that the Airport Committee wants to move forward, and that 
he is comfortable attending Airport Committee meetings. Swanson suggested 
retaining a mediator. Smith will continue attending Airport Committee meetings for the 
next few months, and Allen suggested reexamining the issue at that time. Smith noted 
that minimum standards will be drafted before the next Airport Committee meeting, 
and that business plan accomplishments will be reviewed. 

6. A discussion ensued regarding the Visual Arts Center elevator. Smith reported that 
the elevator is not functional and that money was not budgeted to repair it. He added 
that he has found money in the contingency fund of the Transient Room Tax Fund to 
perform the work which will cost approximately $45,000. Smith noted that there may 
be ADA issues if the elevator is not repaired. He added that $45,000 would cover the 
cost of the elevator repair and replacement of the windows. It was noted that if Council 
is in agreement, a resolution will be presented at this evening’s meeting. Council 
concurred. 

7. Hawker updated Council regarding the bioaccumulation survey, noting that OSU and 
the city will be requesting an extension to complete the survey. She added that while 
the extension will be for a period of six months, it is anticipated that the work will be 
completed prior to that. 

8. Council discussed the membership dues for OCZMA and agreed to participate. 
9. A discussion ensued regarding legal services. It was noted that Miranda and Gross 

had written memos supporting the current legal services. The memos were distributed. 
Allen stated that Hawker will be distributing two e-mails regarding legal services, and 
that he is declaring a conflict of interest and recusing himself from this discussion item. 
Allen reviewed the history of the discussion noting that the Mayor had asked him 
whether he was interested in the legal services position, and that, at the time, he had 
said that he was not interested. He added that he has put some thought into it and is 
now interested, but wanted to make sure that he is in compliance with ethical rules. 
Allen reviewed the e-mails noting that he had contacted the OGEC staff, who indicated 



that there might be a potential conflict of interest, but that he is declaring an actual 
conflict of interest. Allen recused himself and left the room. Sawyer suggested trying 
to find a local attorney or firm that could, on a regular basis, attend City Council 
meetings, and use LGLG as a back-up for specialized legal issues. He suggested 
issuing an RFP. Beemer spoke about the letters from Miranda and Gross. Tokos 
stated that he shares the opinions of Gross and Miranda that support LGLG, and noted 
that on balance, LGLG has been responsive and provides technical legal expertise. 
Beemer noted that he was ready to support finding legal services other that LGLG, as 
he was displeased with the handling of the complaint from the airport employees and 
the advice that the Mayor was given. He added that had he read about this complaint 
in the newspaper, and found that the Mayor had withheld this information from the rest 
of Council, he would have been very upset. Saelens noted that it would be nice to have 
someone on the ground. Busby stated that he respects staff input, but from the Council 
side, he is concerned with the lack of local knowledge by LGLG. He noted that he liked 
Sawyer’s suggestion, but does not know whether it is possible. Saelens stated that he 
supports Sawyer’s idea for a local attorney to attend Council meetings, and added that 
on bigger issues, he is not surprised to hear staff support a larger firm. He suggested 
using LGLG for more specialized areas and a local attorney for day-to-day business. 
Beemer noted that David Gordon, a local attorney, has experience being a city 
attorney, and that he would support Allen as well. It was suggested utilizing a half-time 
local attorney, and half-time use of LGLG, with a review at a later date. Busby asked 
whether the use of LGLG would be run through a local attorney, or whether staff could 
go directly to LGLG. Saelens noted that LGLG would handle bigger and more 
complicated issues. Beemer noted that Allen is used to working with LGLG, and it 
might work out if Allen was selected. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by 
Swanson, to direct staff to prepare an RFP for generalist legal services to the City 
Council and others, and to direct the City Manager to negotiate with Speer Hoyt for 
specialized legal services until the end of the fiscal year. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. Beemer noted that staff could continue to utilize the 
services of LGLG without going through the local City Attorney. Smith noted that if 
Allen is selected, he will need to resign from Council. 

10. Busby asked whether a date could be scheduled to review businesses licenses. It was 
agreed to place this matter on the September 16 work session. 

 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:10 P.M. 
 



August 19, 2013 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Beemer, Allen, Roumagoux, Saelens, 
Busby, and Swanson were present. Sawyer was excused. 
 Staff present was Interim City Manager Smith, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Public Works Director Gross, and Police Lieutenant 
Malloy. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Council and the audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 Marletta Noe addressed Council regarding a recent newspaper article indicating that 
Thompson’s Sanitary Service was proposing to add compost buckets and add an 
additional $6.95 to all trash service bills. She expressed opposition to this program. It 
was noted that Thompson’s Sanitary would be making a presentation to Council 
regarding this proposal.  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
 A. Approval of City Council minutes from the meeting of August 5, 2013; 
 B. Acknowledgment of accounts paid for July 2013. 
 
 MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Saelens, to approve the consent 
calendar with the changes to the minutes as noted by Allen. Staff responded to several 
questions regarding the accounts paid. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 
 Mayor’s Report. Roumagoux appointed Robin Dennis to the Wayfinding Committee. 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to ratify the Mayor’s appointment. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had toured the recycling center with Rob Thompson 
and Ken Riley. She noted that there will be an informational presentation in September. 
Saelens suggested this be a joint meeting with Lincoln County. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had attended a recent meeting of the Public Arts 
Committee. She noted that Stacey Johns, from the Library, had created a database for a 
public art inventory, and that several items had been inventoried. 



 Roumagoux reported that she had met with Senator Merkley’s staff and had been 
asked for ways that Merkley’s office could help the city. She noted that she introduced 
Merkley’s staff to Smith. 
 Roumagoux reported that she attended the ribbon cutting at the Port’s International 
Terminal. 
 Roumagoux reported that due to a conflict tomorrow, she will be unable to attend the 
economic summit at Chinook Winds. Allen stated that he will attend from late morning 
until the end of the day tomorrow. 
 Roumagoux reported that Swanson will cover the Mayor’s office hours tomorrow. 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Smith reported that monthly departmental reports are 
included in packet. He stated that he has attended many meetings and is available to 
answer questions. He added that he has met with the City Center merchants, Jamie 
Rand of the Newport News-Times, and the Lincoln County city managers. 
 Allen noted that the business license ordinance was brought up at the work session 
earlier today. He asked Smith whether he has been in communication with Dennis 
Bartoldus regarding administrative rules, or whether Bartoldus would attend the 
upcoming work session to provide information. Smith noted that Bartoldus had asked 
that all other establishments, similar to the Embarcadero, be placed under the same set 
of rules. Allen asked that information from Bartoldus be shared with the City Council. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Consideration of Recommendation from the Destination Newport Committee for the 
Potential Approval of a Personal Services Agreement with the Newport News-Times for 
the Production of Marketing Materials. Smith reported that the issue before Council is 
the consideration of a personal services agreement with the Newport News-Times for 
$17,000 for marketing production services for the year. Smith reported that the reason 
that the News-Times bills annually for these services is that there is one price for 
everything, and they do not keep track of the hours. He added that if the work was 
tracked individually, the publisher has indicated that the cost is $85 per hour, and that 
the city will spend two or three times this amount if the service is handled in that 
manner. Lorna Davis, Executive Director of the Greater Newport Chamber of 
Commerce, reported that if the services were billed hourly, the total would far exceed 
what the city is now paying. It was noted that the Destination Newport Committee had 
reviewed and recommended this agreement. MOTION was made by Swanson, 
seconded by Saelens, to approve the personal services agreement with the Newport 
News-Times, in the amount of $17,000, for marketing production services. The motion 
carried in a voice vote with Busby voting no. 
 
 Consideration of Recommendation from the Destination Newport Committee for the 
Potential Approval of a Personal Services Agreement with the Newport News-Times for 
the Printing of Brochures for FY 2013/2014. Smith reported that the issue before Council 
is the consideration of a personal services agreement with the Newport News-Times for 
the printing of brochures for the 2013/2014 Fiscal Year, in the amount of $22,000, for 
140,000 brochures if needed. It was noted that the Destination Newport Committee had 
reviewed and recommended this agreement. Allen noted that the brochures were paid 



out of last year’s budget, and if this expenditure becomes necessary, it will probably be 
toward the end of the fiscal year. Allen added that traditionally, the brochures are printed 
once annually, and that the next printing will likely be next spring. Allen noted that he is 
glad that the two payments have been separated, and that there are good vendor 
agreements. MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Beemer, to approve the 
personal services agreement with the Newport News-Times, for the production of 
brochures in FY2013/2014, when needed. The motion carried unanimously in a voice 
vote. 
 
 Consideration of Recommendation from the Destination Newport Committee to 
Approve and Agreement with Certified Folder Display Service, Inc. for the Distribution of 
Brochures. Davis reported that Certified Folder Display Service, Inc., is the company 
that distributes the brochures. It was noted that the Destination Newport Committee had 
reviewed and recommended this agreement. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded 
by Allen, to approve the service agreement with Certified Folder Display Service, Inc., 
for the distribution of brochures in the amount of $10,343.60. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration of a Notice of Intent to Award the NE 71st Street Waterline Project. 
Gross reported that the issue before Council is consideration of issuance of a Notice of 
Intent to Award the Water System Improvements – NE 71st Street Waterline Project to W 
W Construction, in the amount of $397,883.80. He added that there were ten bidders, 
and research indicates that this bid is whole. He noted that W W Construction has 
assured him that they can do the project. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by 
Saelens, that the City of Newport Public Works Department issue a Notice of Intent to 
Award the Water System Improvements – NE 71st Street Waterline Project to W W 
Construction, in the amount of $397,883.30, and contingent upon no protest, authorize 
award and direct the City Manager to execute the contract after seven days on behalf of 
the City of Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration of a Notice of Intent to Award the Water System Improvements – 
Lakewood Hills Pump Station Project. Gross reported that the issue before Council is 
consideration of issuance of a Notice of Intent to Award the Water System 
Improvements – Lakewood Hills Pump Station Project to Clackamas Construction, in the 
amount of $545,722. He noted that there were five bidders. MOTION was made by 
Saelens, seconded by Busby, that the City of Newport Public Works Department issue a 
Notice of Intent to Award the Water System Improvements – Lakewood Hills Pump 
Station Project to Clackamas Construction, in the amount of $545,722.00, and 
contingent upon no protest, authorize award and direct the City Manager to execute the 
contract after seven days on behalf of the City of Newport. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration of Resolution No. 3648 Accepting the Annual DLCD Coastal 
Management Grant. Tokos reported that the issue before Council is the consideration of 
acceptance of the annual DLCD Coastal Management Grant in the amount of $9,000. 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to adopt Resolution No. 3648, 



accepting a $9,000 annual DLCLD coastal planning grant. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration of Resolution No. 3647 Providing for Budget Transfers and Making 
Appropriations Changes for the 2013/2014 Fiscal Year. Smith reported that the issue 
before Council is consideration of Resolution No. 3647 amending the city’s Fiscal Year 
2013/2014 annual budget to address appropriation changes to the Public Works Fund 
due to an inadvertent deletion of a budgeted projects expense. He added that the 
appropriation funding in the Room Tax Fund is requested to repair the elevator at the 
Visual Arts Center. Smith noted that the budget changes are transfers of respective 
contingency appropriations to specific categories of expense within the stated funds. 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to adopt Resolution No. 3647, a 
resolution providing for budget transfers and making appropriation changes for Fiscal 
Year 2013/2014. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Saelens reported that the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee was unable to 
meet due to lack of a quorum. He recommended that Committee members respond to 
agenda notices. 
 Swanson reported that she attended a recent meeting of the City Employee 
Committee. She noted that she learned a lot, and that the Committee was appreciative 
of Council attending those meetings. She noted that the CEC had a list of traits that they 
would like to see in a new City Manager. She asked whether the list could be forwarded 
to Bob Gibson. 
 Swanson reported that she attended a recent meeting of the Senior Advisory 
Committee. She reviewed upcoming events to be held at the 60+ Center. 
 Busby stated that he was looking forward to seeing Swanson participate in the 
upcoming Buccaneer Rampage at the Airport. 
 Busby reported that he recently attended the Tuna Cook-Off, and that it was an 
excellent event. 
 Busby reported that he had attended a recent meeting of the Infrastructure Task 
Force at which Tokos and Gross provided good information. He noted that the next 
meeting will be held on September 5. 
 Busby reported that he had attended a recent meeting of the Airport Committee. He 
added that the Committee will work with staff on updating the business plan and 
developing minimum standards. 
 Beemer reported that he attended the grand reopening of the International Terminal 
at which the Mayor spoke. He noted that he had not attended the Tuna Cook-Off due to 
an emergency gall bladder removal.  
 Allen reported that he had attended the Chamber of Commerce Business after Hours 
and had toured the NOAA facility again. He noted that this was a good event. 
 Allen reported that he had attended a recent meeting of the Retirement Trustees 
Board. He noted that this Board meets quarterly, and that West Coast Trust, which 
handles the investments, provides good information on the markets. 
 Allen reported that he had attended the recent Infrastructure Task Force meeting. He 
noted that Tokos and Gross had made a PowerPoint presentation which is on the 



website. He added that the next agenda will include projected infrastructure needs, and 
will occur on September 5. 
 Allen reported that he had attended the grand reopening of the International 
Terminal, and thanked the Mayor for a concise speech during that event. 
 Allen reported that the Coastal Economic Summit will begin tomorrow at Chinook 
Winds. He noted that the coastal caucus and state agencies will be present, and that 
this is a good networking opportunity. 
 Roumagoux reported that Gross had made an excellent presentation at the Chamber 
luncheon. She suggested that it might be advantageous for Gross to make the same 
presentation to the water billing staff. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 Public Hearing and Consideration of Ordinance No. 2057 for Withdrawal of a 71.39 
Acre Portion of Wolf Tree Destination Resort Site from the Corporate Limits of the City 
of Newport – Tax Lot 801, Section 5, T12S, R11W, W.M. Roumagoux opened the public 
hearing at 7:02 P.M., and asked Tokos for the staff report. Tokos reported that this is the 
second of two public hearings required pursuant to ORS 222.460 at which the public is 
invited to testify on whether it is in the public interest for the city to withdraw a 71.39 acre 
property from its corporate limits. He noted that the property is a part of the larger 668 
acre Wolf Tree Destination Resort site, and is specifically identified as Tax Lot 801, 
Section 5, T12S, R11W, W.M. He added that the City Council initiated the withdrawal 
process on June 3, 2013, with the adoption of Resolution No. 3632, at the request of 
Terry Lettenmaier, the property owner. Tokos added that Steel String and Lettenmaier 
have agreed to appropriate easements. He noted that Lettenmaier will need to annex 
back into the Newport Rural Fire Protection District. Tokos reported that the City 
Attorney has not reviewed the ordinance for technical issues at this point. Swanson 
noted that her copy has blank pages, and Tokos stated that those are for the legal 
descriptions. Tokos added that the ordinance has also been reviewed by the County 
Assessor’s Office.  
 Roumagoux asked for public comment. There was none. 
 Roumagoux closed the public hearing at 7:05 P.M. for Council deliberation. MOTION 
was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to read Ordinance No. 2057, an ordinance 
withdrawing property identified as Tax Lot 801, Section 5, T12S, R11W, W.M., from the 
corporate limits of the City of Newport and authorize the Mayor to sign the ordinance 
following review by the City Attorney, by title only and place for final passage. The 
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. Hawker read the title of Ordinance No. 
2057. Voting aye on the adoption of Ordinance No. 2057 were Beemer, Allen, 
Roumagoux, Saelens, Busby, and Swanson. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:06 P.M. 
 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 



 









 



 

   

Ted Smith 

Interim City Manager 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

169 S.W. Coast Hwy. 

Newport, OR  97365 

t.smith@newportoregon.gov 

 

 
Interim Manager’s Report 
Through August 30, 2013 

 

 

Following is the Interim City Manager’s report for the period ending August 30:  

 

Interim City Manager/Staff Interactions 

The Interim City Manager met with the following individuals (some on multiple 

occasions) during this reporting period:   

Richard Dutton, Linda Brown, Jason Malloy, Melissa Roman, Lance Vanderbeck, 

Terry Durham, Chuck Norman, Bob Gazewood, Jim Protiva, Kay Eldon, Lynn 

Dennis, Tim Gross, Derrick Tokos, Christy Monson 

 

In addition, the Interim City Manager met with the following employee groups: 

Airport staff, Finance staff, Library staff, Library Supervisors, Parks & Rec 

Supervisors, Department Heads  

  

Committee Attendance 

The Interim City Manager met with the following committees, task forces or sub groups:  

Destination Newport, Infrastructure Task Force, Library Advisory Board 

 

Citizens, Clubs and Other Organizations 

The Interim City Manager met with the following people, groups of people or 

organizations: 

 

Rotary Club of Newport, John Baker, Don Davis, Bill Barton, Sharon Beardsley, 

Chamber of Commerce 

 

The Interim City Manager received a letter from Steve Wyatt, Executive Director of the 

Lincoln County Historical Society thanking the City for its Tourism Facilities 

Development Grant. 

 

On August 15, the Interim City Manager spoke with Jeff Sweet of CIS about a tort claim 

that is working its way through the system. 

 



On August 16, the Interim City Manager met with Mark McConnell, Catherine Rickbone 

and Melissa Roman to discuss an RFP that will be released for the upgrade and 

rehabilitation of the Performing Arts Center.  Melissa Roman will be the City’s Project 

Manager for this endeavor.   

 

On August 19, the Interim City Manager met with Frank Geltner, Zack Poole, Derrick 

Tokos and Tim Gross to discuss plans the City Center Merchants have for the corner of 

Hwy 101 and Hurbert Street.  

 

On August 22, the Interim City Manager attended a meeting of the LinCom Board to 

finalize the distribution of LinCom’s assets.  The Fire Department and the Information 

Technology Department from Newport took a large number of physical assets, including 

tables, chairs, TVs, a refridgerator, computers, computer switches, etc.  The LinCom 

Board will be making a final distribution of cash within the next month.    

 

On August 24, the Interim City Manager attended the Park and Recreation Departments’ 

first Buccaneer Rampage.  Over 150 participants took part in this race through mud, over 

walls, through tires and tunnels.  There were a good number of out of state cars in the 

parking area as well as a number of racers from out of town.    

 

On August 28, the Interim City Manager attended a meeting of library directors for the 

Oceanbooks Library Network.  Items up for discussion involved the migration to a new 

library automation system during FY 14-15 and aspects of funding this migration.  The 

Interim City Manager also attended the Port of Newport’s monthly board meeting on the 

evening of August 28.   

 

 

 

  

 

 

Respectfully Submitted 

 

 

Ted Smith 
 



 

Project Status Memo - ATJ  09-03-13 

 Memo 

To: Ted Smith, Interim City Manager and City Council 

From: Ted Jones, PE, Senior Project Manager 

Date: September 3rd, 2013 

Re: Capital Projects Status Update 

 
 
 Project: Ash Street Design and Construction 
Project Number:  2010-003 
 Status:  Complete final grading. 
 Next Task:  Pave roadway and multi-use path 06 September 2013. 
 Budget:  $557,000         
 Description:  Design and construct Ash Street between SE 40th St. and SE Ferry Slip 

Road.  
 
 Project:  Hwy 101 Crosswalk Improvements   
Project Number:  2012-001   
 Status:  Design being finalized. 
 Next Task: Secure construction easements and final ODOT approval. 
 Budget:  $502,000         
 Description:  This project will improve the visibility and safety of multiple crosswalks on 

Highway 101 between 15th Street and the bridge. Proposed improvements 
include curb extensions and/or pedestrian safety islands, improved signage 
and pavement markings, and in one location pedestrian activated warning 
lights.  

 
 Project:  Big Creek Road Landslide Repairs   
Project Number:  2011-003   
 Status:  Precast retaining wall panels in production. 
 Next Task:  Mobilizing equipment to site and starting work mid-September 2013. 
 Budget:  $750,000         
 Description:  This project will restore Big Creek Road. A January of 2011 storm caused 

portions of the road to slide away, making the road unsafe for vehicles and 
jeopardizing a buried water main and electrical and telecommunications 
overhead transmission lines. This project is 75% funded through FEMA and 
25% through IFA (Oregon).     

 
  
  



Project Status Memo - ATJ  09-03-13 Page 2 of 2 
 August 29, 2013 
 

 Project: Lower Big Creek Reservoir Drawdown Pipe Repair  
Project Number:  2012-012 
 Status:  Headwall completed, outfall cleaned and televised. 
 Next Task:  Install liner pipe the week of 02 September 2013. 
 Budget:  $160,000 
 Description:  Repair a structurally deficient and functionally obsolete 30-inch corrugated metal 

outfall pipe with a 24-inch HDPE Liner and structural grout. 
  
 
 Project: Agate Beach/NE 71st Waterlines and Lakewood Hills Pump Station 
Project Number:  2011-018 and 2012-013 
 Status:  Projects awarded to W W Construction and Clackamas Construction.  
 Next Task:  Complete contracts and schedule pre-construction meeting.  
 Budget:  $1.3 MM  
 Description:  Installing a new water distribution pipeline along US-101 in the Agate Beach 

area and along NE 71st St for Phase 1 of the NE 71st St. Water System 
Improvements Project.  The Lakewood Hills Pump Station which will improve 
performance and reliability for pressure and fire flow.   



OSU@HMSC	  
HMSC@NEWPORT	   FY12	  numbers	  

$46	  million	  invested	  	  
$18	  OSU	  grants	  
$4	  OSU	  budget	  

$24	  agencies’	  budgets	  

$82,000+	  in	  scholarships	  from	  donors	  for	  FY13	  

5	  Science	  on	  Taps	  
46	  Weekly	  seminars	  

48	  Public	  Programs	  

180	  publicaRons	  
26	  Quests	  
5	  blogs	  
1	  Marine	  Science	  Day	  Infrastructure	  investment	  =	  	  $1.2	  billion	  

1965:	  Main	  building	  
1970:	  ODFW	  building	  
1972:	  First	  housing	  

1976:	  EducaRon	  building	  
1979:	  NOAA	  Newport	  Aquaculture	  Lab	  
1981:	  NOAA	  Research	  Support	  Facility	  

1990:	  EPA	  Lab	  &	  Guin	  Library	  
1995:	  USFW	  building	  

2002:	  NOAA	  Fisher	  building	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

6	  Agencies	  
ODFW	  	  
NOAA	  
USFW	  

USGS	  
EPA	  
USDA	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	   $23,242	  Water	  bill	  

120	  OSU	  people	  employed.	  
180	  agencies	  people	  employed.	  

150,000	  visitors	  entertained.	  
88	  volunteers	  assisted.	  

40,100	  school	  kids	  taught	  
37	  interns	  mentored.	  



 



Page 1 of 2 

 Agenda Item # VIII. A.  
 Meeting Date September 3, 2013  
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Public Hearing and Possible Adoption of an Ordinance 2059, Amending the Newport Zoning Code 
Relating to Manufactured Dwelling Parks and Recreational Vehicles 
 
Prepared By: Derrick Tokos  Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    
 
ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  Consideration of whether or not it is in the public interest to make it easier for 
park models and other types of recreational vehicles to be used as a place of habitation within manufactured dwelling 
parks.  The revisions also clarify that, within the city limits, recreational vehicles may be used as a place of habitation 
within manufactured dwelling and recreational vehicle parks.  The Planning Commission considered the amendments at 
a 8/12/13 meeting and recommends they be adopted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends that the Council accept the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation and adopt the ordinance. 
 
MOTIONS FOR ADOPTION:  I move for reading by title only of Ordinance 2059, an ordinance amending Chapter 
14.16 of the Newport Zoning Code relating to manufactured dwelling parks and recreational vehicles. 
 
KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  With Policy 8, Goal 2 of the Housing Element of the 
Newport Comprehensive Plan, adopted July of 2011 (Ordinance No. 2015), the City of Newport committed to 
undertake a review of its Zoning Ordinance to allow and encourage “park model” recreational vehicles as a viable 
housing type.  The Newport Planning Commission conducted such review at work sessions on May 28, 2013 and June 
24, 2013 and determined that the minimum lot size standards, maximum density limitations, and minimum acreage 
requirements currently in place for manufactured dwelling parks prevent park models from being a viable housing 
option.  The Commission further determined that language in the ordinance dealing with the storage and use of 
recreational vehicles could be read to prevent them from being used as a place of habitation within manufactured 
dwelling and recreational vehicle parks, which would be inconsistent with the requirements of ORS 197.493. 
 
The Planning Commission considered whether or not the Newport Zoning Ordinance should be amended to allow 
park models outside of manufactured dwelling parks and recreational vehicle parks and determined that it would be 
inappropriate to do so at this time.  At 400 square feet in size, a park model unit is relatively small, and the Commission 
was concerned about compatibility of the units in established residential neighborhoods.  Further the Commission felt 
that more time is needed to see how the units hold up given that they are constructed to recreational vehicle codes as 
opposed to the Oregon Residential Specialty Code or Federal Manufactured Home Construction Safety Standards.  On 
August 12, 2013 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and voted to recommend adoption of amendments to 
address the shortcomings of the Newport Zoning Ordinance noted above. 
 
The Department of Land Conservation and Development was provided required notice on 7/1/13.  Notice of the 
Planning Commission and City Council hearings was published in the Newport News-Times on 8/2/13 and 8/28/13. 
 
OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  Initiating amendments of this nature is a stated Council goal. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENT LIST:   

 Proposed Ordinance 

 Implementation Measure 8.2 of the Newport Comprehensive Plan 

 Copy of ORS 197.493 

 Minutes from the 8/12/13 Planning Commission Hearing 

 Notice of the 9/3/13 Council Hearing 
 

FISCAL NOTES:  No fiscal impacts have been identified in association with these amendments. 



 

Page 1 ORDINANCE No.    2059   , Amending Chapter 14.6 of the Newport Zoning Code relating to 

manufactured dwelling parks and recreational vehicles. 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2059 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14.6 OF THE NEWPORT ZONING CODE, 

RELATING TO MANUFACTURED DWELLING PARKS AND RECREATIONAL 

VEHICLES, ORIGINALLY ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE NO. 1308. 
 

 

Findings: 
 

1.  On June 24, 2013 the Newport Planning Commission initiated amendments to the Newport Zoning 

Ordinance to make it easier for park models and other types of recreational vehicles to be used as a 

place of habitation within manufactured dwelling parks.  The revisions also clarify that, within the city 

limits, recreational vehicles may be used as a place of habitation within manufactured dwelling and 

recreational vehicle parks. 
 

2.  With Policy 8, Goal 2 of the Housing Element of the Newport Comprehensive Plan, adopted July of 

2011 (Ordinance No. 2015), the City of Newport committed to undertaking a review of its Zoning 

Ordinance to allow and encourage “park model” recreational vehicles as a viable housing type.  The 

proposed amendments implement this Comprehensive Plan Policy direction.  No other Newport 

Comprehensive Plan Policies apply to these amendments. 
 

3.  The Newport Planning Commission conducted such review at work sessions on May 28, 2013 and 

June 24, 2013 and determined that the minimum lot size standards, maximum density limitations, and 

minimum acreage requirements currently in place for manufactured dwelling parks prevent park 

models from being a viable housing option.  The Commission further determined that language in the 

ordinance dealing with the storage and use of recreational vehicles could be read to prevent them from 

being used as a place of habitation within manufactured dwelling and recreational vehicle parks, which 

would be inconsistent with the requirements of ORS 197.493.   
 

4.  The Planning Commission considered whether or not the Newport Zoning Ordinance should be 

amended to allow park models outside of manufactured dwelling parks and recreational vehicle parks 

and determined that it would be inappropriate to do so at this time.  At 400 square feet in size, a park 

model unit is relatively small, and the Commission was concerned about compatibility of the units in 

established residential neighborhoods.  Further the Commission felt that more time is needed to see 

how the units hold up given that they are constructed to recreational vehicle codes as opposed to the 

Oregon Residential Specialty Code or Federal Manufactured Home Construction Safety Standards.  
 

5.  The Newport Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 12, 2013 and voted to 

recommend adoption of amendments to address the shortcomings of the Newport Zoning Ordinance 

noted above. 
 

6.  The City Council held a public hearing on September 3, 2013 regarding the question of the 

proposed revisions and voted in favor of their adoption after considering the recommendation of the 

Planning Commission and evidence and argument in the record. 
 

7.  Information in the record, including affidavits of mailing and publication, demonstrate that 

appropriate public notification was provided for both the Planning Commission and City Council 

public hearings. 



Page 2 ORDINANCE No.    2059   , Amending Chapter 14.6 of the Newport Zoning Code relating to 

manufactured dwelling parks and recreational vehicles. 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The above findings are hereby adopted as support for the Newport Zoning Ordinance 

amendments, below. 

 

Section 2.   Newport Municipal Code 14.06.040, Manufactured Dwelling Parks, is repealed and 

replaced in its entirety with the following language: 

 

14.06.040  Manufactured Dwelling Parks.  Manufactured dwelling parks are permitted subject to the 

following: 

 

A. Construction of the manufactured dwelling park and placement of manufactured dwellings shall 

comply with the Oregon Manufactured Dwelling and Park Specialty Code, 2002 Edition, as 

amended. 

 

B. Streets within the manufactured dwelling park shall adhere to the standards outlined in Newport 

Municipal Code Chapter 13.05.040 where the construction or extension of such street is identified 

in the City of Newport Transportation System Plan. 

 

C.  The maximum density allowed in a manufactured dwelling park is one unit for every 2,500 sq. ft. 

of lot area in the R-2 zoning district and one unit for every 1,250 sq. ft. of lot area in R-3 and R-4 

zoning districts. 

 

D. Recreational vehicles may be occupied as a residential unit provided they are connected to the 

manufactured dwelling parks water, sewage, and electrical supply systems.  In such cases, the 

recreational vehicles shall be counted against the density limitations of the zoning district. 

 

E. Any manufactured dwelling park authorized under this section shall have a common outdoor area 

of at least 2,500 sq. ft. or 100 sq. ft. per unit, whichever is greater.  Common outdoor areas shall be 

landscaped and available for the use of all park residents. 

 

F. If the park provides spaces for 50 or more manufactured dwelling units, each vehicular way in the 

park shall be named and marked with signs that are similar in appearance to those used to identify 

public streets.  A map of the vehicular ways shall be provided to the fire department for appropriate 

naming. 

 

G. Public fire hydrants shall be provided within 250 feet of manufactured dwelling spaces or 

permanent structures within the park.  If a manufactured dwelling space or permanent structure in 

the park is more than 250 feet from a public fire hydrant, the park shall have water supply mains 

designed to serve fire hydrants.  Each hydrant within the park shall be located on a vehicular way 

and shall conform in design and capacity to the public hydrants in the city. 

 

H. The manufactured dwelling park may have a community or recreation building and other similar 

amenities. 

 

I. All dead end streets shall provide an adequate turn around for emergency vehicles. 



Page 3 ORDINANCE No.    2059   , Amending Chapter 14.6 of the Newport Zoning Code relating to 

manufactured dwelling parks and recreational vehicles. 

Section 3.  Municipal Code 14.06.050, Recreational Vehicles: General Provisions, is repealed and 

replaced in its entirety with the following language: 

 

14.06.050  Recreational Vehicles:  General Provisions.   
 

A. Recreational vehicles may be stored on property within the City of Newport provided they are not 

used as a place of habitation while so stored unless the recreational vehicle is located within a 

manufactured dwelling park or recreational vehicle park, or is authorized as a temporary living 

quarters pursuant to NMC Chapter 14.9. 

 

B. Removal of the wheels or placement of a recreational vehicle on a permanent or temporary 

foundation shall not change the essential character of any recreational vehicle or change the 

requirements of this section. 

 

C. It shall be unlawful for any person occupying or using any recreational vehicle within the City of 

Newport to discharge wastewater unless connected to a public sewer or an approved septic tank in 

accordance with the ordinances of the City of Newport relating thereof.  All recreational vehicle 

parks within the City of Newport shall comply with the sanitary requirements of the City of 

Newport and the State of Oregon. 

 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after passage. 

 

Date adopted and read by title only:  _____________________ 

 

 

Signed by the Mayor on  __________________, 2013. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Sandra Roumagoux, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder 

 



d.tokos
Polygon



197.493 Placement and occupancy of recreational vehicle. (1) A state agency or local government 
may not prohibit the placement or occupancy of a recreational vehicle, or impose any limit on the length 
of occupancy of a recreational vehicle, solely on the grounds that the occupancy is in a recreational 
vehicle, if the recreational vehicle is:

(a) Located in a manufactured dwelling park, mobile home park or recreational vehicle park;
(b) Occupied as a residential dwelling; and
(c) Lawfully connected to water and electrical supply systems and a sewage disposal system.
(2) Subsection (1) of this section does not limit the authority of a state agency or local government to 

impose other special conditions on the placement or occupancy of a recreational vehicle. [2005 c.619 
§12]

Page 1 of 1

8/29/2013http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/197.html



1  Planning Commission meeting minutes 8/12/13. 

Draft Minutes 

City of Newport Planning Commission  

Regular Session 

Newport City Hall Council Chambers 

Monday, August 12, 2013 

 

 

Commissioners Present:  Jim Patrick, Glen Small, Rod Croteau, Mark Fisher, Gary East, and Bill Branigan. 

 

Commissioners Absent:  Jim McIntyre (excused). 

 

City Staff Present: Community Development Director Derrick Tokos and Executive Assistant Wanda Haney. 

 

A.  Roll Call.  Chair Patrick called the meeting to order in the Council Chambers of Newport City Hall at 7:00 p.m.  On roll call, 

Small, Croteau, Patrick, Fisher, East, and Branigan were present; with McIntyre absent but excused.     

 

B. Approval of Minutes. 

 

1.   Approval of the Planning Commission regular session meeting minutes of July 8, 2013. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Fisher, seconded by Commissioner East, to approve the Planning Commission minutes as 

presented.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.   

 

C.   Citizen/Public Comment.  No comments on non-agenda items.   

 

D. Consent Calendar.  Nothing on the consent calendar. 

 

E. Public Hearings. 

 

Legislative Actions: 

 

1.  File No. 2-Z-13:  Consideration of proposed legislative text amendments to Chapter 14.6 of the Newport Municipal Code to 

replace fixed minimum lot size and minimum acreage requirements for manufactured dwelling parks with maximum density and 

minimum common open space benchmarks.  The changes should make it easier for manufactured dwelling parks to provide space 

for smaller units such as park models or recreational vehicles.  The revisions also clarify that recreational vehicles may be used as a 

place of habitation within manufactured dwelling or RV parks.  The Planning Commission will make a recommendation on this 

matter to the City Council. 

 

Patrick opened the public hearing for File No. 2-Z-13 at 7:01 p.m. by reading the summary of the file from the agenda; and he called 

for the staff report.  Tokos noted that the Planning Commission had met in work session on May 28th and June 24th to discuss these 

proposed changes.  The reason to initiate the changes flows from the update to the Housing element of the Comprehensive Plan 

drafted in 2011, which committed the City to see if park model RVs could be allowed as a viable housing type.  He said that, 

following discussion that ensued about allowing park models outside of manufactured dwelling and recreational vehicle parks, it 

was determined to limit them to the Manufactured Dwellings and Recreational Vehicles section of the code.  Tokos noted that the 

provision that the number of spaces for manufactured dwellings shall not exceed 6 per acre has been deleted.  The requirement that 

each space shall contain at least 5,000 square feet has been deleted and changed to language that the maximum density is one unit 

for every 2,500 square feet of lot area in R-2 and one for every 1,250 square feet in R-3 and R-4.  A provision was added that RVs 

may be used for habitation provided they are connected to the park’s water, sewage, and electrical supply systems.  In these cases, 

the RVs count against the density limitations of the zoning district.  The language that manufactured dwelling parks have to be at 

least an acre was deleted and was replaced with language that there shall be common area of at least 2,500 square feet or 100 square 

feet per unit, whichever is greater.  Tokos said that on the balance, these changes go away from setting such vast standards that were 

barriers for park models being feasible and should make it easier for park owners to place park model units in their parks.  Tokos 

said the other change to Section 14.06.050 (Recreational Vehicles) adds language under item “A” to make it clear that the provision 

that prohibits RVs being used for habitation applies only to those outside manufactured dwelling parks; RVs within a park or those 

authorized for temporary living quarters can be used for habitation.  Tokos noted that state law requires that cities allow RVs to be 

used for habitation within RV parks. 

 

Small noted that in the findings park models are referenced, but in the ordinance it simply says recreational vehicles.  He wondered 

if it is the understanding that park models are RVs, or if that should be described in the ordinance.  Tokos said it is understood.  He 

noted that nowhere in the ordinance is reference made to park models because it is structured to avoid the thought that park models 

are different than RVs, because a park model is an RV.  Small wondered if this gives a manufactured dwelling park owner leeway 

to exclude fifth-wheel and Class C RVs and go to park models.  Tokos said if they want to.  He said that it is the owner’s choice as 



2  Planning Commission meeting minutes 8/12/13. 

a private developer to not allow more-conventional motor homes or RVs and only allow park model RVs in their own parks.  A 

manufactured dwelling park can make the distinction of what they allow; state statute only prohibits jurisdictions from doing that.                      

 

Proponents, Opponents, or Interested Parties:  No one was present wishing to provide testimony.    

 

Patrick closed the hearing at 7:10 p.m. for Commission deliberation.  Branigan noted that the Commission has gone through this a 

couple of times.  He thought that changing this will help achieve our goal for more affordable housing by encouraging RV parks to 

open up.  He is in support of the changes.  East and Fisher agreed.  Croteau agreed and said that hopefully it will encourage affordable 

housing.  Small said that was his take on it also.  He said it gets us another step toward the affordable housing piece that is important 

to us.  He felt it was a reasonable change.  Patrick said this also allows for redevelopment of those mobile homes, which are well 

past their expiration date.  These parks only have a certain amount of space for those homes and can’t get double-wide or single-

wide homes in there.  Park models will allow them to develop with something that is useful and affordable.         

 

With everyone in agreement, a vote was taken to recommend that the City Council consider adopting the proposed text amendments 

to Chapter 14.6 of the Newport Municipal Code as presented in File No. 2-Z-13.  The decision carried unanimously in a voice vote.    

 

F. New Business.   

 

1. Upcoming Planning Commissioner Training in Portland on 9/16/13, sponsored by the Oregon City Planning Directors Assn.  

Tokos noted that included in the packet was an announcement of an upcoming Planning Commissioner training that he wanted to 

provide to the Commissioners.  He said that he knows a number of those speakers.  He noted that we do have budget to send one or 

two individuals if anyone is interested.  Branigan and Fisher expressed a desire to attend, and the Commissioners felt that would be 

good representation.  CDD staff will make the arrangements.    

 

G. Unfinished Business.   

 

1. Update on status of City’s applications for the Urban Growth Boundary amendment and the Transportation System Plan 

amendment considered at public hearings before the Lincoln County Planning Commission.  Tokos said that the reason the Planning 

Commission did not hold a meeting on July 22nd was because the Lincoln County Planning Commission held a meeting, and Tokos 

had to attend because both City issues were on their agenda.  Tokos noted that both actions were recommended favorably to the 

County Board of Commissioners for adoption.  He said that the County didn’t make changes to the UGB expansion.  They did tweak 

the language on the TSP, but specific to the County and how they implement.  It had to do with the role of their conditional use 

permit that applies to land within the UGB.  He said it was pretty minor.  He has inquired, but has not received word of when the 

Board of Commissioners will be considering action.  He assumes there will be approval there as well.  For the UGB expansion, 

following Board of Commissioner approval, it will go to DLCD for acknowledgement, which he assumes there will be.  At the 

County Planning Commission level, the 1000 Friends of Oregon weighed in with support.  ORCA, which was one of the appellants 

to the Teevin Bros. log yard, weighed in with support also.  DLCD changed from a neutral stance to support.  Tokos said it is just a 

matter of time to get this acknowledged.  As soon as the County adopts the TSP, it will go to the Oregon Transportation System; and 

he said that he knows that ODOT is anxious to get there      

 

H.  Director’s Comments.   

 

1.  Update on Teevin Bros. appeal.  Tokos said that we are still waiting for word from LUBA that the record has been finally settled 

and what the briefing schedule is for the appellant and the respondent.  Fisher asked if LUBA will be actually looking at the 

documents and rule on the record or if they could actually have hearings.  Tokos said that LUBA is limited to the record.  The nature 

of their hearings is that is where the attorneys get to argue what is in the record and why it should be compelling one way or the 

other.  He said that once we get the brief from the appellant, we will know what they are arguing.  But, until we get the briefing 

schedule from LUBA, we don’t know what the schedule will be.  Notice will be given that everybody accepts what is in the record, 

and after that nobody can say there are other documents that should be in there.  The appellant provides their documents, and we 

will have an opportunity to respond.  That is where the City Council will have to decide how active it wants to be in this.  Does it 

want Teevin’s attorneys to handle the substantive stuff and the City will deal with the procedural stuff; that conversation still has to 

be had.  Tokos said that this appeal is not the only thing Teevin is working on.  He hasn’t heard anything new in terms of the lease 

agreement.   

 

2.    Infrastructure Task Force.  Tokos noted that an Infrastructure Task Force has been formed largely with City Council and Budget 

Committee members and representatives of Finance, Tokos, and Tim Gross.  The task force will be meeting half a dozen times 

between now and November to come up with a recommendation on how the City might adjust how it does business to come up with 

better funding for infrastructure.  Tokos said this came about following discussion regarding rate increases.  The idea of this 

committee was to expand this to a broader conversation to infrastructure generally to include not only water, sewer, and storm water, 

but also parks, and buildings; the full scope of things that the City has an obligation to maintain and what funding sources it is using.  

Tokos said the group has put together a good schedule for working through those issues and having a recommendation coming out 

at the end of the year.  He noted that some actions may come down to the Planning Commission to work through.   

 



3  Planning Commission meeting minutes 8/12/13. 

Croteau noted that last week there was an article about the dams in the newspaper that he thought made it sound like it was based on 

new information.  Tokos thought this was old news being rehashed somewhat.  The state engineer responsible for dam inspections 

shared with the City Council what he had shared with Tim Gross that we have to take a harder look at this.  Tokos said that he 

believes this was information already shared with the Public Works Director and that he tried to share with the Planning Commission 

on why this project is important.  He doesn’t know that it was presented directly to the Council by Gross as it was by the state 

engineer.  That is why the article ran.  Tokos noted that the City just accepted the proposal from HDR to do the more-detailed 

analysis that will get at further design problems and potentially solutions.      

 

I.  Adjournment.  Having no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Wanda Haney 

Executive Assistant 







c.breves
Typewritten Text
IX.A.

c.breves
Typewritten Text



 



c.breves
Typewritten Text
B.



































 



 Agenda Item #   
 Meeting Date _______________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City Of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title: Consideration and Potential Approval of CoastCom Dark Fiber and Conduit Lease 
Agreement 
 
Prepared By: TEG    Dept Head Approval: TEG      City Manager Approval:   
 
 
Issue Before the Council:    
 
Consideration and potential approval of Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement between the City 
of Newport and CoastCom, Inc., to allow to allow each Party access to, and use of, the other Parties 
fiber optic and conduit facilities under the specific terms and conditions as detailed and described in 
the Agreement. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve and authorize the City Manager to execute agreement 
 
Proposed Motion: 
 
I move to approve the Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement between the City of Newport and 
CoastCom, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to execute said agreement. 
 
Key Facts and Information Summary:    
 
City staff including Director of Public Works, Tim Gross; IT Manager, Richard Dutton; and City 
Recorder, Peggy Hawker; have been working with Local Government Law Group, and CoastCom Inc. 
President Greg Palser over the past 18 months to develop an agreement formalizing the terms, 
conditions, and compensation for shared fiber optic and conduit infrastructure. 
 
CoastCom is permitted under a franchise agreement to provide fiber optic telecommunications in the 
City of Newport. In most cases, their network parallels the fiber routes that the City needs to link 
critical facilities and infrastructure. Furthermore, the City does not have the technical expertise nor 
staffing to actively maintain, locate, and repair fiber optic infrastructure. In some instances, the City 
owns conduit that CoastCom is able to use to the mutual benefit of both Parties. This agreement 
defines lease terms, conditions, and compensation in the form of IRU’s (Irrevocable Right of Use) for 
different leases of fiber or conduit from one Party to the other.  
 
IRU’s 1 through 2.2 define past agreements between the Parties for shared infrastructure. IRU’s 3, 4 
and 5 define current joint venture projects between the City and CoastCom. 
 

c.breves
Typewritten Text
IX.D.

c.breves
Typewritten Text
9-3-2013

c.breves
Typewritten Text



Other Alternatives Considered: 
 
The City considered constructing and maintaining its own fiber network independent of other Parties. 
Because the City’s fiber needs are small and the City does not have the technical expertise nor 
staffing to maintain, locate, and repair such a system, it didn’t make sense to operate an independent 
fiber network.  As a franchised telecommunications company, CoastCom currently is the only firm 
within this region that has the capabilities of partnering with the City to provide the services the City 
needs. 
 
City Council Goals: 
 
Information Technology Division - 1 – 5 Year Goals 
B. Extend fiber throughout all facilities. 
 
Attachment List: 
 

• Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement between the City of Newport and CoastCom, Inc. 
with attachments 

 
Fiscal Notes: 
 
IRU’s 1 through 2.2 define past agreements between the Parties for shared infrastructure and have no 
current fiscal impact.  IRU’s 3, 4 and 5 define current joint venture projects between the City and 
CoastCom. IRU’s 3 and 4 are for lease of fiber for 25 years from CoastCom to the City in the amount 
of $95,000 and $111,611 respectively, for a total of $206,611. IRU 5 is a lease of vacant conduit for 
22 years from the City to CoastCom in the amount of $192,196. The City has funds budgeted in the 
2014 Capital Improvement Plan to account for the $14,415 difference. 



 
Page 1 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

MASTER INDEFEASIBLE RIGHT OF USE AGREEMENT 
 

This Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement (“Agreement”), dated __________, 
2013, is entered into between City of Newport, a political subdivision of the State of 
Oregon, hereafter “City”, and CoastCom, Inc., an Oregon corporation, hereinafter called 
“CoastCom.” CoastCom and City may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” or 
collectively as the “Parties” to this Agreement. 
 
Recitals: 
 
Whereas, City and CoastCom (“the Parties”) each own certain fiber optic cables and conduit 
systems in and around Newport, Oregon, and, 
 
Whereas, both Parties desire to enter into long term Indefeasible Right of Use’s (IRU) to 
allow each Party access to and use of the other Parties Facilities under the specific terms 
and conditions as detailed and described in this Agreement. 
 
Now therefore, it is agreed:  
 
1. DEFINITIONS; PURPOSE AND EFFECT, CONFLICT 

 
1.1 Definitions 
 

1.1.1 Facilities means any and all equipment, equipment housing or locations, 
vaults, conduit, fiber, cables, wire, fixtures, connections, attachments, 
appurtenances, and accessories which are necessary or incidental to the 
use of the Parties’ fiber system, whether located above or below ground. 
Facilities do not include any optical or electronic equipment either Party 
may use in the provisioning of service over any of the above listed 
Facilities. 

 
1.1.2 Maintenance and Operations includes but is not limited to:  the operating, 

monitoring, repairing, responding to locate requests, restoring, removing, 
relocating, maintaining, marking, mapping, or locating of Facilities.  
However, it does not include any electronics or optronics attached to the 
Facilities. 

 
1.2     Purpose and Effect.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide each Party 

access to and use of specific “dark” fiber optic strands in existing fiber optic cable 
routes, as more specifically described in the attached exhibits which by this 
reference are incorporated into this Agreement, and access to and use of specific 
conduits and vaults, as more specifically described in the attached exhibits, in 
underground routes owned by the other Party.  This Agreement supersedes all 
previous oral or written agreements and shall serve as the sole Master Agreement 
for the Parties.  Either Party may submit for approval by the other Party, an 
addendum to this Agreement that details the specific type of Facilities requested 
and the term and consideration of an IRU for each of those Facilities. These 



 
Page 2 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

addenda shall be known as IRU Order Forms (which are attached hereto and by 
this reference incorporated herein).  The exclusive, indefeasible right of use in 
and access to the Facilities listed on the IRU Order Form shall be considered part 
of this Agreement effective on the date each such IRU Order Form is signed by 
both Parties.  

 
1.3 Conflict.  In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Franchise 

Agreement signed on July 17, 2013 by the Parties, the Franchise Agreement 
terms shall prevail unless this Agreement expressly provides that a specific 
provision shall supersede and take precedence over a specific provision within 
the Franchise Agreement.  
 

2. TERM AND RENEWAL TERM 
 
2.1 The term of this Agreement shall be provided in each individual IRU Order 

Form attached.  Upon expiration of an original term, as listed on the IRU Order 
Form, each term shall be subject to automatic one year renewals.  Automatic 
renewal terms shall be for consecutive one year periods unless either Party 
provides notice of its intent not to renew at least 30 days prior to the then 
current original or renewal term.  

 
3.  FACILITIES 

 
3.1 There are multiple types of Facilities covered in this Agreement, the most 

common being dark fiber and conduit systems. These Facilities have different 
physical characteristics and will be addressed and fully described in the IRU 
addendums to this Agreement to govern the responsibilities of both the receiving 
and providing Party.   
 

4. CONSIDERATION 
 

4.1 The consideration for the IRU’s covered under this Agreement is listed on each 
individual IRU Order Form.  It is the intent of the Parties that an IRU Order Form 
will be executed for each existing IRU. 

 
5. MANAGEMENT, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES 
 

5.1 Each Party will appoint a Facilities Manager to manage designated areas 
within the fiber system.  The initial Facilities Manager for City shall be Richard 
Dutton, the City’s IT Manager, 541-574-0620, or his or her designee.  The 
initial Facilities Manager for CoastCom shall be the President of CoastCom, 
Greg Palser, 541-574-9999, or his or her designee.   

 
5.2 City Operation and Maintenance Duties:  City’s Facilities Manager shall provide 

CoastCom with information about and access to City Facilities upon 
CoastCom’s request.  City is not otherwise responsible for the Operation and 
Maintenance of either City or CoastCom Facilities. 



 
Page 3 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

 
5.3 CoastCom Operation and Maintenance Duties:  CoastCom is responsible for 

all Operation and Maintenance of City and Coastcom Facilities.  CoastCom will 
also provide City with information and access to the CoastCom Facilities upon 
request.  CoastCom will maintain the physical integrity and operability of both 
CoastCom and City Facilities during the term of this Agreement. 

 
5.4 If either Party changes Facilities Management responsibility, that Party shall 

provide the other with prior written notification of such changes.  Such prior 
notification should occur at least thirty (30) days in advance of the change, if 
possible.  If 30 days advance notice is not possible or practical, then prior 
notice must occur no later than one (1) week before the change is to take 
place. 

 
5.5 City agrees to reimburse CoastCom for the actual and documented Operation 

and Maintenance costs expended by CoastCom on City Facilities, subject to 
the following: 

 
5.5.1 Such costs shall be based on actual time spent and materials used; and 

 
5.5.2 For fiber or conduit repairs, City shall reimburse CoastCom on a pro-

rata basis, which shall be calculated by determining the number of City 
fibers in the repaired fiber bundle or conduit compared to the number of 
fibers owned by CoastCom and/or other non-City entities in the fiber 
bundle or conduit; 
 

5.5.3 For locating underground Facilities, CoastCom will locate all Facilities 
and will register those Facilities with the Oregon Utility Notification Center 
within two weeks from the signing of this Agreement. City shall reimburse 
CoastCom for such locates only if the locate was made to benefit solely 
City-owned or occupied Facilities and does not benefit any CoastCom or 
third party Facilities.  

 
5.6 Restoration and Relocation Process.  City shall be kept fully informed of all 

determinations made by CoastCom in connection with relocation and 
restoration.  Any such restoration or relocation shall be constructed 
substantially in accordance with the original construction and subject to 
Section 5.5 to determine the allocation of costs.   

 
6. INTEGRITY OF THE FACILITIES 
 

6.1 CoastCom is responsible for maintaining the physical integrity of the both City 
and CoastCom Facilities and shall make every commercially reasonable effort 
to ensure the integrity of the Facilities during the term of this Agreement. 

 
6.2 Should any Facilities be damaged or made unusable in any way during the 

term of this Agreement, CoastCom agrees to make all necessary repairs. If 



 
Page 4 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

CoastCom cannot make the necessary repairs within a time period acceptable 
to both Parties, CoastCom and City agree to work together  to provide 
replacement Facilities necessary to reestablish the integrity of the damaged 
Facilities, provided that additional replacement Facilities are available.  If 
replacement Facilities are not available or other substitutes cannot be provided 
as reasonably determined by both Parties, either Party may terminate the 
addendum to this Agreement that governs the damaged Facilities without 
further liability, upon notice to the other Party.  

 
7. REQUIRED RIGHTS 
 

7.1 Each Party agrees to obtain and maintain the Required Rights in full force and 
effect for and during the Term of this Agreement (and any addendum made 
part of this Agreement). "Required Rights" mean those rights, licenses, 
permits, authorizations, rights-of-way, easements or other approvals from a 
third party to place a portion of the Facilities in or on the third party's property.   

 
7.2 In the event either Party shall receive notice from any entity or provider of a 

Required Right that either Party has failed to observe or perform its obligations 
under such Required Right, and neither Party is contesting in good faith the 
validity of such claimed or alleged failure, the Party that received the notice 
shall give written notice to the other Party and that Party may, at its option, 
cure or correct such failure and the first Party shall reimburse the other Party 
for the pro rata costs and expenses incurred by the other Party in connection 
therewith. 

 
8. FEES, LICENSES AND TAXES 
 

Each Party shall be responsible for any applicable personal property taxes on property 
it owns or leases from the other Party or from a third party, franchise and privilege 
taxes on its business, income taxes based on its net income and sales, use, excise, 
value added, services, duty, consumption or other taxes assessed on the sale, 
installation, use or provision of its services.  The Parties agree to reasonably cooperate 
with each other to enable each to more accurately determine its own tax liability and to 
minimize such liability to the extent legally permissible.    
 

9. DEFAULT/CURE 
 

9.1 Events of Default.  If any Party is in breach or default (Defaulting Party), under 
this Agreement, the other Party or Parties (Nondefaulting Party) may notify in 
writing the Defaulting Party that it is in breach or default, such notice to be 
effective upon its receipt by the Defaulting Party.  The following events shall 
constitute breach or default under this Agreement: 

 
9.1.1 Failure to perform in any material respect any obligations required to 

be observed or performed hereunder; or 
 



 
Page 5 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

9.1.2 Any representation or warranty made by one Party to another herein 
proving incorrect in any material respect as of the date of the making 
thereof; or 

 
9.1.3 CoastCom files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or a petition in 

bankruptcy is filed against  CoastCom and not dismissed within sixty 
(60) days, or CoastCom is adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent, or files 
any petition or answer seeking or acquiescing in any reorganization, 
arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or 
similar relief under any Federal, State, or other statute, law, or 
regulation relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, or other relief for debtors, 
or seeks or consents to or acquiesces in the appointment of any 
trustee, receiver, custodian, liquidator, or similar official of  CoastCom, 
or makes any general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or 

 
9.1.4 Willful and material interference by one Party with another Party’s 

operations; or 
 
9.1.5 Failure to make full restitution for any damage to one Party’s real 

property or equipment caused as a result of the sole negligent or willful 
actions by the other Party within a reasonable period of a demand for 
such restitution. 

 
9.2 Remedies 
 

9.2.1 Defaulting Party’s Right to Cure.  The Defaulting Party shall have the 
right to cure any breach or default under this Agreement within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the receipt by the Defaulting Party of 
notification of such breach or default.  In the event that any breach or 
default is of a nature such that it may not reasonably be cured within 
thirty (30) calendar days, the Defaulting Party shall have the right to 
provide the Non-defaulting Party with a plan for the appropriate actions 
to cure such breach or default.  Within the thirty (30) calendar day 
period, the Defaulting Party must commence diligently pursuing 
appropriate action under the plan to cure the breach or default, in 
which event the Defaulting Party shall have a longer period of time to 
cure the breach or default, except where circumstances or other 
obligations will not allow the Non-defaulting Party such an opportunity, 
so long as the Defaulting Party shall continue to be diligently pursuing 
appropriate action during such period; provided, however, that in no 
event shall such time period exceed 120 days from the date of receipt 
of notification of the breach or default. 

 
9.2.2 Non-defaulting Party’s Remedies.  After the time allowed the Defaulting 

Party to cure any breach or default has expired, then the Non-
defaulting Party shall have the right to:  (A) terminate this Agreement 
with respect to the Defaulting Party; (B) cure any breach or default of 



 
Page 6 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

the Defaulting Party to preserve the Non-defaulting Party’s rights that 
may be prejudiced as a result of such breach or default; and (C) 
exercise and pursue all other rights and remedies available to it under 
applicable law.  The right of Termination set forth in this subsection 
shall include the right of partial termination, such that, in the event that 
the default can be cured or removed or otherwise reduced in effect by 
an action of the Non-defaulting Party to end or remove a portion of this 
Agreement, and such an action will not necessarily cause the complete 
termination of this Agreement, the Non-defaulting Party shall have the 
right to make a unilateral modification of this Agreement, such action 
becoming effective upon notice to the Defaulting Party.  Such 
modification shall NOT be grounds for the Defaulting Party to declare a 
Default as might otherwise be permitted under this Article. 

 
9.2.3 Rights and Remedies Cumulative. Except as otherwise provided in 

this Agreement, any right or remedy afforded to and party under any 
provision of this Agreement on account of breach or default by the 
other is in addition to, and not in lieu of, all rights or remedies 
afforded the Parties under any other provision of this Agreement, by 
law or otherwise on account of the breach or default. 

 
10. TERMINATION 
 

10.1 This Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both Parties.  Such 
termination by mutual consent shall be in written form stating the effective date 
of termination and shall not result in any penalty to either Party.  
 

10.2 This Agreement may be terminated by either Party in the event that the other 
Party fails to comply in a material way with all applicable federal, state and local 
regulations.  In the event that either Party wishes to terminate this Agreement 
under this provision, written notice to cure must be given to the other Party 
allowing ninety (90) days to comply with the applicable regulation, statute or law.  
In the event that notified Party has failed to comply with the applicable 
regulation, statute or law by the end of the ninety (90) day notification period, the 
Agreement shall be immediately terminated.  
 

11.  INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Subject to the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, both Parties agree 
to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other Party and its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, invitees, and representatives, from and against any and all claims, 
costs, losses, expenses, demands, actions, or causes of action, including reasonable 
attorney's fees and other costs and expenses of litigation and appeal or review, arising 
out of or related to any action, or failure to act, by that Party or its employees, agents, 
invitees or subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement or from the 
installation, operation, use, maintenance, repair, removal, or presence of the Facilities.  
If the responsible Party fails or neglects to defend such actions the other Party may 



 
Page 7 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

defend the same and any expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) which it 
may pay or incur in defending said actions, as well as the amount of any judgment or 
settlement which it may be required to pay, shall promptly be reimbursed by the 
responsible Party.  This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

12. INSURANCE 
 

CoastCom and City shall each be responsible for providing workers compensation 
insurance as required by law. Each Party shall, at its own expense, obtain and keep 
in full force and effect at all times for the duration of this Agreement, with a carrier or 
carriers having a Best’s financial strength rating of A- or better, insurance policies for 
Comprehensive Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability Insurance, or equivalent 
self-insurance program, including automobile insurance, in at least the following 
amounts: Bodily Injury to any one person - $2,000,000.00; Bodily Injury Aggregate - 
$2,000,000.00; Property Damage in any one accident - $2,000,000.00; and Property 
Damage Aggregate - $2,000,000.00. Such insurance shall cover fire and all other 
perils. Each Party shall furnish the other Party a certificate of such insurance, and 
such insurance shall name that Party, its officers, directors, employees and agents as 
additional insureds and shall contain a provision that no change or cancellation shall 
become effective except upon thirty (30) days prior notice to the covered Party. 

 
13. WARRANTIES 
 

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, TO THE EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, EACH PARTY IS PROVIDING ITS OWN 
FACILITIES AS IS AND WITH ALL FAULTS, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES, WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE FACILITIES PROVIDED 
OR TO BE PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED 
TO ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR LACK OF NEGLIGENCE OR LACK OF 
WORKMANLIKE EFFORT. 
 
Each Party warrants they have rights to the Facilities they own, and the other Party will 
have quiet enjoyment or lack of infringement with respect to the Facilities they receive 
through an IRU.  
 

14. LIMITATION(S) OF LIABILITY 
 

To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, in no event will either Party be 
liable under any contract, negligence, strict liability or other theory for any special, 
indirect, incidental, or consequential damages (including but not limited to damages for 
loss of profits or confidential or other information, for business interruption, for personal 
injury, for loss of privacy, for failure to meet any duty including of good faith or of 
reasonable care, for negligence and for any other pecuniary or other loss whatsoever) 
arising out of or in any way related to any breach by either Party of this Agreement, to 
the provision or use of or inability to use the Facilities or otherwise with respect to any 
subject matter of this Agreement, even if that Party has been advised of the possibility 



 
Page 8 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

of such damages. Nor will either Party be subject to punitive or other exemplary 
damages.  This provision shall survive the term of this agreement. 

 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 

In connection with each Party’s activities under this Agreement, each Party shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 

16. OREGON LAW AND FORUM 
 

This Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the State of Oregon.  Any 
litigation between City and CoastCom arising under this Agreement or out of work 
performed under this Agreement shall occur, if in the state courts, in the Lincoln County 
Circuit Court, and if in the federal courts, in the United States District Court for the 
District of Oregon in Portland. 
 

17. NOTICE 
 

Any notice provided for under this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing and 
delivered personally to the following addressee or deposited in the United States Mail, 
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows, or to 
such other address as the receiving Party hereafter shall specify in writing. 
 

If to CoastCom:  CoastCom, Inc. 
ATTN: Greg Palser 
151 E Olive Street 

    Newport, OR 97365 
 
If to City:   City of Newport 
    ATTN: Richard Dutton 
    169 SW Coast Highway 

       Newport, OR 97365 
 

Names and addresses specified above may be changed through notice given in 
accordance with this provision. 
 

18. SEVERABILITY 
 

If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of law to be illegal or in conflict 
with any law, the validity of the remaining terms, conditions and provisions shall not be 
affected; and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be illegal or invalid. 
 

19. ASSIGNMENT 
 

Neither Party may assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement or its rights or 
obligations hereunder to any person or entity without the prior written consent of the 



 
Page 9 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

other Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; however, either Party 
shall have the right, without the consent of the other Party, to assign or otherwise 
transfer the Agreement to any person or entity that controls, is under the control of, or 
is under common control with the assigning Party, or any corporation into which such 
Party may be merged or consolidated or that purchases all or substantially all of the 
assets of such Party used by such Party in connection with its business; provided, 
further, that any such assignment or transfer shall be subject to the other Party’s rights 
under this Agreement and any assignee or transferee shall continue to perform the 
assigning or transferring Party’s obligations under this Agreement.  This Agreement 
shall benefit and bind City and CoastCom and their respective permitted successors 
and assigns.  
 

20. FORCE MAJEURE 
 

Neither Party of this Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or defaults caused 
by fire, riot, or acts of God, sovereign, public enemy or war, cable cuts or acts of third 
parties which is or are beyond that Party’s reasonable control.  The Parties may 
terminate, without penalty, this Agreement upon written notice after determining such 
delay or default shall reasonably prevent successful performance of the Agreement. 
 

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement and all attachments constitute the entire Agreement between the 
Parties.  No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall 
bind either Party unless in writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both 
Parties.  Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be effective only 
in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given.  There are no other 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement.  Each Party, by the signature of its authorized 
representative, hereby acknowledges that he/she has read this Agreement, 
understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions. 
 

22. PARTIAL INVALIDITY 
 

If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a proper court to be invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect the 
performance of other provisions of this Agreement and this Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect without such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision. 
 

23. WAIVERS  
 

No waiver of any provision or breach of this Agreement shall be effective unless such 
waiver is in writing and signed by the waiving Party and any such waiver shall not be 
deemed a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement or any other breach of this 
Agreement. 



 
Page 10 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

 
24. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
  

This Agreement creates rights and obligations only between the Parties hereto.  
There are no third party beneficiaries. 

 
25. NO PARTNERSHIP CREATED   
 

The relationship between City and CoastCom shall not be that of partners, agents, or 
joint venturers for one another, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to constitute a partnership or agency agreement between them for any 
purposes, including federal income tax purposes.   City and CoastCom, in performing 
any of their obligations hereunder, independent Parties and shall discharge their 
contractual obligations at their own risk. 
 

26. PRIOR APPROPRIATION   
 

All debts and obligations of City are subject to prior appropriation of funds pursuant to 
the applicable Oregon Budget laws. 
 

27. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 

Each Party represents and warrants that: (i) it has the full right and authority to enter 
into, execute, deliver, and perform its obligations under this Agreement; (ii) it has 
taken all requisite corporate and governmental action to approve the execution, 
delivery and performance of this Agreement; (iii) this Agreement constitutes a legal, 
valid and binding obligation enforceable against such Party in accordance with its 
terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, creditors' rights and general equitable 
principles; (iv) its execution of and performance under this Agreement does not violate 
any applicable existing regulations, rules, statutes or court orders of any local, state or 
federal government agency, court or body, and (v) the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and the performance of the terms, covenants, and conditions contained 
herein will not violate the charter, articles of incorporation, or bylaws of the Party and 
will not conflict with and will not constitute a material breach of, or default under, the 
provisions of any contract by which any Party is bound.  Except as otherwise stated 
herein, no approval, authorization, or other action by any governmental authority or 
filing with any such authority which has not been obtained or accomplished is required 
in connection with the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement. 



 
Page 11 of 11 – Master Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement 

  

 
28. SIGNATURES 

 
City of Newport 
 
By  
 
Name: 
__________________________________ 
 
Title: 
___________________________________ 
 
Date   
 

 
CoastCom, Inc. 
 
 
By 
   
Name: Greg Palser 
 
Title: President 
  
Date 



IRU No.: 1

 Effective Date:  2/11/2008
Term : 25 Years

Consideration:

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Number  of 
IRU    

Fibers
Total Fibers

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

A 12 48 25% ‐                        $29,260.00
A 12 96 13% ‐                       
A 12 48 25% ‐                       

$29,260.00

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Conduit 
Footage

Cost Per 
Foot

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

$0.00

CoastCom, Inc.

Date: _______________________ Date: _______________________

By: ________________________

Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________

By: ________________________

Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________

City of Newport

A map of the fiber or conduit routes and related access points are attached as Exhibit A and by this reference made part of this Addendum. 

Fiber Route

Courthouse to Fire Station
6th and Nye St Vault to Nye Beach Vault

Totals

Use this table for Fiber IRU's

Conduit Route

Totals

Use this table for Conduit IRU's

911 Center to Library then on to Courthouse

IRU ORDER FORM

This IRU Order Form is to Add or Remove Facilities based on the table below to the Master Indefeasible Right of Use  (IRU) Agreement between the City of Newport and 
CoastCom, Inc., dated September 3, 2013. 

The Consideration for this IRU is $29,260.00. The Non Recurring Charges listed in the table below have already been paid to CoastCom by the City.

BY SIGNING BELOW, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE TO EACH OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THIS ATTACHEMENT WHICH IS MADE PART OF THE MASTER IRU AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF NEWPORT AND COASTCOM. THE PERSONS 
SIGNING BELOW WARRANT THAT THEY ARE DULY AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.

Facilities Owner / IRU Grantor
CoastCom, Inc.

IRU Grantee
City of Newport



IRU Number 1
Exhibit A

Courthouse to Fire Hall Vault
96 SM Fiber

City 12 Fibers
County 12 Fibers
CLPUD 36 Fibers

CoastCom 36 Fibers

911 Center to Courthouse 
48 SM Fiber

City 12 Fibers
County 12 Fibers

CoastCom 24 Fibers

Nye Beach Vault to 6th & Nye Vault
48 SM Fiber

City 12 Fibers
County 12 Fibers

CoastCom 24 Fibers

Fire Hall Vault

Nye Beach Vault

6th and Nye Vault

Library Vault

Lee St Vault

911 Center Vault

Fire Hall 

Courthouse

Library



IRU No.: 2

 Effective Date:  12/10/2009
Term : 25 Years

Consideration:

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Number  of 
IRU    

Fibers

Total 
Fibers

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

A 24 96 25% ‐                       $4,122.00

$4,122.00

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Conduit 
Footage

Cost Per 
Foot

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

$0.00

CoastCom, Inc.

Totals

Date: _______________________ Date: _______________________

City of Newport

By: ________________________ By: ________________________

Name: ______________________ Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________ Title: _______________________

The Consideration for this IRU is $4,122.00. The Non Recurring Charges listed in the table below have already been paid to CoastCom by the City.

A map of the fiber or conduit routes and related access points are attached as Exhibit A and by this reference made part of this Addendum. 

Facilities Owner / IRU Grantor
CoastCom, Inc.

BY SIGNING BELOW, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE TO EACH OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THIS ATTACHEMENT WHICH IS MADE PART OF THE MASTER IRU AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF NEWPORT AND COASTCOM. THE PERSONS 
SIGNING BELOW WARRANT THAT THEY ARE DULY AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.

Use this table for Fiber IRU's

Fiber Route

Courthouse to SS101 Vault

Totals

Use this table for Conduit IRU's

Conduit Route

IRU ORDER FORM

This IRU Order Form is to Add or Remove Facilities based on the table below to the Master Indefeasible Right of Use  (IRU) Agreement between the City of Newport 
and CoastCom, Inc., dated September 3, 2013. 

IRU Grantee
City of Newport



IRU Number 2
Exhibit A

Courthouse to Substation 101
96 SM Fiber

City 24 Fibers
County 24 Fibers

CoastCom 48 Fibers

SS101 Vault

Courthouse

Hearney St Vault

3rd & Fogarty Vault

2nd & Douglas Vault

2nd & Benson Vault

Northside WWTP Vault

4th St Vault

City Shops

Existing City Fiber



IRU No.: 2.1

 Effective Date:  8/21/2010
Term : 25 Years

Consideration:

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Number  of 
IRU    

Fibers

Total 
Fibers

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

A 24 48 50% ‐                       $9,618.26

$9,618.26

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Conduit 
Footage

Cost Per 
Foot

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

$0.00

CoastCom, Inc.

Date: _______________________ Date: _______________________

City of Newport

By: ________________________ By: ________________________

Name: ______________________ Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________ Title: _______________________

BY SIGNING BELOW, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE TO EACH OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THIS ATTACHEMENT WHICH IS MADE PART OF THE MASTER IRU AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF NEWPORT AND COASTCOM. THE PERSONS 
SIGNING BELOW WARRANT THAT THEY ARE DULY AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.

Totals

Use this table for Conduit IRU's

Conduit Route

Totals

SS101 Vault to City Pool 

IRU ORDER FORM

This IRU Order Form is to Add or Remove Facilities based on the table below to the Master Indefeasible Right of Use  (IRU) Agreement between the City of Newport 
and CoastCom, Inc., dated September 3, 2013. 

Facilities Owner / IRU Grantor IRU Grantee
CoastCom, Inc. City of Newport

The Consideration for this IRU is $9,618.26. The Non Recurring Charges listed in the table below have already been paid to CoastCom by the City.

A map of the fiber or conduit routes and related access points are attached as Exhibit A and by this reference made part of this Addendum. 

Use this table for Fiber IRU's

Fiber Route



IRU Number 2.1
Exhibit A

SS101 to City Pool
48 Single Mode Fiber

City 24 Fibers
CoastCom 24 Fibers

City Pool

SS101 Vault



IRU No.: 2.2

 Effective Date:  10/27/2011
Term : 25 Years

Consideration:

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Number  of 
IRU    

Fibers

Total 
Fibers

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

A 24 48 50% ‐                       $21,815.19

$21,815.19

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Conduit 
Footage

Cost Per 
Foot

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

$0.00

CoastCom, Inc.

Date: _______________________ Date: _______________________

City of Newport

By: ________________________ By: ________________________

Name: ______________________ Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________ Title: _______________________

BY SIGNING BELOW, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE TO EACH OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THIS ATTACHEMENT WHICH IS MADE PART OF THE MASTER IRU AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF NEWPORT AND COASTCOM. THE PERSONS 
SIGNING BELOW WARRANT THAT THEY ARE DULY AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.

Totals

Use this table for Conduit IRU's

Conduit Route

Totals

City Pool to Water Treatment Plant

IRU ORDER FORM

This IRU Order Form is to Add or Remove Facilities based on the table below to the Master Indefeasible Right of Use  (IRU) Agreement between the City of Newport 
and CoastCom, Inc., dated September 3, 2013. 

Facilities Owner / IRU Grantor IRU Grantee
CoastCom, Inc. City of Newport

The Consideration for this IRU is $21,815.19. The Non Recurring Charges listed in the table below have already been paid to CoastCom by the City.

A map of the fiber or conduit routes and related access points are attached as Exhibit A and by this reference made part of this Addendum. 

Use this table for Fiber IRU's

Fiber Route



IRU Number 2.2 
Exhibit A

City Pool to Water 
Treatment Plant

48 Single Mode Fiber
24 Fibers City

24 Fibers CoastCom

City of Newport
Water Treatment Plant

City Pool

Big Creek Rd Vault



IRU No: 3

 Effective Date:  9/3/2013
Term : 25 Years

Consideration:

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Number  of 
IRU    

Fibers

Total 
Fibers

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

A 36 144 25% ‐                       $92,000.00
A 36 96 38% ‐                      
A 36 72 50% ‐                      
A 36 144 25% ‐                       $3,000.00

$95,000.00

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Conduit 
Footage

Cost Per 
Foot

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

$0.00

CoastCom, Inc.

Date: _______________________ Date: _______________________

City of Newport

By: ________________________ By: ________________________

Name: ______________________ Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________ Title: _______________________

BY SIGNING BELOW, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE TO EACH OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THIS ATTACHEMENT WHICH IS MADE PART OF THE MASTER IRU AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF NEWPORT AND COASTCOM. THE PERSONS 
SIGNING BELOW WARRANT THAT THEY ARE DULY AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.

Fiber Route

Fire Hall to Oceanview & Hwy 101 Vault
Oceanview & Hwy 101 Vault to CLPUD Big Creek Substation
CLPUD Substation to Water Treatment Plant
Northside Waste Water Treatment Plant to Fire Hall Vault
Totals

Use this table for Conduit IRU's

Conduit Route

Totals

The Consideration for this IRU is $95,000.00. The Non Recurring Charges are due and payable within 30 days after City receives notice that construction is complete.

A map of the fiber or conduit routes and related access points are attached as Exhibits A & B and by this reference made part of this Addendum. 

Use this table for Fiber IRU's

Facilities Owner / IRU Grantor
CoastCom, Inc.

IRU ORDER FORM

This IRU Order Form is to Add or Remove Facilities based on the table below to the Master Indefeasible Right of Use  (IRU) Agreement between the City of Newport 
and CoastCom, Inc., dated September 3, 2013. 

IRU Grantee
City of Newport



IRU Number 3 
Exhibit A

Fire Hall to Oceanview & 
Hwy 101 Vault

144 SM Fiber Cable
City 36 Fibers
PUD 48 Fibers

CoastCom 60 Fibers

Oceanview & 101 Vault
To CLPUD Vault

96 SM Fiber Cable
City 36 Fibers
PUD 36 Fibers

CoastCom 24 Fibers

CLPUD Vault
To WTP

72 SM Fiber Cable
City 36 Fibers

CoastCom 36 Fibers

Lake St Lift Station

Big Creek Pump Station 
and Vault

Water Treatment Plant

Fire Hall Vault

Edenview Vault

Oceanview & 101 Vault

101 & 35th Vault

CLPUD Big Creek 
Sub Station 

CLPUD Vault

WTP Vault

25th St Vault

11th & Lake St Vault



IRU Number 3
Exhibit B

Fire Hall Vault to WWTP
144 SM Cable

36 City
108 CoastCom

Northside Waste 
Water Treatment Plant

Fire Hall Vault



IRU No.: 4

 Effective Date:  9/3/2013
Term : 25 Years

Consideration:

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Number  of 
IRU    

Fibers
Total Fibers

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

A 36 72 50% ‐                        $111,611.00
‐                       
‐                       
‐                       

$111,611.00

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Conduit 
Footage

Cost Per 
Foot

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

$0.00

CoastCom, Inc.

Date: _______________________ Date: _______________________

City of Newport

By: ________________________ By: ________________________

Name: ______________________ Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________ Title: _______________________

Totals

BY SIGNING BELOW, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE TO EACH OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THIS ATTACHEMENT WHICH IS MADE PART OF THE MASTER IRU AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF NEWPORT AND COASTCOM. THE PERSONS 
SIGNING BELOW WARRANT THAT THEY ARE DULY AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.

Totals

Use this table for Conduit IRU's

Conduit Route

The Consideration for this IRU is $111,611.00. The Non Recurring Charges are due and payable within 30 days after City receives notice that construction is complete.

A map of the fiber or conduit routes and related access points are attached as Exhibit A and by this reference made part of this Addendum. 

Use this table for Fiber IRU's

Fiber Route

City Vault FHH15 to South Beach Fire Station and Airport Terminal

IRU ORDER FORM

This IRU Order Form is to Add or Remove Facilities based on the table below to the Master Indefeasible Right of Use  (IRU) Agreement between the City of Newport and 
CoastCom, Inc., dated September 3, 2013. 

Facilities Owner / IRU Grantor IRU Grantee
CoastCom, Inc. City of Newport



IRU Number 4
Exhibit A

City Vault FHH15 to SB 
Fire Station and Airport

72 SM Fiber Cable
City 36 Fibers

CoastCom 36 Fibers

City Vault FHH 15

South Beach 
Fire Station

Airport Terminal



IRU No.: 5

 Effective Date:  9/3/2013
Term : 22 Years

Consideration:

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Number  of 
IRU    

Fibers
Total Fibers

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

$0.00

Add (A)       
or        

Remove (R) 
Facilities

Conduit 
Footage

Cost Per 
Foot

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Percentage

Annual 
Recurring 
Charge

Non Recurring 
Charge

A North side Pump Station to Effluent Pump Station 4,479 0.50 100% $2,239.50 ‐
A Effluent Pump Station to City Vault 15 in South Beach 12,308 0.50 100% $6,154.00 ‐
A 679 0.50 100% $339.50 ‐

$8,733.00 $0.00

CoastCom, Inc.

IRU ORDER FORM

This IRU Order Form is to Add or Remove Facilities based on the table below to the Master Indefeasible Right of Use  (IRU) Agreement between the City of Newport and 
CoastCom, Inc., dated September 3, 2013. 

Facilities Owner / IRU Grantor IRU Grantee
City of Newport

Totals

Use this table for Conduit IRU's

Conduit Route

The Annual Consideration for this IRU is $8,733.00.00. CoastCom shall prepay this IRU for the entire Term of 22 years for a total of $192,126.00 upon signing of this 
Addendum by both Parties. 

A map of the fiber or conduit routes and related access points are attached as Exhibit A and by this reference made part of this Addendum. 

Use this table for Fiber IRU's

Fiber Route

Date: _______________________ Date: _______________________

CoastCom, Inc.

City of Newport

By: ________________________ By: ________________________

Name: ______________________ Name: ______________________

Title: _______________________ Title: _______________________

City Vault 9 SB Marine Drive to Telco Vault

Totals
BY SIGNING BELOW, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THEY HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE TO EACH OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF THIS ATTACHEMENT WHICH IS MADE PART OF THE MASTER IRU AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF NEWPORT AND COASTCOM. THE PERSONS 
SIGNING BELOW WARRANT THAT THEY ARE DULY AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.



IRU Number 5
Exhibit A

City Vaults



 Agenda Item #   
 Meeting Date _______________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City Of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title: Consideration and Potential Approval of HDR Agreement for Engineer of Record 
Dam Consultant 
 
Prepared By: TEG     Dept Head Approval: TEG       City Manager Approval:    
 
 
Issue Before the Council:    
 
Consideration and potential approval of agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc. for Engineer of Record 
Dam Consulting Services 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve and direct the City Manager to execute the contract 
 
Proposed Motion: 
 
I move to approve the contract with HDR Engineering, Inc. to provide Engineer of Record Services for 
dam evaluation and design and direct the City Manager to execute said contract. 
 
Key Facts and Information Summary:    
 
In late May, 2013, the City solicited engineering consulting firms for the purpose of providing on-going 
professional services for the analysis and design of dam structures. Two consultant teams submitted 
proposals for this solicitation led by CH2M Hill and HDR Engineering, Inc. 
 
A review team comprised of the Director of Public Works, Senior Project Manager, City Manager, 
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor, and one member of City Council rated the two firms and 
unanimously selected HDR Engineering, Inc. as the most qualified consultant team. 
 
This agreement defines the terms and conditions for providing services to the City including a general 
rate schedule of personnel classifications that may be working on City projects.  Projects under this 
master agreement will be further defined for scope and cost through task orders, which are reviewed 
by engineering staff and approved by the City Manager. 
 
Other Alternatives Considered: 
 
None. 
 
 

c.breves
Typewritten Text
IX.E.

c.breves
Typewritten Text
September 3, 2013



City Council Goals: 
 
Water Division - Ongoing Goals 
A. Plan for remediation or replacement of upper and lower Big Creek dams. 
 
Attachment List: 
 

• Engineering Services Agreement – Dam Consultant of Record (HDR Engineering, Inc.) 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 
There is no financial impact to execute the Master Agreement. The City has budgeted $350,000 in 
FY14 for Task Order 1 under this agreement to continue with the seismic analysis on both dam 
structures and provide remediation recommendations. 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  1

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
DAM CONSULTANT OF RECORD 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT  is between  the City of Newport, an Oregon municipal  corporation  (City), and HDR 
ENGINEERING INC., a Nebraska corporation, which  is registered to practice engineering  in the State of 
Oregon (Engineer). 
 
RECITALS 
 
A.  Pursuant  to  District  Rule  137‐048‐0220,  the  City  of  Newport  (City)  solicited  proposals  for 
professional engineering services to assist the City  in  identifying and correcting deficiencies associated 
with the Upper and Lower Big Creek Dams which impound water for the City’s municipal drinking water 
system. 
 
B.  After reviewing all proposals, the City has selected HDR Engineering, Inc. (Engineer) as the most 
qualified engineer to provide the proposed services.   
 
C.  Engineer is willing and qualified to perform such services. 
 
TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 
1.   Engineer's Scope of Services 
 
Engineer shall perform professional engineering services related to specific dam analysis and remediation 
projects pursuant to Task Orders executed by both parties and attached to this Agreement by reference.  
This Agreement does not require the City to utilize Engineer for any or all projects related to dam analysis 
and remediation.  The City is free to utilize other engineers or consultants as it deems appropriate.   
 
2.   Effective Date and Duration 
 
This agreement is effective on execution by both parties and shall expire, unless otherwise terminated or 
extended, after three years.  The parties may extend the term by mutual agreement. 
 
3.   Engineer's Fee and Schedules 
 
  A.   Fee 

 
Fees for services under this Agreement shall be based on time and materials and pursuant to the 
rates shown in Exhibit A.  Engineer may increase the rates shown in Exhibit A on an annual basis, 
subject  to  the written  approval  of  the  City.    Engineer will  alert  the  City  that  Engineer when 
Engineer  is  increasing  its fees.   Engineer will bill for progress payments on a monthly basis.    In 
order  to determine  the maximum monetary  limit  for each Task Order, Engineer will  submit a 
schedule and a  labor hour estimate based on  the  rates shown  in Exhibit A. Once a maximum 
monetary  limit  (not to exceed amount)  is determined, and accepted by the City, Engineer will 
invoice monthly progress payments based on actual time worked on the project.  The maximum 
monetary limit will not be exceeded without prior written approval by the City.  Projects partially 
completed may be paid for in proportion to the degree of completion.   



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  2

 
Engineer may from time to time be asked to perform consultation services not related to a specific 
project.  In  such  instances,  if  services  are  less  than  $5,000,  a written  Task Order will  not  be 
required, and Engineer will be reimbursed at the rates shown in Exhibit A, 
 
Engineer will be  reimbursed  for direct  charges  such as  the  cost of printing, postage, delivery 
services, and subconsultant fees. Unless specifically noted in the Task Order, direct charges will 
be billed at cost without any markup. Office expenses such as computer cost, telephone calls, and 
overhead expenses are incidental and are included in the hourly rates shown in Exhibit A.  

 
  B.  Payment Schedule for Basic Fee 
 

Payments  shall  be  made  within  30  days  of  receipt  of  monthly  billings  based  on  the  work 
completed.  Payment by the City shall release the City from any further obligation for payment to 
the  engineer  for  service  or  services  performed  or  expenses  incurred  as  of  the  date  of  the 
statement of services. Payment shall be made only for work actually completed as of the date of 
invoice. Payment shall not be considered acceptance or approval of any work or waiver of any 
defects therein. 
 
C.   Payment for Contingency Tasks  
 
When  agreed  to  in  writing  by  the  City,  the  Engineer  shall  provide  services  described  as 
Contingency Tasks in a Task Order.   
 
D.   Certified Cost Records 
 
Engineer shall furnish certified cost records for all billings to substantiate all charges.  Engineer’s 
accounts shall be subject to audit by the City. Engineer shall submit billings in a form satisfactory 
to the City.  At a minimum, each billing shall identify the Task Order under such work is performed, 
work completed during the billing period, percentage of work completed to date, and percentage 
of budget used to date for each task.   
 
E.   Identification 
 
Engineer shall furnish to the City its employer identification number.   
 

  F.   Payment – General 
 

1)   Engineer  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 
2)   Engineer shall pay employees at least time and a half pay for all overtime worked 

in excess of 40 hours in any one week except for individuals under the contract 
who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 USC sections 201 to 
209 from receiving overtime.  Any subcontractors utilized by Engineer under this 
Agreement will be paid according to the then prevailing wage. 

 
3)   Engineer shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co‐partnership, 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  3

association or corporation, furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care or other 
needed  care  and  attention  incident  to  sickness or  injury  to  the  employees of 
Engineer  or  all  sums which  Engineer  agrees  to  pay  for  such  services  and  all 
moneys  and  sums which  Engineer  collected  or  deducted  from  the wages  of 
employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
providing or paying for such service. 

 
4)   Engineer shall make payments promptly, as due, to all persons supplying services 

or materials for work covered under this contract. Engineer shall not permit any 
lien or claim  to be  filed or prosecuted against  the City on any account of any 
service or materials furnished. 

 
5)   If Engineer fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for 

labor,  materials,  or  services  furnished  to  Engineer,  sub‐consultant  or 
subcontractor by any person as such claim becomes due, City may pay such claim 
and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due to 
the Engineer. The payment of the claim in this manner shall not relieve Engineer 
or its surety from obligation with respect to any unpaid claims. 

 
G.  Schedule 
 

Engineer shall provide services under this Agreement  in accordance with the Project Schedule of each 
Task Order.   

 
4.   Ownership of Plans and Documents: Records; Confidentiality 
 

A. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set forth 
below:  
 
1) Engineer  Intellectual  Property  means  any  intellectual  property  owned  by 

Engineer and developed independently from this Agreement that is applicable to 
the Services or included in the Work Product. 
 

2) Third  Party  Intellectual  Property  means  any  intellectual  property  owned  by 
parties other than City or Engineer that is applicable to the Services or included 
in the Work Product. 
 

3) Work Product means the Services Engineer delivers or  is required to deliver to 
City under this Agreement.   Work Product  includes every  invention, discovery, 
work  of  authorship,  trade  secret  or  other  tangible  or  intangible  item  and  all 
intellectual property rights therein, and all copies of plans, specifications, reports 
and other materials, whether completed, partially completed or in draft form.   
 

B.   Work Product 
 

1)   Except as provided elsewhere  in  this Agreement, all Work Product created by 
Engineer  pursuant  to  this  Agreement,  including  derivative  works  and 
compilations, and whether or not such Work Product is considered a “work made 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  4

for hire” or an employment to invent, shall be the exclusive property of City.  City 
and Engineer agree that such original works of authorship are “work made for 
hire”  of  which  City  is  the  author  within  the  meaning  of  the  United  States 
Copyright Act.  To the extent that City is not the owner of the intellectual property 
rights in such Work Product, Engineer hereby irrevocably assigns to City any and 
all of its rights, title, and interest in all original Work Product created pursuant to 
this Agreement, whether arising from copyright, patent, trademark, trade secret, 
or any other state or federal  intellectual property  law or doctrine.   Upon City’s 
reasonable  request,  Engineer  shall  execute  such  further  documents  and 
instruments necessary to fully vest such rights in City.  Engineer forever waives 
any  and  all  rights  relating  to  original Work  Product  created  pursuant  to  this 
Agreement, including without limitation, any and all rights arising under 17 USC 
§106A or any other rights of  identification of authorship or rights of approval, 
restriction or limitation on use or subsequent modifications. 

  
2)   In the event Engineer Intellectual Property is necessary for the use of any Work 

Product,  Engineer  hereby  grants  to  City  an  irrevocable,  non‐exclusive,  non‐
transferable, perpetual, royalty‐free license to use Engineer Intellectual Property, 
including the right of City to authorize contractors, Engineers and others to use 
Engineer Intellectual Property, for the purposes described in this Agreement.  

 
3)   In the event Third Party Intellectual Property is necessary for the use of any Work 

Product,  Engineer  shall  secure  on  City’s  behalf  and  in  the  name  of  City,  an 
irrevocable,  non‐exclusive,  non‐transferable,  perpetual,  royalty‐free  license  to 
use the Third Party Intellectual Property, including the right of City to authorize 
contractors, Engineers and others to use the Third Party Intellectual Property, for 
he purposes described in this Contract.  

 
4)   In  the  event Work  Product  created  by  Engineer  under  this  Agreement  is  a 

derivative work based on Engineer Intellectual Property or is a compilation that 
includes  Engineer  Intellectual  Property,  Engineer  hereby  grants  to  City  an 
irrevocable,  non‐exclusive,  non‐transferable,  perpetual,  royalty‐free  license  to 
use the pre‐existing elements of Engineer Intellectual Property employed in the 
Work Product, including the right of City to authorize contractors, Engineers and 
others  to  use  the  pre‐existing  elements  of  Engineer  Intellectual  Property 
employed in a Work Product, for the purposes described in this Agreement.  

 
5)    In  the  event Work  Product  created  by  Engineer  under  this  Agreement  is  a 

derivative work based on Third Party Intellectual Property, or a compilation that 
includes Third Party Intellectual Property, Engineer shall secure on City’s behalf 
and  in  the  name  of  City  an  irrevocable,  non‐exclusive,  non‐transferable, 
perpetual, royalty‐free license to use the pre‐existing elements of the Third Party 
Intellectual Property, including the right to authorize contractors, Engineers and 
others to use the pre‐existing elements of the Third Party Intellectual Property, 
for the purposes described in this Agreement.  

 
6)  To  the  extent  permitted  by  the Oregon  Constitution  and  by  the Oregon  Tort 

Claims Act, Engineer shall be indemnified and held harmless by City from liability 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  5

arising out of  re‐use or alteration of  the Work Product by City which was not 
specifically contemplated and agreed to by the Parties in this Agreement.  

 
7)   Engineer may refer to the Work Product in its brochures or other literature that 

Engineer  utilizes  for  advertising  purposes  and,  unless  otherwise  specified, 
Engineer may  use  standard  line  drawings,  specifications  and  calculations  on 
other, unrelated projects. 

  
C.   Confidential Information   
 

1)  Engineer acknowledges that it or its employees, Sub‐Engineers, subcontractors or 
agents  may,  in  the  course  of  performing  their  responsibilities  under  this 
Agreement,  be  exposed  to  or  acquire  information  that  is  the  confidential 
information of City or City’s residents.  Any and all information provided by City 
and marked confidential, or identified as confidential in a separate writing, that 
becomes available to Engineer or  its employees, Sub‐Engineers, subcontractors 
or  agents  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  deemed  to  be 
confidential  information  of  City  (“Confidential  Information”).    Any  reports  or 
other documents or items, including software, that result from Engineer’s use of 
the  Confidential  Information  and  any  Work  Product  that  City  designates  as 
confidential are deemed Confidential Information.  Confidential Information shall 
be deemed not  to  include  information  that:  (a)  is or becomes  (other  than by 
disclosure by Engineer) publicly known; (b) is furnished by City to others without 
restrictions  similar  to  those  imposed  by  this  Agreement;  (c)  is  rightfully  in 
Engineer’s possession without the obligation of nondisclosure prior to the time 
of its disclosure under this Agreement; (d) is obtained from a source other than 
City without  the obligation of  confidentiality;  (e)  is disclosed with  the written 
consent of City; or  (f)  is  independently developed by employees or  agents of 
Engineer  who  can  be  shown  to  have  had  no  access  to  the  Confidential 
Information; or (g) is required to be disclosed by law, subpoena, or other court 
order.  

 
2)  Engineer agrees  to hold Confidential  Information  in  strict  confidence, using at 

least  the  same  degree  of  care  that  Engineer  uses  in  maintaining  the 
confidentiality of  its own confidential  information, and not to copy, reproduce, 
sell, assign,  license, market,  transfer or otherwise dispose of, give, or disclose 
Confidential Information to third parties or use Confidential Information for any 
purposes whatsoever  other  than  the  provision  of  Services  to  City  under  this 
Agreement, and to advise each of its employees, Sub‐Engineers, subcontractors 
and  agents  of  their  obligations  to  keep  Confidential  Information  confidential.  
Engineer shall use its best efforts to assist City in identifying and preventing any 
unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential Information.  Without limiting 
the  generality of  the  foregoing,  Engineer  shall  advise City  immediately  in  the 
event  Engineer  learns or has  reason  to believe  that  any person who has had 
access to Confidential Information has violated or intends to violate the terms of 
this Agreement and Engineer will at  its expense cooperate with City  in seeking 
injunctive or other equitable relief  in the name of City or Engineer against any 
such person.  Engineer agrees that, except as directed by City, Engineer will not 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  6

at  any  time  during  or  after  the  term  of  this  Agreement  disclose,  directly  or 
indirectly, any Confidential Information to any person, except in accordance with 
this Agreement, and that upon termination of this Agreement or at City’s request, 
Engineer  will  turn  over  to  City  all  documents,  papers,  and  other  matter  in 
Engineer's possession that embody Confidential Information.  

 
3)  Engineer acknowledges that breach of this Section 4, including disclosure of any 

Confidential  Information,  will  give  rise  to  irreparable  injury  to  City  that  is 
inadequately compensable  in damages.   Accordingly, City may seek and obtain 
injunctive  relief  against  the breach or  threatened breach of  this  Section 4,  in 
addition  to  any  other  legal  remedies  that  may  be  available.    Engineer 
acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained herein are necessary for 
the protection of the legitimate business interests of City and are reasonable in 
scope and content.  

 
5.   Assignment/Delegation 
 
Neither party shall assign or transfer any  interest  in or duty under this Agreement without the written 
consent of  the other.    If City agrees  to assignment of  tasks  to a subcontractor, Engineer shall be  fully 
responsible for the acts or omissions of any subcontractors.   Any approval of a subcontractor does not 
create a contractual relationship between the subcontractor and City. 
 
6.   Engineer is Independent Contractor 
 

A.   The City’s project director, or designee,  shall be  responsible  for determining whether 
Engineer’s work product is satisfactory and consistent with this Agreement, but Engineer 
is not subject to the direction and control of the City. Engineer shall be an independent 
contractor  for all purposes and  shall not be entitled  to  compensation other  than  the 
compensation provided for under Section 3 of this Agreement.  The City’s acceptance of 
the work product as satisfactory does not relieve the Engineer from responsibility for any 
errors in the work product. 

 
B.   Engineer  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  employee  of  City.  Engineer 

acknowledges Engineer’s  status as an  independent  contractor and acknowledges  that 
Engineer is not an employee of the City for purposes of workers compensation law, public 
employee benefits  law, or any other  law. All persons  retained by Engineer  to provide 
services  under  this  Agreement  are  employees  of  Engineer  and  not  of  City.  Engineer 
acknowledges that it is not entitled to benefits of any kind to which a City employee is 
entitled and that it shall be solely responsible for workers compensation coverage for its 
employees and all other payments and taxes required by law. Furthermore, in the event 
that Engineer is found by a court of law or an administrative agency to be an employee of 
the City for any purpose, City shall be entitled to offset compensation due, or to demand 
repayment of any amounts paid to Engineer under the terms of the Agreement, to the 
full extent of any benefits or other remuneration Engineer receives  (from City or third 
party) as a result of the finding and to the full extent of any payments that City is required 
to make as a result of the finding.   

 
C.   The Engineer represents that no employee of the City or any partnership or corporation 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  7

in which a City employee has an  interest, has or will receive any remuneration of any 
description from the Engineer, either directly or indirectly, in connection with the letting 
or performance of this Agreement, except as specifically declared in writing.   

 
D.   Engineer  and  its  employees,  if  any,  are  not  active  members  of  the  Oregon  Public 

Employees Retirement System.   
 
E.   Engineer certifies that it currently has a City business license or will obtain one prior to 

delivering services under this Agreement. 
 
F.   Engineer is not an officer, employee, or agent of the City as those terms are used in ORS 

30.265. 
 

7.   Indemnity 
 

A.   The City has relied upon the professional ability and training of the Engineer as a material 
inducement to enter into this Agreement. Engineer represents to the City that the work 
under this Agreement will be performed in accordance with the professional standards of 
skill and care ordinarily exercised by members of the engineering profession under similar 
conditions and circumstances as well as the requirements of applicable federal, state and 
local laws, it being understood that acceptance of an Engineer’s work by the City shall not 
operate  as  a  waiver  or  release.  Acceptance  of  documents  by  City  does  not  relieve 
Engineer of any responsibility for design deficiencies, errors or omissions. 

 
B.   Engineer  shall defend, hold harmless  and  indemnify  the City,  its officers,  agents,  and 

employees from all claims, suits, or actions to the extent caused by the alleged negligent 
or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions of Engineer or its subcontractors, sub‐Engineers, 
agents  or  employees  under  this Agreement.  This  indemnification  does  not  extend  to 
indemnification for negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions of the City.  If any 
aspect of this indemnity shall be found to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, 
the  illegality  or  invalidity  shall  not  affect  the  validity  of  the  remainder  of  this 
indemnification. 

 
C.   Engineer shall save and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees from 

all claims, suits, or actions and all expenses  incidental to the  investigation and defense 
thereof, to the extent caused by the professional negligent acts, errors or omissions of 
Engineer or  its subcontractors, sub‐Engineers, agents or employees  in performance of 
professional services under this Agreement. Any design work by Engineer that results in 
a design of a facility that does not comply with applicable laws including but not limited 
to  relating  to  current  requirements  of  the  Federal Aviation Administration  (FAA)  and 
accessibility for persons with disabilities shall be considered a professionally negligent act, 
error or omission. 

 
D.   As used in subsections B and C of this section, a claim for professional responsibility is a 

claim made against the City in which the City’s alleged liability results directly or indirectly, 
in whole or  in part, from the quality of the professional services provided by Engineer, 
regardless of the type of claim made against the City. A claim for other than professional  
responsibility is a claim made against the City in which the City’s alleged liability results 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  8

from an act or omission by Engineer unrelated  to  the quality of professional  services 
provided by Engineer. 

 
8.   Insurance 
 
Engineer  and  its  subcontractors  shall maintain  insurance  acceptable  to  City  in  full  force  and  effect 
throughout the term of this Agreement as detailed in this section. The insurance shall cover all risks arising 
directly  or  indirectly  out  of  Engineer's  activities  or work  hereunder,  including  the  operations  of  its 
subcontractors of any tier. 
 
The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Engineer and its subcontractors shall provide at least 
the following limits and coverages: 
 

A.   Commercial General Liability Insurance 
 
Comprehensive General Liability  Insurance covering Bodily  Injury and Property Damage on an 
“occurrence”  form with  policy  limits  of  at  least  per  occurrence.    This  coverage  shall  include 
Contractual Liability insurance for the indemnity provided under this Agreement.   
 
B.   Professional Liability 
 
Professional  Liability  Insurance  covering  any  damages  caused  by  an  error,  omission  or  any 
negligent  acts.  Combined  single  limit  per  claim  shall  not  be  less  than  $1,300,000,  or  the 
equivalent. Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000 and filed on a “claims‐made” 
form. 
 
C.   Commercial Automobile Insurance 
 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage on an “occurrence”  form  including  coverage  for all 
owned, hired, and non‐owned vehicles. The Combined Single Limit per occurrence shall not be 
less than $1,300,000. 
 
D.   Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
 

  The Engineer,  its  subcontractors,  if any, and all employers providing work,  labor or materials 
under this Agreement are subject employers under the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law and 
shall comply with ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers’ compensation coverage 
that  satisfies Oregon  law  for  all  their  subject workers. Out‐of‐state  employers must  provide 
Oregon workers’ compensation coverage for their workers who work at a single location within 
Oregon  for more  than 30 days  in  a  calendar  year.  Engineers who perform work without  the 
assistance or labor of any employee need not obtain such coverage. This shall include Employer’s 
Liability Insurance with coverage limits of not less than $100,000 each accident. 
 
E.   Additional Insured Provision 
 
The Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy shall include the City its officers, directors, and 
employees as additional insureds with respect to this Agreement. Coverage will be endorsed to 
provide a per project aggregate. 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  9

 
F.   Extended Reporting Coverage 
 
If any of the liability insurance is arranged on a “claims made” basis, Extended Reporting coverage 
will be required at the completion of this Agreement to a duration of 24 months or the maximum 
time period the Engineer’s insurer will provide if less than 24 months. Engineer will be responsible 
for  furnishing certification of Extended Reporting coverage as described or continuous “claims 
made”  liability  coverage  for  24 months  following Agreement  completion. Continuous  “claims 
made”  coverage  will  be  acceptable  in  lieu  of  Extended  Reporting  coverage,  provided  its 
retroactive date is on or before the effective date of this Agreement. Coverage will be endorsed 
to provide a per project aggregate. 
 
G.   Notice of Cancellation 
 
There shall be no cancellation, material change, exhaustion of aggregate  limits or  intent not to 
renew insurance coverage without 30 days written notice to the City. Any failure to comply with 
this provision will not affect the insurance coverage provided to the City. The 30 days notice of 
cancellation provision shall be physically endorsed on to the policy. 
 
H.   Insurance Carrier Rating 
 
Coverage provided by  the Engineer must be underwritten by an  insurance  company deemed 
acceptable by the City. The City reserves the right to reject all or any insurance carrier(s) with an 
unacceptable financial rating. 
 
I.   Certificates of Insurance 
 
As evidence of the insurance coverage required by the Agreement, the Engineer shall furnish a 
Certificate of Insurance to the City. No Agreement shall be effected until the required certificates 
have  been  received  and  approved  by  the  City.  The  certificate will  specify  and  document  all 
provisions within this Agreement. A renewal certificate will be sent to the address below ten days 
prior to coverage expiration. 
 
J.   Primary Coverage Clarification 
 
The parties agree that Engineer’s coverage shall be primary to the extent permitted by law. The 
parties further agree that other insurance maintained by the City is excess and not contributory 
insurance with the insurance required in this section. 
 
K.   Copy of Policy or Certificate of Insurance 
 
A cross‐liability clause or  separation of  insureds clause will be  included  in  the general  liability 
policy required by this Agreement. Engineer shall furnish City with at least 30‐days written notice 
of  cancellation of, or any modification  to,  the  required  insurance  coverages.   A  copy of each 
insurance policy, certified as a true copy by an authorized representative of the issuing insurance 
company, or at  the discretion of City,  in  lieu  thereof, a certificate  in  form  satisfactory  to City 
certifying to the issuance of such insurance shall be forwarded to: 
 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  10

Timothy Gross, PE 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway  
Newport, Oregon 97365 

 
Thirty days cancellation notice shall be provided City by certified mail to the name at the address 
listed  above  in  event  of  cancellation  or  non‐renewal  of  the  insurance.  The  procuring  of  the 
required insurance shall not be construed to limit Engineer’s liability under this agreement. The 
insurance does not relieve Engineer’s obligation for the total amount of any damage, injury, or 
loss caused by negligence or neglect connected with this Agreement. 
 

9.   Termination Without Cause 
 
At any time and without cause, City shall have the right in its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement 
by  giving  notice  to  Engineer.  If  City  terminates  the Agreement  pursuant  to  this  section,  it  shall  pay 
Engineer for all undisputed invoices rendered to the date of termination. 
 
10. Termination With Cause 
 

A.   City may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written notice to Engineer, 
or at such later date as may be established by City, under any of the following conditions: 

 
1)   If City  funding  from  federal,  state,  local, or other  sources  is not obtained and 

continued at levels sufficient to allow for the purchase of the indicated quantity 
of  services. This Agreement may be modified  to accommodate a  reduction  in 
funds. 

 
2)   If Federal or State regulations or guidelines are modified, changed, or interpreted 

in  such  a  way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for 
purchase under this Agreement. 

 
3)   If any license or certificate required by law or regulation to be held by Engineer, 

its subcontractors, agents, and employees to provide the services required by this 
Agreement is for any reason denied, revoked, or not renewed. 

 
Any termination of this agreement under paragraph (A) shall be without prejudice to any 
obligations or liabilities of either party already accrued prior to such termination. 
 

B.   City,  by written  notice  of  default  (including  breach  of  Agreement)  to  Engineer, may 
terminate this Agreement: 

 
1)   If Engineer fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the time 

specified, or 
 
2)   If Engineer fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, or fails 

to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in accordance 
with its terms, and after receipt of written notice from City, fails to correct such 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  11

failures within ten days or such other period as City may authorize. 
 

C.   If  City  terminates  this Agreement,  Engineer  shall  be  entitled  to  payment  for  services 
provided prior to the termination date.   

 
D.  Damages for breach of Agreement shall be those allowed by Oregon law, reasonable and 

necessary attorney fees, and other costs of litigation at trial and upon appeal. 
 

11.   Non‐Waiver 
 
The failure of City to  insist upon or enforce strict performance by Engineer of any of the terms of this 
Agreement or to exercise any rights hereunder, should not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to 
any extent of its rights to assert or rely upon such terms or rights on any future occasion. 
 
12.   Notice  
 
All notices, bills and payments shall be made in writing and may be given by personal delivery, mail, or by 
fax. Payments may be made by personal delivery, mail, or electronic transfer. The following addresses 
shall be used to transmit notices, bills, payments, and other information: 
 
IF TO CITY OF NEWPORT 
 
Timothy Gross 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, OR 97365 
541‐574‐3366 
 
IF TO ENGINEER: 
 
______________________________________ 
______________________________________ 
______________________________________ 
______________________________________ 
______________________________________ 
 
 
The date of deposit in the mail shall be the notice date for first class mail.   
All other notices, bills and payments shall be effective at the time of actual delivery. Changes may be made 
in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices, bills and payments are to be given by giving 
written notice pursuant to this paragraph. 
 
13.   Merger 
 
This writing is intended both as a final expression of the Agreement between the parties with respect to 
the  included  terms  and  as  a  complete  and  exclusive  statement  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement. No 
modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until it is made in writing and signed by both 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  12

parties. 
 
14.   Force Majeure 
 
Neither  City  nor  Engineer  shall  be  considered  in  default  because  of  any  delays  in  completion  and 
responsibilities hereunder due to causes beyond the control and without fault or negligence on the part 
of the parties so disenabled, including but not restricted to, an act of God or of a public enemy, civil unrest, 
volcano,  earthquake,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  quarantine  restriction,  area‐wide  strike,  freight  embargo, 
unusually severe weather or delay of subcontractors or supplies due  to such cause; provided that the 
parties so disenabled shall within ten days from the beginning of such delay, notify the other party  in 
writing of the cause of delay and its probable extent. Such notification shall not be the basis for a claim 
for  additional  compensation.  Each  party  shall,  however, make  all  reasonable  efforts  to  remove  or 
eliminate  such  a  cause  of  delay  or  default  and  shall,  upon  cessation  of  the  cause,  diligently  pursue 
performance of its obligation under the Agreement. 
 
15.   Non‐Discrimination 
 
Engineer  agrees  to  comply with  all  applicable  requirements  of  federal  and  state  statutes,  rules,  and 
regulations.  By way of example only, Engineer also shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990, ORS 659.425, and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws. 
 
16.   Errors 
 
Engineer shall perform such additional work as may be necessary to correct errors in the work required 
under this Agreement without undue delays and without additional cost. 
 
17.    Extra Work 
 
Extra work or work on Contingency Tasks  is not authorized unless the City authorizes the additional or 
contingency work  in writing.   Failure of Engineer  to  secure written authorization  for extra work  shall 
constitute  a  waiver  of  all  right  to  adjustment  in  the  Agreement  price  or  Agreement  time  due  to 
unauthorized extra work and Engineer shall be entitled to no compensation for the performance of any 
extra work not authorized in writing. 
 
18.   Governing Law 
 
The Agreement  is subject to Oregon  law.   Any action or suits  involving any question arising under this 
Agreement must be brought in the appropriate court in Newport, Oregon. 
 
19.   Compliance With Applicable Law 
 
Engineer shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work under 
this Agreement,  including  but  not  limited  to  those  set  forth  in ORS  279A, B &  C. While  all  required 
contractual  provisions  are  included  in  Exhibit  B,  Engineer  shall  be  familiar with  and  responsible  for 
compliance with all other applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code. 
 
20.   Conflict Between Terms 
 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  13

This instrument shall control in the event of any conflict between terms between this document and the 
RFQ and/or proposal.   
 
21.   Access to Records 
 
City shall have access to the books, documents, papers and records of Engineer that are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 
 
22.   Audit 
 
Engineer shall maintain records to assure conformance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
and to assure adequate performance and accurate expenditures within the Agreement period. Engineer 
agrees  to  permit  City  or  its  duly  authorized  representatives  to  audit  all  records  pertaining  to  this 
Agreement to assure the accurate expenditure of funds. 
 
23.   Severability 
 
In the event any provision or portion of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable or invalid by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected to the 
extent that it did not materially affect the intent of the parties when they entered into the Agreement. 
 
24. Industrial Accident Fund Payment 
 
Engineer shall pay all contributions or amount due the  Industrial Accident Fund form that Engineer or 
subcontractors incur during the performance of this Agreement. 
 
25. Arbitration 

All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the City and Engineer arising out of, or 
relating to this Contract, including rescission, reformation, enforcement, or the breach thereof except 
for claims which may have been waived by the making or acceptance of final payment, may be decided 
by binding arbitration in City’s sole discretion, in accordance with the Oregon Uniform Arbitration Act, 
ORS 36.600, et seq. and any additional rules mutually agreed to by both parties.  If the parties cannot 
agree on rules within ten (10) days after the notice of demand, the presiding judge of the Lane County 
Circuit Court will establish rules to govern the arbitration.   

 

A claim by Engineer arising out of, or relating to this Contract must be made in writing and delivered to 
the City Administrator not less than 30 days after the date of the occurrence giving rise to the claim.  
Failure to file a claim with the City Administrator within 30 days of the date of the occurrence that gave 
rise to the claim shall constitute a waiver of the claim.  A claim filed with the City Administrator will be 
considered by the City Board at the Board’s next regularly scheduled meeting.  At that meeting the 
Board will render a written decision approving or denying the claim.  If the claim is denied by the Board, 
the Engineer may file a written request for arbitration with the City Administrator. No demand for 
arbitration shall be effective until the City Board has rendered a written decision denying the underlying 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  14

claim.  No demand for arbitration shall be made later than thirty (30) days after the date on which the 
City has rendered a written decision on the underlying claim.  The failure to demand arbitration within 
said 30 days shall result in the City Board’s decision being binding upon the City and Engineer.   

 

Notice of demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to the agreement, subject 
to applicable statutes of limitation, except as set forth above.  The City, if not the party demanding 
arbitration, has the option of allowing the matter to proceed with binding arbitration or by written 
notice within five (5) days after receipt of a demand for arbitration, to reject arbitration and require the 
Engineer to proceed through the courts for relief.  If arbitration is followed, the parties agree that the 
award rendered by the arbitrators will be final, judgment may be entered upon it in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof, and will not be subject to modifications or appeal except to the extent permitted by 
Oregon law. 

 
26.  Attorney Fees 

If suit, action or arbitration is brought either directly or indirectly to rescind, reform, interpret or enforce 
the terms of this contract, the prevailing party shall recover and the  losing party hereby agrees to pay 
reasonable attorney's fees incurred in such proceeding, in both the trial and appellate courts, as well as 
the costs and disbursements.  Further, if it becomes necessary for City to incur the services of an attorney 
to  enforce  any  provision  of  this  contract  without  initiating  litigation,  Engineer  agrees  to  pay  City’s 
attorney's fees so incurred.  Such costs and fees shall bear interest at the maximum legal rate from the 
date incurred until the date paid by losing party 
 
27. Complete Agreement 
 
This Agreement and any exhibit(s) hereto and any and all Task Orders executed by the parties constitute 
the entire agreement between the parties. No waiver, consent, modification, or change of terms of this 
Agreement  shall bind either party unless  in writing and  signed by both parties. Any waiver,  consent, 
modification, or change if made, shall be effective only in specific instances and for the specific purpose 
given. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the documents comprising this Agreement, 
interpretation shall occur in the following manner:  1) each individual Task Order; 2) this Agreement and 
any exhibits hereto; and 3) the RFQ and Response. The following exhibits are attached to and incorporated 
into this Agreement:   
 

A. Exhibit A – Fees; 
B. Exhibit B – Oregon Public Contracting Code/required contractual provisions  
C. Exhibit C – Engineer of Record RFQ and Engineer’s Proposal. 

 
28.  Miscellaneous 

A. Engineer agrees  that news  releases and other publicity  relating  to  the  subject of  this 
Agreement will be made only with the prior written consent of City.  

B. Engineer shall comply with all virus‐protection, access control, back‐up, password, and 
other security and other information technology policies of City when using, having access 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  15

to, or creating systems for any of City’s computers, data, systems, personnel, or other 
information resources.   

C. Engineer certifies that Engineer is in compliance with Oregon tax laws pursuant to ORS 
305.385 

D. Engineer certifies that Engineer does not discriminate in regard to subcontractors as set 
forth in ORS 279A.110. 

E. Engineer  will  include  in  all  contracts  with  subcontractors  appropriate  provisions  as 
required by ORS 279C.580. 

F. Engineer will comply with environmental and natural resources regulations as set forth in 
ORS 279B.525 and regulations relating to the salvaging, recycling, composting or mulching 
yard waste material, and salvage and recycling of construction and demolition debris as 
set forth in ORS 279B.225 and 270C.510. 

 
By their signatures hereunder, the parties acknowledge they have read and understand this Agreement 
and agree to be bound by its terms.  This Agreement is effective on the date last signed below by a party 
below: 
 
CITY OF NEWPORT: 
 
___________________________ 
Ted Smith, Interim City Manager 
 
Date: ______________________ 
 
 
HDR Engineering, Inc.: 
 
By: ________________________ 
 
Its: ________________________ 
 
Date: ______________________ 
 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  17

EXHIBIT B 
Oregon Public Contracting Requirements 

ORS CHAPTER 279B PUBLIC CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES 

 
(1)  Contractor shall pay promptly, as due, all persons supplying labor or materials for the 

prosecution of the work provided for in the contract, and shall be responsible for such payment 
of all persons supplying such labor or material to any Subcontractor.  ORS 279B.220(1). 

(2)  Contractor shall promptly pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund 
from such Contractor or Subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract.  ORS 
279B.220(2). 

(3)  Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the Contracting 
Agency on account of any labor or material furnished and agrees to assume responsibility for 
satisfaction of any such lien so filed or prosecuted.  ORS 279B.220(3). 

(4)  Contractor and any Subcontractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld 
from employees pursuant to ORS 316.617.  ORS 279B.220(4). 

(5)  Contractor agrees that if Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any 
claim for labor or materials furnished to the Contractor or a Subcontractor by any person in 
connection with the contract as such claim becomes due, the City may pay such claim to the 
persons furnishing the labor or material and charge the amount of payment against funds due 
or to become due Contractor by reason of the contract.  The payment of a claim in the manner 
authorized hereby shall not relieve the Contractor or his surety from his or its obligation with 
respect to any unpaid claim.  If the City is unable to determine the validity of any claim for labor 
or material furnished, the City may withhold from any current payment due Contractor an 
amount equal to said claim until its validity is determined and the claim, if valid, is paid. 

(6)  Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, copartnership, association, or 
corporation, furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care or other needed care and attention, 
incident to sickness or injury, to employees of such Contractor, of all sums which the Contractor 
agrees to pay for such services and all monies and sums which the Contractor collected or 
deducted from the wages of employees pursuant to any law, contract or agreement for the 
purpose of providing or paying for such service.  ORS 279B.230(1). 

(7)  All subject employers working under the contractor are either employers that will comply with 
ORS 656.017, or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.  ORS 279B.230(2). 

(8)  Contractor shall pay employees for overtime work performed under the contract in accordance 
with ORS 653.010 to 653.261 and the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 USC 201, et seq).  
ORS 279B.235(3). 



DAM ENGINEER OF RECORD SERVICE AGREEMENT  18

 

(9)  The Contractor must give notice to employees who work on this contract in writing, either at the 
time of hire or before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a 
location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day and the days per week that 
the employees may be required to work.  ORS 279B.235(2). 

(10)  All sums due the State Unemployment Compensation Fund from the Contractor or any 
Subcontractor in connection with the performance of the contract shall be promptly so paid.   
ORS 701.430. 

(11)  The contract may be canceled at the election of City for any willful failure on the part of 
Contractor to faithfully perform the contract according to its terms. 

(12)  Contractor certifies compliance with all applicable Oregon tax laws, in accordance with ORS 
305.385. 

(13)  Contractor certifies that it has not discriminated against minorities, women or emerging small 
business enterprises in obtaining any required subcontractors.  ORS 279A.110. 

(14)  As used in this section, “nonresident contractor” means a contractor that has not paid 
unemployment taxes or income taxes in the state of Oregon during the 12 calendar months 
immediately preceding submission of the bid for the contract, does not have a business address 
in this state, and stated in the bid for the contract that it was not a “resident bidder” under ORS 
279A.120.  When a public contract is awarded to a nonresident contractor and the contract 
price exceeds $10,000, the contractor shall promptly report to the Department of Revenue on 
forms to be provided by the department the total contract price, terms of payment, length of 
contract and such other information as the department may require before the bidder may 
receive final payment on the public contract.  ORS 279A.120. 

 

      
   



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C



Category Billing Rate

Sr. Project Manager $210.00

Project Manager $140.00

Principal Designer $320.00

Technical Advisor II $330.00

Technical Advisor I $250.00

Engineer V $210.00

Engineer IV $190.00

Engineer III $170.00

Engineer II $140.00

Engineer I $120.00

EIT $90.00

Planner/Scientist III $140.00

Planner/Scientist II $115.00

Planner/Scientist I $90.00

Engineering Geologist $175.00

Project Technician IV $145.00

Project Technician III $125.00

Project Technician II $105.00

Project Technician I $85.00

Project Controller $100.00

Project Assistant II $90.00

Project Assistant I $75.00

Notes: Rates valid through June 30, 2014, after which they will be adjusted for the CPI-W Portland Area 

Expenses
Hourly Tech Charge $3.70
Mileage At IRS Rate
Travel & Hotel At Cost
Other Direct Cost At Cost
Subconsultants 5% Markup

Category Billing Rate
*Technical Advisor - Geotechnical Modeling $250.00
Technical Advisor - Seismic Hazards $250.00
Sr Cost Estimator $205.00

Senior Associate Engineer/Geologist* $206.00
Associate Engineer/Geologist $176.00
Project Engineer/Geologist $147.00
Staff Engineer/Geologist $134.00
Engineer/Geologist $124.00
Senior Technician $105.00
CADD/Graphics $88.00
Secretary $73.00

*Includes Principal and Staff Consultant

Subconsultants

Rates Effective July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014

City of Newport Dam Consultant of Record Rate Schedule

EXHIBIT A



 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 Agenda Item # IX.F.  
 Meeting Date September 3, 2013 
2013____  
 

CITY COUNCIL/URBAN RENEWAL 
AGENCY AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

City of Newport, Oregon 
 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Consideration and Possible Adoption of a Workforce Housing Development Agreement 
Between the City of Newport, Lincoln Community Land Trust, and Community Services Consortium 
 
Prepared By: Derrick Tokos Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    

 
ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  Consideration of whether or not it is in the public interest for the City of 
Newport to enter into an agreement with the Lincoln Community Land Trust (LCLT) and Community Services 
Consortium (CSC) that establishes a framework for the construction of permanently affordable workforce housing 
in Newport.  The Newport Planning Commission considered the proposal at its 3/11/13 meeting and 
recommends that the Council move forward with the agreement.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Council accept the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation and adopt the agreement. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  I move that the City Council enter into a workforce housing development agreement 
with the Lincoln Community Land Trust and Community Services Consortium, and authorize the City Manager to 
sign the document as presented. 
 
KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  In 2011, the City completed a comprehensive Housing 
Needs Analysis which concluded that Newport lacks an adequate supply of affordable workforce housing.  As a 
consequence it is difficult for workers to find housing within the city limits, which negatively influences long term 
growth of the economy; the City’s ability to attract and retain employees and employers; emergency response times 
by emergency personnel living outside the city; and reinvestment in the economy by community members who 
spend more on housing. 
 
In response to these findings, the City Council amended the Housing Element of its Comprehensive Plan to put in 
place specific policies and implementation measures to address this deficiency.  One of the measures, 
Implementation Measure 2.1, calls for the City to establish a residential land bank program where it will donate 
City-owned property for construction of workforce housing in order to eliminate the cost of real property from the 
sales price of the units, thus making them more affordable.  State law allows local governments to release property 
in this manner provided it is not needed for public purposes (ORS 271.330). 
 
The proposed workforce housing agreement sets out a framework by which LCLT, with the support of CSC, will 
construct six owner occupied units over a five year period.  Provisions in the agreement anticipate that individual 
projects (either a single family dwelling or duplex) will be constructed at a rate of about one structure per year.  The 
LCLT, in consultation with the City, will identify suitable city-owned property.  They are also responsible for 
preparing concept plans and preliminary cost estimates sufficient to demonstrate to City policy making bodies that 
the ultimate sales price of the unit will fall within a range of 60 to 120 percent of median family income.  Such case-
by-case proposals will be presented to the Planning Commission for a recommendation, followed by a hearing 



Page 2 of 3 

 

before the Council for a determination as to whether or not it is in the public interest to release the property.  Any 
property that the City releases for construction of workforce housing will include a deed restriction requiring that it 
be used expressly for workforce housing purposes for a period of at least 20-years from the date a certificate of 
occupancy is issued.  At the time each unit is completed, and a certificate of occupancy issued, LCLT will place the 
property into a 99 year inheritable and renewable land lease, impose contractual limitations on the sale of the 
unit, and manage the lease and contract to ensure that the unit is used for workforce housing purposes. 
 
The proposed agreement contains a detailed list of the administrative and real estate development services that 
LCLT and/or CSC are responsible for performing.  The scope of services is intended to be “cradle-to-grave” 
including property selection; unit design, construction and sale; provision of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) approved homebuyer education; and ensuring ongoing affordability for future buyers through enforcement 
of land lease terms and associated restrictions.  Private contractors will have the opportunity to construct 
workforce housing units according to a competitive bid process.  City obligations include the donation of real 
property, payment of $10,000 per project for construction management, and provision of at least $150,000 of 
revolving loan funds to finance construction with the expectation that loans would be paid back and reissued for 
each successive project.  The City is also responsible for maintaining a reserve fund of $30,000 that can be used on 
an as-needed basis to improve transferred properties so that they are suitable for development. 
 
Construction of workforce housing places otherwise vacant land on the property tax rolls, which allows the City to 
recover the value of the donated property through tax receipts over time.  At its work sessions, Council members 
expressed concerns that inheritability language in the LCLT land lease may lead to circumstances where persons 
with incomes in excess 120% of median family income could acquire the properties.  The LCLT has agreed to 
modify its standard land lease agreement to ensure that this does not happen and a draft of the lease agreement 
would be available with each project that is brought forward for Council review.  Further, Sections 8 and 9 of this 
final draft of the framework agreement make it expressly clear that any land transferred for workforce housing 
purposes must be managed for that purpose for at least 20 years or the property and improvements revert back to 
the City. 
 
This agreement is structured in a manner that allows the City to actively facilitate construction of workforce 
housing without having to hire staff to administrative and manage a housing program.  To further ensure that this 
remains the case, the County has agreed to guarantee completion of an individual project should LCLT or CSC be 
unable to perform its responsibilities.  This should prevent the City from being placed in a position where it must 
complete a project that has been initiated or is partially under construction.  The LCLT and CSC are in the process 
of redefining the manner in which CSC provides staffing assistance to the Trust.  This may lead to changes in 
terms of how the Trust carries out its responsibilities, but should not materially impact the conceptual framework 
for realizing new workforce housing units that is outlined in this agreement.  Further, the agreement is subject to 
annual review by all parties and may be terminated by any party upon 30 days prior written notice if they are not 
satisfied with how the work is progressing. 
 
Another issue brought up by Council members at the work sessions was a desire to see examples of other local 
jurisdictions that are making the type of commitment (land and funds) that the City of Newport is prepared to 
undertake as part of this agreement.  Lincoln City is probably the best example.  For several years now Lincoln City 
has managed a revolving loan program for construction of workforce housing that is comparable to what Newport 
recently established.  That program has funded the construction of two Trust homes.  They also have an affordable 
housing fund that they use for purchasing properties.  The resources in that fund were fully utilized to the tune of 
about $800,000 as part of the City’s recent $2.5 million dollar purchase of the 363 acre Villages at Cascade Head 
property.  It is anticipated that a significant portion of the property will be set aside for workforce and affordable 
housing needs. 



Page 3 of 3 

 

The City Council held a work session on 4/15/13 to consider the agreement.  At that time, staff presented a 
sample list of properties that the City owns that might be suitable for the construction of workforce housing to 
show that there is a sufficient number of sites should an agreement be adopted.  On 5/20/13 Bill Hall, Chair of 
the Lincoln Community Land Trust, and Ben Baggett with the Community Services Consortium, made a 
presentation and answered questions from Council members regarding the Trust’s activities and the potential 
benefits of this arrangement. 
 
OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  Other partnerships were considered; however, the LCLT model 
of placing properties into a 99-year inheritable and renewable land lease to ensure affordability is particularly well 
suited for a “land bank” program. 
 
CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  Entering into an agreement of this nature that puts in place a land bank for the 
construction of workforce housing is a stated Council goal. 
 
ATTACHMENT LIST:  

 Workforce Housing Agreement 

 Draft Lincoln County Project Assurance (approved by the Board on 8/28/13) 

 Newport Comprehensive Plan Housing Policies 

 ORS 271.330 

 Relevant portion of the 5/20/13 Council meeting minutes 

 Copy of the 4/15/13 Council work session minutes 

 Copy of the 3/11/13 Planning Commission minutes 

 Press release regarding the Lincoln City Village at Cascade Head land purchase, dated 5/31/13 
 
FISCAL NOTES:   The agreement envisions a $10,000 annual commitment from the City to cover LCLT’s 
construction management expenses, the first year of which is budgeted.  The $180,000 revolving loan fund, 
originally created from proceeds of the sale of City property, would be drawn down to $150,000 with $30,000 
being committed to one-time site improvements.  As noted, the $150,000 would be offered as a loan, to be paid 
back once a project is completed and the unit is sold. 



WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Page 1 of 7  

WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NEWPORT, 

LINCOLN COMMUNITY LAND TRUST AND 

COMMUNITY SERVICES CONSORTIUM 
 

 
 

This Agreement between the City of Newport (City), the Lincoln Community Land Trust, a 

public benefit corporation under ORS 65.001(37)  (LCLT), and the Community Services 

Consortium (CSC) defines the roles and responsibilities of each entity related to the development 

of permanently affordable workforce housing in Newport. 

 
RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, City lacks an adequate supply of affordable workforce housing, as 

documented in the 2011 Newport Housing Needs Analysis; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a consequence, it is difficult for workers to find housing within the city 

limits, which negatively influences long term growth of the economy; the City’s ability to attract 

and retain employees and employers; emergency response times by emergency personnel living 

outside the city; and reinvestment in the economy by community members who spend more on 

housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, consistent with Goals 1 and 2 of the Housing Element of the Newport 

Comprehensive Plan, City is committed to actively participating in the development of 

workforce housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, to this end, as authorized by ORS 271.330, City intends to relinquish title to 

City-owned real property at no cost to LCLT in order to eliminate the cost of real property from 

the sales price of affordable workforce housing units; and 

 
WHEREAS, City wishes to also grant to LCLT City revolving loan funds for the purpose 

of constructing workforce housing units on said properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, LCLT and CSC, as qualified non-profit organizations under ORS 

271.330(2)(b)(A), are ideal partners for City in this endeavor as LCLT places properties upon 

which workforce housing units are constructed into 99-year inheritable and renewable land 

leases that LCLT or its successor, CSC, will manage to ensure long term affordability; and 

 
WHEREAS, LCLT further possesses the organizational capacity to perform all necessary 

due diligence and project management services, including but not limited to property selection; 

unit design, construction and sale; provision of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

approved homebuyer education; and ensuring ongoing affordability for future buyers through 

enforcement of lease terms and associated restrictions; and 

 
WHEREAS, LCLT will afford private contractors the opportunity to construct workforce 

housing units according to a competitive bid process, such process being independent of city or 

state public contracting procedures; and 



WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Page 2 of 7  

 

WHEREAS, the construction of workforce housing places otherwise vacant land on the 

property tax rolls, which allows City to recover the value of the donated property through tax 

receipts over time; and 

 
WHEREAS, LCLT would be subject to all standard terms of a City revolving loan fund, 

ensuring loaned funds are recouped by City with interest; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties’ goal is to construct at least six (6) owner-occupied units over the 

five (5) year term of this contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, CSC currently provides staff support to the LCLT so that it may carry 

out its organizational responsibilities and is similarly interested in promoting workforce 

housing in Newport; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to establish the extent to which CSC will support LCLT in 

its effort to develop workforce housing in Newport and serve in LCLT’s stead should LCLT no 

longer be able to uphold its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES above mentioned, for 

and in consideration of the mutual promise hereafter stated, as follows: 

 
1.   RECITALS. The Recitals to this Agreement set forth above are hereby incorporated herein as 

if fully set out, shall constitute contractual provisions, and are not mere recitals. 

 
2.   PURPOSE:  This Agreement describes the respective responsibilities of each party in 

providing for the development and management of permanently affordable workforce 

housing units within the City of Newport. 

 
3.   TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall be effective on the date that it is 

signed by all parties.  Unless extended as provided in this Section 3 or terminated earlier 

pursuant to Section 10, with the exception of LCLT’s continuing obligations, the term of this 

Agreement shall be for a period of one year.  This Agreement may be extended up to four (4) 

times, each for a period of up to one (1) year upon written mutual consent of all parties. 

Upon expiration or termination, this Agreement shall automatically be extended to govern 

LCLT’s completion of any work previously initiated hereunder. 

 
4.   WORKFORCE HOUSING DEFINED:  For the purpose of this Agreement, the term 

“workforce housing” means housing constructed by or for LCLT, which is marketed and sold 

to an individual or family making between 60 and 120 percent of median family income and 

employed, or, for families, with at least one household member employed, in Lincoln 

County. 

 
5.   LINCOLN COMMUNITY LAND TRUST RESPONSIBILITIES:  LCLT will assign staff 

with knowledge and training in the community land trust model and the development of 

workforce housing units to perform the following general duties: 



WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Page 3 of 7  

 

A.  Administrative Services 

 
i. Coordinate projects; 

ii. Develop and manage project budgets; 

iii.     Coordinate with other contracts (e.g. accounting, legal); 

iv.      Coordinate with local banks for lending resources to potential homebuyers; 

v. Conduct marketing efforts for the sale of each unit; 

vi. Provide or coordinate homebuyer training courses and manage the application process 

for prospective buyers; and 

vii. Maintain ongoing affordability of the units by updating and/or enforcing the land 

leases for each unit and by ensuring the resale restriction formula is applied to each 

subsequent sale. 

 
B.  Real Estate Development Services 

 

 

i. Identify property suitable for construction of workforce housing units; 

ii. Prepare concept plans and preliminary cost estimates sufficient to demonstrate to City 

policy making bodies that the sales price achieves the affordability provisions; 

iii.     Provide all necessary contracting documents (RFP, contract, notices, etc.); 

iv.      Oversee the contractor selection and award process; 

v.      Collect necessary documentation from selected contractor per contract terms; 

vi.      Manage construction from design, site preparation to occupancy of the units; 

vii.     Evaluate deliverables against project scope, cost, and schedule; 

viii. Perform routine progress meetings on site as required; 

ix.     Track progress payments using percentage completion method; 

x. Maintain submittals and project documents; 

xi.     Serve as single point of contact to the City, contractor, key stakeholders; 

xii.  Ensure that contract terms with contractor and City are satisfied; 

xiii.  Provide regular project updates to the City and general public; and 

xiv. Coordinate activities for sale of homes with a real estate agent. 

 
C.  Additional duties will be performed as mutually agreed upon by the LCLT Board of 

Directors and City to carry out the objectives of this Agreement. 

 
6.   CITY OF NEWPORT RESPONSIBILITIES:  City agrees to provide the following resources 

to LCLT to facilitate construction of workforce housing on that parcel within City’s 

corporate limits: 

 
A.  City shall identify City-owned real property appropriate for the location of workforce 

housing units.  Upon a determination by the Newport City Council that such City-owned 

real property is not needed for public use and should be utilized for low income 

(workforce) housing for a period of at least 20 years, consistent with Oregon Revised 

Statute 271.330, City shall transfer such identified property for construction of workforce 



WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Page 4 of 7  

housing units.  Additional deed and sale terms beyond those required by this Agreement 

may be negotiated by the parties prior to transfer of an individual City parcel to LCLT. 

 
B.  Upon transfer of a particular City parcel subject to the terms of this Agreement, City shall 

also pay LCLT $10,000 for professional services associated with LCLT’s performance of 

this Agreement’s terms regarding the transferred parcel, which parties agree is sufficient 

to construct at least one single family dwelling or duplex each year. 

 
C.  Reserve up to $30,000 to be applied in whole or in part on an as-needed basis towards 

site improvements on transferred parcels, upon City’s receipt of LCLT’s reasonable 

written request.  Such requests shall be made by LCLT concurrent with presentation of 

development plans to the City Planning Commission and Council.  Once depleted, this 

$30,000 amount will not be replenished. 

 
D.  Make available a minimum of $150,000 of City revolving loan funds for construction of 

units on the transferred parcel, subject to a separate loan agreement between the parties 

containing standard City loan terms. 

 
E.  Allocate staff time to assist LCLT in identifying suitable properties and bringing forward 

appropriate sites and plans to the City Planning Commission and Council. 

 
7.   TIMING OF DEVELOPMENT:  LCLT shall obtain certificates of occupancy for each 

workforce housing unit constructed on transferred property within eighteen (18) months of 

the transfer date, unless an alternative timeline is authorized in writing by City. 

 
8.   DISPOSITION OF TRANSFERRED PROPERTY:  Each City parcel conveyed to LCLT 

shall be subject to a deed restriction requiring that such property be used expressly for 

workforce housing purposes for a period of at least 20 years from the date a certificate of 

occupancy is issued.  The deed restriction shall further include a reversionary interest in City, 

ensuring that ownership of the transferred property will return to City in the event that the 

use limitation is violated. 

 
9.   AFFORDABILITY ASSURANCE:  Once a certificate of occupancy is obtained for a unit, 

LCLT agrees to place the property into a 99 year inheritable and renewable land lease, 

impose contractual limitations on the sale of the unit, and manage the lease and contract to 

ensure that the unit is used for workforce housing purposes. 

 
10. TERMINATION:  The City and LCLT agree to review this agreement not less than every 12 

months. This agreement may be terminated upon written mutual consent of all parties 

specifying the termination date, or by any party upon 30 days’ prior written notice. 

 
11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION:  If any disputes, disagreements, or controversies arise between the 

parties pertaining to the interpretation, validity, or enforcement of this Agreement, the parties 

shall, upon the request of City, submit such dispute to binding arbitration under the Oregon 

Uniform Arbitration Act, ORS 36.600 et seq. Arbitration shall be requested by delivering to 

the other party a written request for arbitration.  Within five (5) days of receipt of such 

request, the parties shall select a mutually agreeable arbitrator and designate mutually 



WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Page 5 of 7  

agreeable rules of arbitration.  If the parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator within five (5) 

days, an arbitrator may be appointed by the presiding judge of the Lincoln County Circuit 

Court, upon the request of either party.  If the parties have not designated mutually agreeable 

rules of arbitration at such time as the arbitrator is appointed, the arbitrator shall adopt rules 

for the arbitration.  The arbitrator’s decision shall be binding upon the parties. 

 
12. W ORKER’S  C OMP ENSAT ION :  The LCLT and its subcontractors, if any, are 

subject employers under the Oregon Workers’ Compensation laws and shall comply 

with ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide Workers’ Compensation coverage 

for all their subject workers. 

 
13. INDEMNITY: 

 

A.  LCLT shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend City from any and all liability, actions, 

claims, losses, damages, or other costs including attorney fees and witness costs (at both 

trial and appeal level, whether or not a trial or appeal ever takes place) that may be 

asserted by any person or entity arising from, during, or in connection with the 

performance of LCLT’s duties described in this Agreement, except liability arising out of 

the sole negligence of the other.  If any aspect of this indemnification shall be found to be 

illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect 

the validity of the remainder of the indemnification provision. 

 
B.  City shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend LCLT up to the limits of the Oregon 

Tort Claims Act, from any and all liability, actions, claims, losses, damages, or other 

costs including attorney fees and witness costs (at both trial and appeal level, whether or 

not a trial or appeal ever takes place) that may be asserted by any person or entity arising 

from, during, or in connection with the performance of City’s duties described in this 

Agreement, except liability arising out of the sole negligence of the other.  If any aspect 

of this indemnification shall be found to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, 

such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the 

indemnification provision. 

 
14. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-DISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS:  The LCLT will not 

unlawfully discriminate against any employee or person served on account of race, color, 

sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, ancestry, sexual orientation or national 

origin in its performance of this agreement.  Further, the LCLT agrees to: 

 
A.  Comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d) in regard to 

persons served; and 

 
B.  Adhere to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000e) in regard to 

employees or applicants for employment; and 

 
C.  Conform to the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of 

the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; and 

 
D.  Satisfy the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act; and 



WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Page 6 of 7  

 

E.  Prevent any funds from this agreement from being used to sponsor, promote, or otherwise 

to engage in political activities. 

 
15. ASSIGNMENT:  LCLT and/or CIS may assign any of their responsibilities under this 

Contract upon receipt of City’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

 
16. GUARANTY:  CSC or its assigns unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the 

performance by LCLT or its assigns of each and every obligation of LCLT under this 

Agreement.  This guaranty shall be continuing and shall terminate only upon the satisfaction 

by LCLT or its assigns of each and every one of LCLT’s obligations under this Agreement. 

 
17. GUARANTOR’S  C ONSENT:  CSC consents that it will not be necessary for the City, in 

order to enforce this guaranty, to initiate an action or exhaust any remedies against LCLT. 

CSC consents that this guaranty may be immediately enforced upon LCLT’s failure to 

perform any obligation under this Agreement.  Guarantor consents that the parties may, from 

time-to-time modify, alter, or change this Agreement without in any way releasing or 

discharging CSC from its obligations under this Agreement.  This guaranty shall not be 

released, extinguished, modified, or any way affected by failure on the part of City to enforce 

all the rights and remedies available to it under this Agreement. 

 
18. AMENDMENTS:  No amendments to this Agreement shall be effective unless made in 

writing and signed by all parties.  There are no understandings, agreements or 

representations, oral or written regarding this Agreement except as specified or referenced 

herein. 
 
19. SEVERABILITY:  If any court of competent jurisdiction shall hold any provisions of this 

Agreement invalid or unenforceable, such holding shall not invalidate or render 

unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

 
20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties.  There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not 

specified herein regarding this Agreement. 

 
21. EXECUTION:  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 

be deemed to be an original, and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 

agreement.  City shall provide each party with a set of all executed counterparts.  By 

signature of their authorized representatives below, the parties to this agreement 

acknowledge that they have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound. 

 
22. NOTICE:  All notices required by this agreement must be in writing and delivered to the 

parties at the addresses set forth below. 

 
Lincoln Community Land Trust Community Services Consortium 

Benjamin Baggett, Executive Director Martha Lyon, Executive Director 

545 SW 2
nd 

Street, Suite A 545 SW 2
nd 

Street, Suite A 

Corvallis, OR 97333 Corvallis, OR 97333 



WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Page 7 of 7  

 

City of Newport 

Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 

169 SW Coast Highway 

Newport, OR 97365 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Memorandum on the dates 

show hereunder, 

 
Dated at Newport, Oregon this    day of   , 2013 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT  LINCOLN COMMUNITY LAND TRUST 

By:   By:   

Printed Name:  Ted Smith Printed Name: Bill Hall 
Title:  Interim City Manager Title:  Chair, Board of Directors 
Address: 169 SW Coast Highway Address: 545 SW 2nd Street, Suite A 

Newport, OR 97365 Corvallis, OR 97333 

Date:   Date:   
 

 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES CONSORTIUM 
 

 
 

By:   

Printed Name:  Martha Lyon 

Title:  Executive Director 

Address: 545 SW 2
nd 

Street, Suite A 

Corvallis, OR 97333 

Date:   
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page | 1 
 

 
 

Memorandum of Agreement 
By and Between 

Lincoln County and Community Services Consortium 

Project Assurance 
 

The Community Services Consortium (CSC), an ORS Chapter 190 interagency entity, 
provides administrative and operational services  under contract for  the Lincoln Community 
Land Trust (LCLT), a public benefit corporation established under ORS Chapter 65, furthering 
LCLT’s mission to promote and provide affordable low and moderate income housing in Lincoln 
County through a variety of projects countywide.  One such activity being undertaken is a 
Workforce Housing Development Agreement (Agreement) between CSC, LCLT and the City of 
Newport (City) to  provide funding and transfer property to LCLT  to develop affordable 
workforce housing on property currently owned by City. Under this Agreement, LCLT will 
provide project management services, including but not limited to selection of properties, unit 
design, unit construction and sale in accordance with terms of the land trust program.  LCLT will 
also provide Housing and Urban Development approved homebuyer education and enforce 
lease terms and other restrictions designed to ensure ongoing affordability of the housing for 
future buyers of the property.  In the event that LCLT is unable to provide these services, CSC 
will ensure performance up to the limits of the LCLT/CSC/City of Newport Agreement dated 
__________, 2013. 

 
The Agreement between CSC, LCLT and the City contemplates at least six units being 

developed over the five year term of the Agreement.  Provisions in the Agreement anticipate 
that the individual projects (either a single family dwelling or duplex) will be constructed at the 
rate of about one structure per year.  The Agreement will be reviewed every year, and may be 
terminated by mutual consent or upon 30 days written notice to the other party.  If a project is 
started, it is the expectation of the parties that the project will be completed even if the parties 
decide to terminate the Agreement for the remainder of the units. 

 
CSC currently has staffing for LCLT to undertake this Agreement.  In the event that this 

situation changes, however, and there has been the initiation of an individual project as 
outlined above and if replacement staffing is not available from CSC, Lincoln County (County) is 
willing to assure that the started project is completed.  County agrees to fund up to $20,000 for 
CSC to hire a contractor(s) to fulfill LCLT’s obligations (except as noted hereafter) under 
paragraph 5 of  the Agreement with the City for that started project.   LCLT will still be required 
to fulfill the obligations under paragraph 5.A.vii of the Agreement to maintain ongoing 
affordability by managing leases and applying the resale restriction formula for subsequent 
sales for that developed property.    

 
This funding assurance is intended only for completion of a project underway (meaning 

land has been transferred by the City to the LCLT, construction and contracting documents have 
been prepared,  contractors have been hired and construction is underway or scheduled to be 
started) and only for the administrative and real estate development services outlined in the 
Agreement.  County does not commit this or additional funding to complete the minimum six 



 

Page | 2 
 

units contemplated by the parties.  It is intended to insure that once a project is underway it 
will be completed. 

 
This Memorandum of Agreement is for the benefit of CSC, LCLT, and City and will 

continue until the Agreement between CSC, LCLT and City is terminated. 
 

So Understood and Agreed this ___ day of August, 2013 
 

Lincoln County       Community Services Consortium 
_____________________     _________________________ 
Vice-Chair      Chair 











271.330 Relinquishing title of property not needed for public use. (1) Any political subdivision is 
granted express power to relinquish the title to any of its property not needed for public use to any 
governmental body, providing such property shall be used for not less than 20 years for a public purpose 
by the governmental body in the State of Oregon. These transfers for public purposes may include 
transfers without consideration of property held by counties as a result of tax foreclosures.

(2)(a) Any political subdivision is granted express power to relinquish the title to any of its property 
to a qualifying nonprofit corporation or a municipal corporation for the purpose of providing any of the 
following:

(A) Low income housing;
(B) Social services; or
(C) Child care services.
(b) As used in this subsection:
(A) “Qualifying nonprofit corporation” means a corporation that is a public benefit corporation 

under ORS 65.001 (37) and that has obtained a ruling from the federal Internal Revenue Service 
providing that the corporation is exempt from federal income taxes under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code.

(B) “Social services” and “child care services” include but are not limited to education, training, 
counseling, health and mental health services and the provision of facilities and administrative services 
to support social services and child care services.

(3) Any political subdivision is granted express power to convey real property to a nonprofit or 
municipal corporation to be used by the nonprofit or municipal corporation for the creation of open 
space, parks or natural areas for perpetual public use. The instrument conveying the real property shall 
include a restriction on the use of the property that limits the uses of the property to those uses described 
in this subsection. The instrument conveying the property shall also contain a provision for the reversion 
of the property to the political subdivision if the property is not used in conformance with the restriction. 
Real property conveyed under this subsection may include real property held by a political subdivision 
as a result of tax foreclosures.

(4) Transfers under this section may include transfers without consideration of property held by 
counties as a result of tax foreclosures.

(5) Before any county court or board of county commissioners may transfer, under subsection (1) of 
this section, any tax foreclosed lands in which the state or a political subdivision has represented 
delinquent and uncollected taxes, liens or assessments, it shall advertise in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the county for two successive weeks its intention to so transfer the property. The notice 
shall state when the county court will hear objections to the transfer and must specifically describe the 
property intended to be transferred. After the hearing set in the notice is held and objections are heard, it 
may, in its sound discretion, proceed with the transfer. Except in the case of a transfer for low income 
housing, real property shall be conveyed by deed, subject to a reversionary interest retained by the 
granting political subdivision in the event that the property is used for a purpose that is inconsistent with 
the grant. The granting political subdivision may waive the subdivision’s right to a reversionary interest 
at the time the property is conveyed. After the transfer the interests of the state or any political 
subdivision in the land on account of uncollected taxes, liens or assessments are extinguished, and the 
county is relieved of the necessity to account for uncollected taxes, liens or assessments. [Amended by 
1981 c.787 §29; 1991 c.556 §1; 1997 c.248 §1; 1997 c.752 §2; 1999 c.366 §1; 2001 c.315 §54]

Page 1 of 1

3/1/2013http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/271.html



Portion of Minutes from 
5-20-13 Council Meeting 

 
 
Work Force Housing Agreement with Community Services Consortium and Lincoln 
Community Trust. Bill Hall, Lincoln County Commissioner, and Ben Baggett, 
representing the Lincoln Community Land Trust, presented an overview of the work that 
the Trust is doing to provide affordable housing in Lincoln County. The idea is to provide 
quality low income public housing for individuals that are eligible under the income 
qualifications. Hall addressed Council’s concern regarding the 99 year lease. He 
explained that this provision is intended to assist with married couples where one 
spouse dies and the surviving spouse would not be forced to move out of the residence. 
Hall reviewed the benefits and need for Land Trust housing in Lincoln County. He noted 
that home prices have doubled over the past years; multiplying much faster than 
salaries. Hall stated that he believes that this meets the Council goal of providing 
affordable housing. Baggett spoke about the last construction successes, and the 
energy efficiency of the construction projects. Swanson asked for clarification of the 
amount of money that is being asked of the city, and it was noted that the amount is 
$10,000 every year of the contract, and a $30,000 one-time payment to jump start the 
project. Baggett stated that he would report back to the Council either project-by-project 
or whatever schedule the city would like. Busby clarified what he believed the city would 
be giving to the Trust and what this would cost the citizens of Newport. Busby noted that 
he has legal questions regarding Tokos being a member of the board of the Lincoln 
County Land Trust.  Allen asked what would happen is someone passes away and the 
heir to the house is not a qualified buyer, and whether the heir would still own the house. 
It was noted that the simple answer is that it is possible. Allen asked whether the Land 
Trust has asked Lincoln City or other cities in Lincoln County for land or money. Hall 
reported that there have been discussions and presentations but no formal requests for 
land or money. Sawyer noted that getting people into houses that are currently vacant 
would add to the tax base immediately. Saelens stated that the income qualifications 
seem high for this area. Hall reviewed the reasons for the income qualifications and the 
data used to determine the qualifications. 



April 15, 2013 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
 
Councilors present: Beemer, Sawyer, Busby, Saelens, Roumagoux, Allen, and 
Swanson. 

 
Staff present: Voetberg, Hawker, Breves, Tokos, and City Attorney, Christy Monson. 
 
Others present: Lincoln County Commissioner Bill Hall; and Larry Coonrod from the 
Newport News-Times. 
 
Roumagoux called the meeting to order and the roll was taken. 
 
1. Roumagoux asked for additional work session items that are not listed on the 
 agenda, for this or future work sessions. 
 
 Allen suggested designating an alternate to the Audit Committee at this evening’s 
 meeting. 
 
 Allen reported that a Retirement Board of Trustees meeting is scheduled for May 9, 
 at 9:00 A.M., and the alternate will need to attend in his stead. 
 
 Saelens noted that he would like to update Council on the Bicycle/Pedestrian 
 Committee. 
 
 Roumagoux referenced an article in the Local Focus magazine regarding tribes and 
 interest based assessment. It was suggested that Roumagoux contact the Lincoln 
 City Mayor and ask whether there is anything that the City of Newport can do. 
 
 Roumagoux reported that, as a result of the recent municipal court ruling, she would 
 like a timeline on the evolution of the Carpenter hedge complaint. She asked 
 whether the city is liable for hedge height in the city right-of-way. 
 
 Busby stated that he would like to discuss the letter from the Bayfront Coffee House 
 and the response from Tokos. 
 
2. Roumagoux welcomed City Attorney Monson. Busby asked why Council would need 
 to discuss the resolution regarding the City Manager’s authority to settle lawsuits in 
 executive session. Monson noted that when settlement limits become public, it can 
 be detrimental to the city’s position. She noted that Council needs to weigh the pros 
 and cons regarding risks and benefits. Allen noted that even though the discussion 



 may occur in executive session, that the matter had been discussed in public until 
 this time. 
 
 MOTION was made by Swanson, seconded by Saelens, to enter executive session 
 pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f) to discuss attorney-client privileged documents. The 
 motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council entered executive session 
 at 12:17 P.M. 
 
 At the conclusion of the executive session, MOTION was made by Saelens, 
 seconded by Swanson, to return to the Council work session. The motion carried 
 unanimously in a voice vote, and Council returned to its work session at 1:28 P.M. 
 
 Roumagoux noted that Monson had been given direction on the revision of the 
 resolution regarding the City Manager’s authority to settle lawsuits. Allen stated that 
 Council had an executive discussion regarding two documents that had been 
 provided by the City Attorney. He noted that the discussion centered around 
 attorney-client privileged documents, and that some of the discussion could have 
 been held in open session. 
 
3. Monson reviewed a memo she had prepared regarding public meetings law and 
 serial meetings. She reviewed the Lane County case, Dumdi v. Lane County. 
 Monson reported that it is a violation when the City Council takes steps to 
 deliberately keep their deliberations and decision making hidden from the public. 
 Busby asked when an issue is officially on an agenda. Monson encouraged Council 
 not to use the “reply all” feature when communicating with Councilors via e-mail. She 
 urged Council to be careful in communicating, and not to be, or appear to be, 
 orchestrating anything. Monson noted that if a quorum of Councilors are meeting 
 with any organization, that meeting should be noticed as an official meeting of the 
 City Council. A brief discussion ensued regarding the upcoming hospital luncheon, 
 and it was concluded that no more than three Councilors would attend. 
 
4. A discussion ensued regarding workforce housing. Tokos updated Council on 
 activities associated with workforce housing. He noted that the Community Services 
 Consortium has rethought its’ role and has concerns with the guaranty language. 
 Busby stated that he has problems with the concept and most importantly giving 
 $250,000 in land and paying parties to take the land after it is given to them. He 
 expressed additional concern in that the proposal would only benefit six families. He 
 asked whether Council is willing to tell the voters that it wants to give away property 
 and raise water rates fifteen percent. He stated that the Lincoln County Land Trust is 
 made up of officials, and that cities should not be paying them to manage this. He 
 noted that he has questions regarding the CSC’s ability to manage the program. 
 Roumagoux asked whether this was a state or national model. Tokos noted that it is 
 used nationally in many states. Tokos stated that he could bring information 
 regarding the conveyances to an upcoming meeting. He noted that Lincoln City 
 has made funds available for construction, but no land. Allen noted that he has policy 
 questions that need to be answered before action is taken, and that he would like to 
 have Bill Hall or other representatives to attend an evening meeting to respond to 



 Council concerns. Sawyer asked whether the city had ever put properties on the 
 open market. Tokos reported that the properties that he has described are examples 
 of the types of properties the city owns. A discussion ensued regarding potential 
 future development of those properties. Further discussion ensued regarding the 
 proposed  99-year inheritable lease, and what happens if the heirs don’t need the 
 property –  would the property be available to others who would qualify for workforce 
 housing. Sawyer asked how more families could be helped. Tokos noted that 
 exploring  potential CDBG funds with other small cities could provide an ongoing 
 source of  revenue. 
 
5. Busby addressed the SDC issue relative to the recent request by the coffee shop on 
 the Bayfront. It was asked whether the city has a process to address small projects. 
 Busby recommended giving staff direction to remedy this issue. Allen noted that 
 there are three issues: the building permit; the conditional use permit; and the 
 SDC’s. Allen asked whether there is a process for code interpretation. Tokos noted 
 that staff is charged with implementing the ordinance. Allen asked whether there is 
 the ability to clarify language in the code without changing the ordinance. Tokos 
 noted that Council has some limitations regarding what it can do under state law. 
 Allen noted that if an issue requires interpretation, the City Council or City Manager 
 can make a determination as an administrative rule. A discussion ensued regarding 
 methodology. Busby asked whether there is consensus to have staff look into and 
 amend the ordinance if necessary. Tokos reported that SDC assessments can be 
 appealed to the City Council. Allen suggested allowing the appeal to proceed and 
 revisiting the methodology is necessary. 
 
6. Saelens reported on a recent Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee meeting. He noted that, 
 after research, it was determined that the committee had never been formalized. 
 Saelens added that an ordinance, which would formalize the committee, was 
 discussed at the last Committee meeting, and that everyone in attendance supported 
 the document as revised at that meeting. Saelens noted that within 24 hours, the 
 Committee received a broadcast e-mail, from the chair, suggesting that the 
 ordinance not be used, but to put an ordinance number on the Committee by-laws 
 and call it good. Saelens suggested moving forward with the ordinance, as amended 
 by the Committee; and appointing the current members to the newly-formed 
 Committee. He added that after the formal agenda was discussed, the chair spoke 
 for an additional hour regarding items not on the agenda, and venting over 
 communication with other city departments. 
 
7. Roumagoux noted that she will follow-up on the issue of tribes and interest based 
 assessments. 
 
8. Roumagoux asked that the timeline on the Carpenter hedge issue be discussed at 
 the next work session. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:45 P.M. 









 

The Office of

CITY  MANAGER

DATE: May 31, 2013
CONTACT: David A. Hawker, City Manager davidh@lincolncity.org

NEWS RELEASE- FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
City acquires Villages at Cascade Head property 

On May 30th, the City of Lincoln City purchased 363 acres of property known as The Villages at
Cascade Head. The $2.5 million purchase was funded by the City’s Open Space Fund, the
Affordable Housing Fund, and the General Fund. This property was being sold to the highest
bidder by ANB Venture, LLC under the direction of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC).  

The property contains the majority of the remaining buildable land within the City limits and this
purchase will assure that private development on the property will be facilitated.  It is anticipated
that development will occur through a series of property sales over a prolonged period.  The
property contains 4,600 feet of nearly completed street, concrete trails and water and sewer mains.  
Prior to the City’s acquisition it is estimated that the developer invested about $5 million in
infrastructure to serve the development. 

The City anticipates an interim designation of the Villages as a park open to non-motorized public
use. Going forward, the City plans to preserve a portion of the development for future workforce
housing and will also designate the property known as “The Knoll” as open space.  The Knoll is a
well-known local landmark. It is a 570 ft high hill directly to the east of Roads End that offers
panoramic views of Lincoln City and the Pacific Ocean. It has been the number one priority for
open space acquisition since voters approved a $3 million open space bond issue in 1998. Over the
years, the City has made numerous attempts to purchase The Knoll, with the most recent offer
being $1.2 million (which included funds from a state grant) for 36 acres of land. 

“This purchase accomplishes 3 major goals” said Dick Anderson, Mayor of the City of Lincoln
City. “First, it puts The Knoll under public ownership for future generations to enjoy. Second, we
have been able to acquire land at today’s low price levels for future workforce and affordable
housing needs. Finally, this purchase puts us in a position to facilitate economic development by
having land at a very low cost so that housing and business will be allowed to develop at a speedier
and affordable pace.”

 “This is a long term investment by the City that will guarantee that suitable land is available for
future growth and economic opportunities” said David Hawker, City Manager. “The City was
fortunate to have sufficient reserves to be able to bid on a project of this magnitude.  Certainly
some of the land will be in the city’s inventory for an extended period- that will be a financial
legacy for the future.  The Knoll is the most outstanding undeveloped property on the Oregon
Coast. Bringing it into the City’s inventory of open space ensures it will now be permanently
protected and enjoyed by all.”

“PRIDE IN SERVICE”

801 S.W. Highway 101 · P.O. Box  50 · Lincoln City, Oregon 97367 · (541) 996-1200 

mailto:davidh@lincolncity.org


BACKGROUND

The Villages at Cascade Head is a master-planned residential development in the northern-most
area of Lincoln City.  The city’s planning commission first approved the master plan for the
Villages at Cascade Head in 1996 and later approved some modifications to the plan in 1998.  The
project site initially was over 500 acres.  It is almost entirely wooded and is known to provide
habitat for a number of protected species of animals and plants.

Construction is to be divided into three phases or “villages” with the first being “Rock Creek
Village” in the southern part of the property.  Each village is to be divided into individual “blocks”
with Rock Creek Village consisting of nine blocks with a total of 863 dwelling units.  Each block
is to have its own master plan, subject to approval by the planning commission after a public
hearing.  The entire project is to include 1,829 dwelling units including 357 detached single-family
units, 370 townhomes, 430 condominiums, 472 manufactured dwellings, and 200
townhome/multi-family units.  

In accordance with the approved master plan, in 1998 the owners transferred the northernmost 
60 acres of the project site to the city as a “nature park.”  Another 99 acres of the site are to be set
aside in an inter-connected network of other nature parks and as wildlife and wetland corridors. 
These areas are to include a system of trails and passive recreation facilities.  Additionally the
project includes the northern end of the city’s Head to Bay trail, intended to link the nature park at
the northern part of the project with the city-owned park on Siletz Bay via a bicycle and pedestrian
trail.  

In 2005 the owners began construction of the project by extending Devils Lake Boulevard more
than a mile into the site.  This included grading the right-of-way, installing water, sewer, and
stormwater utilities, installing conduits for electrical, telephone, and television cables, building
curbs, gutters, and an extra-wide sidewalk to serve as a link in the Head to Bay trail, and putting

down the first layer of asphalt (and the second layer at the entrance to the property).  They
followed this by beginning the development of “Maplewood,” the first block to see actual
construction.  They subdivided the block into 18 lots for duplex townhomes,  put in a road to serve
them, including all utilities, and started work on the townhomes themselves.  In 2006 they began
work on a second block, “Fernwood.”  They subdivided the 13-acre site into townhome lots and
graded for a road to serve them, installing water, sewer, and stormwater facilities.

The 2007 economic collapse brought all work on the project to a halt.  At the time the city had
been working with the property owners on ideas to modify the master plan in order to improve the
viability of the project.  These included changing the mix of residence types, allowing a
commercial center with shops and lodging, and giving the knoll an open space designation.  The
city likely will consider these and other amendments to the master plan to bring the project more
into line with the current real estate market and to better serve the needs of the community.

 
The property in this purchase amounts to about 363 acres and includes most of Rock Creek Village
and all of the two later phases, to be called Logan Creek Village and Salmon Creek Village.  In
2005 the project’s owners transferred about 52 acres of the project to the Confederated Tribes of
Siletz Indians for expansion of the Tribe’s golf course.  About 24 acres of the PUD, preliminarily
approved for 184 condominium units, is owned by the Lincoln Highlands Limited Partnership and
is not included in the transaction.  The development of “Maplewood”, which consists of the only
block to have been developed to date, is owned by others and also is outside of this transaction.   

* * *

“PRIDE IN SERVICE”

801 S.W. Highway 101 · P.O. Box  50 · Lincoln City, Oregon 97367 · (541) 996-1200 



NE WEST DEVILS LAKE BLVD

£¤101

Roads
End

NeotsuMaplewood

City Property

Knoll
Approx

NW
 LO

GA
N 

RD

NE
 VO

YA
GE A

VE

NE 50
TH

 ST

NE JO
HNS A

VE
N C LANCY RD

NE EAST DEVILS LAKE RD

NW
 K

EE
L A

VE

NE NE OTSU D R

N E P
OR

T D
R

NW
 JE

TT
Y A

VE

NE 42ND ST

NW 50TH ST

NE H A VE

NE 47TH ST

NW 44TH ST

NE 56TH DR

NE
 PORT LN

NE I AV E

NE
 D

 AV
E

NE K AVE

NW 40TH ST NE
 C

 AV
E

NW 51ST ST

NE 58TH ST

N E 43RD ST

NE NEPTUNE DR

NE 66TH ST

NE
 O

AR
 D

R

NE 68TH ST
NE 69TH ST

NW 53RD DR

NE 67TH ST

NE 70TH ST

N E V
OY

AG
E W

AY

NE 49TH ST

NE 6 3RD DR

NE 71ST ST

NW
 LE

E A
VE

NE 72ND ST

NE
 W

AVE

 LN

NE 45T H ST

NE 73RD ST

NE TIDE AVE

NE G AVE

NE 49TH CT

NE 40TH ST

NE Z
EP

HYR
 CT

NE 50TH ST

NE NEPTUNE DR

NE 50TH ST

Villages at Cascade Head
Subject Property
City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary F



 



c.breves
Typewritten Text
G.




	1 AGENDA 9-3-2013
	3 July 15, 2013-URA-Minutes
	4 SBURP Amendment 10 CAI Summary
	4a SBURP Amendment 10 Resolution No  3646
	4b SBURP Amendment 10
	4c OMSI Agreement_final
	agreement_1873
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	Assessment Map - Exhibit A
	Waggoners Addition South Beach - Exhibit B
	Coastal Gully - Exhibit C
	Circulation Diagram - Exhibit D

	4d Newport STIP Presentation
	5 August 19, 2013 WK
	5a August 19 2013
	6 OLCC -Agate Beach Market
	7 Manager's Report August 30, 2013
	8 Project Status Memo - ATJ  09-03-13
	8a HMSC infographic
	9 CAI Summary MFD Code Changes 9-3-13 cc mtg
	9a File 2-Z-13 Ordinance Final
	9b Comp Plan Housing Policy 8
	9c ORS 197.763
	9d Draft PC Minutes 8-12-13 - Draft
	9e Hearing Notice
	10 FAA Grant
	11 CBS Outdoor
	12 KEZI
	13 Staff Report Template - CoastCom Agreement 8-28-13
	13a Coastcom IRU FINALwith attachments 8-28-13
	14 Dam Consultant of Record Engineering Services Agreement - HDR  - Staff Memo 9-3-13
	14a Dam Engineering Consultant of Record Contract FINAL 8-21-13
	14b Newport COR Rate Schedule HDR
	15 CAI - LCLT Workforce Housing
	15a Workforce Housing Development Agreement 08-26-13
	15b Memorandum of Agreement CSC and Lincoln County Aug 2013 Final
	15c Housing Policies
	15d ORS 271.330
	15e Excerpt - Council's 5-20-13 mtg
	15f Council's 4-15-13 Minutes
	15g PC_3-11-13_Minutes_App_3-25-13
	15h Villages Press Release
	16 Charter Extension



